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Chairman’s Statement

ERE®ME

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Director(s)”) (the
“Board”) of Universe Entertainment and Culture Group
Company Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present
the 2021/2022 annual results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 30th
June 2022 (the “Year").

The outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 ("COVID-19") in the
first quarter of 2020 has indeed brought unprecedent challenge
the cultural and entertainment industry in the People's Republic
of China (which excludes Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan for
the purpose of this report) (the “PRC"). In the past two years,
the PRC’s movie industry gradually recovered and showed a
good progress in 2021. According to Maoyan Entertainment
(FHARIR%%), the PRC's gross box office reached approximately
RMBA47.2 billion in 2021 and recovered to approximately 74%
of its pre-pandemic level, and continued to stay at number one
in the world in terms of both annual box office and total number
of movie screens which demonstrating the strong demand
of the entertainment content in the PRC’s market. However,
resulting from the rapid spread of COVID-19 variants in the first
half of 2022, the total box office for the PRC’'s movie market
decreased by approximately 37.7% to approximately RMB17.2
billion for the first half of 2022, compared with the same period
last year.

The recovery of the film market in PRC was turbulent during
the Year. In order to fix a good release date of the new films
in the PRC, the Group delayed the theatrical debut of several
quality films during the Year in respond to the intermittent
lockdown and closure of cinemas in the PRC and therefore the
Group experienced a decrease in turnover to approximately
HK$127.6 million and recorded a loss of approximately HK$78.9
million during the Year.

Since June 2022, the pandemic situation in the PRC has
stabilised and we expect a steady rebound of film market
resulting from the gradual easing of social distancing and
control measures. We believe that the PRC's market will be
an important driver of the Group's business growth and we
will continue to invest and produce quality films in the coming
years.
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The rebound of the COVID 19 pandemic, the resultant
extended anti-pandemic measures and economy downturn in
Hong Kong also caused severe hardship and loss to the Group’s
the trade, wholesales and retails of optical and watch products
business, securities trading business and financial printing
business during the Year. We will continue to streamline the
operation, implement strict cost saving measure and adjust our
business strategic from time to time to deal with the upcoming
challenges.

Looking forward, despite of the above difficulties, the Group
will continue to exercise financial prudence to operate our
business with the aim to create value to our stakeholders in the
long run.

APPRECIATION

Finally, | would also like to take this opportunity to express my
sincere thanks and gratitude to my fellow directors and our
staff for their dedicated efforts and contributions to the Group
in the past year. | would also like to thank all our customers and
Shareholders for their trust and support.

By Order of the Board

Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29th September 2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEBNWmR DN

BUSINESS AND OPERATIONAL REVIEW

Overall Group results

The Group recorded a loss for the year ended 30 June 2022
(the “Year") of approximately HK$78.9 million against a profit
of approximately HK$152.5 million for the year ended 30 June
2021 (the “Last Year”). The increase in loss of the Group for
the Year as compared to the Last Year was mainly due to:
(i) the decrease in revenue of the Group from approximately
HK$602.6 million for the Last Year to approximately HK$127.6
million for the Year owing to the absence of blockbusters
released by the Group during the Year. Due to the continued
widespread outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group
delayed the theatrical debut of several quality films during the
Year in response to the intermittent lockdown and closure of
the cinemas in the PRC and Hong Kong. On the other hand,
the Group produced and distributed one blockbuster titled
“Shock Wave 2" ("#F5# & ZK2") and recorded a remarkable box
office of approximately RMB1.3 billion in the PRC for the Last
Year; and (ii) the increase in impairment loss of approximately
HK$24.5 million for the films rights of the Group due to the
decrease in income/expected income from the films rights in
accordance with the latest market development during the
Year.

Films distribution and exhibition, licensing and
sub-licensing of film rights

During the Year, the lingering COVID-19 pandemic continued to
bring uncertainties and challenges to the film distribution and
exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of film rights business
("Film Business”). According to the information released by
Maoyan Entertainment (FR%R%%), the PRC's gross box office
reached approximately RMB47.2 billion in 2021, continuing
to lead the global box-office market and recovered to 74%
of its pre-pandemic level. However, in the first half of 2022,
the total box office for the PRC's movie market decreased
by approximately 37.7% to approximately RMB17.2 billion,
compared with the same period last year, resulting from the
widespread of COVID-19 variants in the first half of 2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The recovery of the film market in the PRC was turbulent
during the Year. In order to fix a good release date of the
new films in the PRC, the Group delayed the theatrical debut
of several quality films during the Year in respond to the
intermittent lockdown and closure of cinemas in the PRC. As a
result, the Group recorded segmental revenue of approximately
HK$69.0 million during the Year, representing a decrease of
approximately 86.9% as compared to approximately HK$524.8
million during the Last Year. It accounted for approximately
54.1% (Last Year: approximately 87.1%) of the Group's
revenue during the Year.

The Group recorded an impairment loss of films rights, films in
progress and film related deposits of approximately HK$27.5
million during the Year (2021: approximately HK$3.0 million).
The recoverable amount of film rights, films in progress and
film related deposits as at 30th June 2022 was assessed
with reference to a value-in-use calculation at the end of the
reporting period, which was derived from discounting the
projected cash flow using a discount rate of 11% (2021: 11%).

Due to the decrease in turnover and the increase in impairment
loss of film rights, films in progress and film related deposits,
the Group recorded a segmental loss of approximately HK$61.7
million against a segmental profit of approximately HK$193.5
million during the Last Year.

Nevertheless, in response to the growth of the film market in
PRC in the long run, we continue to invest in original production
of quality films in Hong Kong and PRC. Upcoming release
includes “Flashover” (“"EXH#E") directed by Oxide Pang
(¥2)I8) and starring Du Jiang (f£)I), Wang Qianyuan (£ FJR)
and Tong Liya (REB#&). We are also investing and producing
a series of quality movies at various stages of development
including “White Storm 3" ("#F&3 : KA K ") directed by
Herman Yau (Ef#%) and starring Louis Koo (& X%%), Aaron
Kwok (Z8Z ) and Sean Lau (2|5 =), “Shock Wave 3" (“#f
I ER3") directed by Herman Yau (£8#&%) and starring Andy
Lau (2#22E), "High Forces” ("fE#M4R") directed by Oxide
Pang (¥ JE) and starring Andy Lau (2/#%%) and Wendy Zhang
Zi-feng (3R FH) and “The Trading Floor” ("B EMRE")
directed by Herman Yau (Ef#£%) and starring Andy Lau (2/1&
#). In addition, we newly participated and invested in another
blockbuster titled “I Did It My Way” (“/&77") directed by Jason
Kwan (B8 #2) and starring Andy Lau (27%%£), Gordon Lam (#k
5 1%) and Eddie Peng (& T ) during the Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEBNWmR DN

Since June 2022, the pandemic situation in the PRC has
stabilized, and the anti-pandemic social distancing measures
gradually has been relaxed in some regions. The operating rate
of movie theatres has gradually recovered and the film market
shown signs of recovery. The Group will continue to closely
monitor the challenging operating environment and adjust its
business plan and strategy from time to time.

Trade, wholesale and retail of optical and
watches products

The Group engaged in trading, wholesaling and retailing of
optical products and watches products in Hong Kong and
the PRC. Since the outbreak of the COVID-19 in early 2020,
it has evolved into the ferocious fifth wave of COVID-19
pandemic during the Year, significantly impacting the
economy and denting the consumers’ sentiment in Hong
Kong and the PRC. Consequently, revenue from this business
segment during the Year was approximately HK$36.1 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 35.4% as compared
to approximately HK$55.9 million during the Last Year. It
accounted for approximately 28.3% (2021: approximately 9.3%)
of the Group's revenue during the Year.

Segmental loss from this business during the Year was
approximately HK$9.8 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 33.3% as compared to approximately HK$14.7
million during the Last Year. The decrease in segmental
loss during the Year as compared to that of the Last Year is
mainly due to the decrease in deprecation and impairment
of the rights-of-use assets of the Group’s retails shops by
approximately HK$2.7 million and approximately HK$2.0 million
respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

To mitigate the negative financial impact under the
unprecedented challenging operational environment, we have
imposed cost saving measures during the Year including the
reduction the number of retail shops, seeking rental reduction/
relief from landlords and reduction of the shop’s operation
hours to cope with the decrease in business activities
as a result of social distancing measures imposed by the
government. Staff costs were reduced through reduction of
headcount, no pay leave arrangement and the clearance of
the annual leave of the staff. The Group will continue to adopt
cost control measures, closely monitoring the market situation
and timely adjusting the business strategies in view of the
development of the COVID-19 pandemic.

Voluntary winding-up of Fine Ocean Limited

Fine Ocean Limited (“Fine Ocean”), a company incorporated
in Hong Kong with limited liability and an indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, was principally engaged
in trade, wholesale and retail of optical products in Hong
Kong. As at 30th June 2021, Fine Ocean had total assets of
approximately HK$3.5 million, total liabilities of approximately
HK$21.1 million, net liabilities of approximately HK$17.6
million and recorded a loss of approximately HK$9.6 million
for the year ended 30th June 2021. As at 31st December
2021, Fine Ocean had total assets of approximately HK$1.8
million, total liabilities of approximately HK$21.5 million, net
liabilities of approximately HK$19.7 million and recorded a loss
of approximately HK$2.0 million for the six months ended 31st
December 2021.

After due and careful consideration, the shareholders of Fine
Ocean, resolved that Fine Ocean could not by reason of its
liabilities, continue its business, and that it should be wound
up. Accordingly, on 4th January 2022, a special resolution
was duly passed by the shareholders of Fine Ocean to wind
up Fine Ocean by way of creditors’ voluntary liquidation
pursuant to section 228(1)(b) of the Companies (Winding Up &
Miscellaneous Provisions) Ordinance (Cap 32).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEBNWmR DN

Fine Ocean was placed into creditors’ voluntary liquidation
because of its insolvency. The Board believes that the winding-
up of Fine Ocean is in the best interests of the Company and
its shareholders as a whole because the Group may be able to
reduce its losses in connection with Fine Ocean as well as the
Group should be able to reallocate management resources to
develop its existing business.

Following the commencement of the winding-up on 4th
January 2022, the financial results of Fine Ocean was
deconsolidated from those of the Group. The Group recorded a
gain upon the deconsolidation of Fine Ocean of approximately
HK$18.9 million during the Year. On the other hand, the
Group also recorded an impairment loss on amounts due from
Fine Ocean of approximately HK$10.6 million. The voluntary
winding-up of Fine Ocean shall have no material adverse
impact to the Group and the business and operations of the
Group remain normal.

Trading Securities

As at 30th June 2022, the Group's trading securities amounted
to approximately HK$7.5 million (30th June 2021: approximately
HK$76.9 million) which accounted for approximately 0.7% (30th
June 2021: approximately 7.3%) of the Group’s unaudited
consolidated total assets as at 30th June 2022.

The Group's portfolio of trading securities comprised 6
(30th June 2021: 12) equity securities listed in Hong Kong
and engaged in operation of content banking, exploration,
development, production and sale of crude oil and natural gas,
money lending, insurance, solar energy, distribution and trading
of pharmaceutical products and manufacturing and sale of
household products.

During the Year, the wide spread of COVID pandemic and the
global political instabilities pose uncertainties to the global
economy and financial market. The Hang Seng Index was one
of the world's worst-performing major markets during the
Year. Although the Group strategically decreased the portfolio
size of its investment in equity securities listed in Hong Kong
during the Year, the Group still recorded a fair value loss
arising from the change in fair value of trading securities of
approximately HK$7.9 million (2021: approximately HK$12.4
million) for the Year. After taking into account of the dividend
income recognised during the Year, the overall segment loss of
the securities investment segment was approximately HK$6.4
million (2021: approximately HK$12.3 million) during the Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Looking forward, it is expected that market volatility will
continue to persist amid the Russia-Ukraine war and the on-
going COVID-19 pandemic. The Group will take a cautious
approach in managing the investment portfolio with the aim to
reduce the risk and achieve a stable return to the Group.

Leasing of investment properties

The rental income from leasing of investment properties
remained stable during the Year. The Group recorded rental
income of approximately HK$1.1 million (2021: approximately
HK$1.2 million) during the Year from its properties at Woodland
House 1-5, Woodlands Villa, 121 Tong Fuk Village, Tong Fuk,
Lantau Island, New Territories, Hong Kong. It accounted for
approximately 0.9% (2021: approximately 0.2%) of the Group's
revenue during the Year.

The segment profit of this business segment was
approximately HK$0.9 million (2021: approximately HK$0.9
million) during the Year. There were no additions or disposals
of the investment properties during the Year.

Financial Printing

The Group engaged in the business of financial printing
services to provide the services of type-setting, translation,
printing, design, distribution of financial print products and other
related services to the financial sectors in Hong Kong through
Formex Financial Press Limited (“Formex"), a subsidiary of the
Company.

Continuing the position as a quality and cost effective financial
printing service provider, Formex continued to grow in
revenue during the Year. Revenue from this business segment
during the Year was approximately HK$21.0 million (2021:
approximately HK$19.6 million), representing an increase of
approximately 7.1% as compared to that of the Last Year. It
accounts for approximately 16.5% (2021: approximately 3.2%)
of the Group's revenue during the Year. Segmental loss from
the financial printing segment was approximately HK$11.2
million during the Year (2021: approximately HK$4.5 million).
The increase in segmental loss during the Year as compared
to that of the Last Year is mainly due to (i) the increase of the
impairment loss of approximately HK$4.7 million on right of use
asset and property, plant and equipment; and (ii) the increased
expenses of approximately HK$2.0 million on business
development and expansion of teams in preparation of further
client acquisition.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWE DM

Looking forward, with the normalization of prevention
measures of COVID-19 and continuous resumption of business
activities, a gradual warm up is expected in the capital market.
We expect the growing activity of Hong Kong's initial public
offering (“IPO"”) market and the increased number of listed
companies in Hong Kong will bring sustainable growth to the
demand on financial printing services in the coming years.
Having leased the additional office spaces at the World Wide
House in the core area of Central, Hong Kong with the lower
rent due to COVID-19 pandemic, Formex demonstrated an
increasing presence in the market of premium clientele with
its convenient location and top notch facilities. Together with
the experienced team, efficient operations and professional
services, the Group is ready to capture the growing market
demands of financial printing services in Hong Kong in the
coming years.

Discontinued operation — Securities Brokerage Business

The Company engaged in securities brokerage and margin
financing business through its wholly-owned subsidiary China
Jianxin Financial Services Limited (“China Jianxin”). China
Jianxin is a company licensed under the SFO to carry out Type
1 (dealing in securities) and Type 4 (advising on securities)
regulated activities, the principal activities of which are
provision of brokerage services and securities margin financing
to clients (the “Securities Brokerage Business”) during the
years ended 30th June 2016, 30th June 2017 and 30th June
2018. The Group ceased the Securities Brokerage Business on
30th June 2018 and the details of the cessation are set out in
the Company’s announcement dated 17th May 2018.

The Group recorded the loss before tax from the discontinued
Securities and Brokerage Business of approximately HK$0.3
million (2021: approximately HK$0.3 million) during the Year.

Geographical contribution

In terms of geographical contribution, overseas markets
accounted for approximately 79.0% (2021: approximately
87.7%) of the Group's revenue during the Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Selling expenses

Selling expenses for the Year is approximately HK$8.3 million
(2021: approximately HK$15.6 million). The decrease in selling
expenses was due to the decrease in turnover and selling
activities of the Group during the Year.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses for the Year increased by
approximately 9.3% to approximately HK$67.1 million as
compared to approximately HK$61.4 million in the same period
last year. The administrative expenses was stable during the
Year.

OUTLOOK

Looking ahead, the global economy is expected to be clouded
by uncertainties arising from the prolonged COVID-19 pandemic
with the latest widespread outbreak of the COVID-19 variants.
The Group will continue to invest in production of quality films
and expand the financial printing services to cope with the
increase in the market demand. For the trade, wholesales and
retail of optical and watch products and securities investment
business, we will take a prudent approach to control the cost
and enhance the operational efficiency.

The Group will also closely monitor the changing business
environment, adjust our operation strategies and seek out
opportunities for long-term sustainable and steady growth.
We will carefully pursue all potential viable investment and
business opportunities to create long term value for our
shareholders.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWE DM

FINANCIAL RESOURCES, LIQUIDITY AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 30th June 2022, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
of approximately HK$211.8 million (2021: approximately
HK$375.9 million). As at 30th June 2022, the Group had
total assets of approximately HK$1,073.0 million (2021:
approximately HK$1,051.8 million).

The Group’'s gearing ratio as at 30th June 2022 was
approximately 3.1% (as at 30th June 2021: approximately
4.2%), which was calculated on the basis of the Group's total
debt (including borrowings, lease liabilities and bank overdraft)
divided by total equity of the Group.

As at 30th June 2022, the Group's current ratio (defined as
total current assets divided by total current liabilities) was
approximately 0.42 (as at 30th June 2021: approximately 1.11).

Management has closely monitored the development of
the COVID-19 pandemic and its impact on the current
and anticipated liquidity of the Group in the future. Having
considered the Group's financial position as at 30th June 2022,
and the coming operation’s plan, the Directors believe that
the Group will have sufficient financial resources to satisfy its
future working capital and other financing requirements for the
foreseeable future.

The Group incurred financial cost of approximately HK$515,000,
which is attributable to the interest on lease liabilities during
the Year (2021: approximately HK$532,000).

In light of the fact that most of the Group’s transactions are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and United
States dollars, the Group is exposed to foreign exchange
risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with
respect to Renminbi. The Group will continue to take proactive
measures and monitor its exposure to the movements of these
currencies closely.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 30th June 2022, the Group had Shareholders’ capital of
approximately HK$9.1 million (30th June 2021: approximately
HK$9.1 million). The Shareholders’ capital of the Company
is constituted of 906,632,276 shares (30th June 2021:
906,632,276 shares).

The Company did not carry out any fund raising activities by
issuing new shares of the Company during the Year (2021: Nil).

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
ASSETS

The Group did not have any material acquisition or disposal of
assets during the Year (2021: Nil).

THE PLEDGE OF GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 30th June 2022, none of the Group's assets was pledged
to secure any liabilities (2021: Nil).

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 30th June 2022, the Group employed 121 staff (2021:
143). Remuneration is reviewed annually and certain staff
are entitled to commission. In addition to basic salaries, staff
benefits included discretionary bonus, medical insurance
scheme and mandatory provident fund.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed in the annual
general meeting held on 2nd December 2013, the Company
conditionally approved and adopted a share option scheme
in compliance with the Listing Rules (the “Share Option
Scheme”). Details of the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

(1) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant share options to selected Participants
(as defined below) as incentive and/or rewards for their
contributions and support to the Group and any invested
entity.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEBNWmR DN

(2)

Participants of the Share Option Scheme

The Board may, at its discretion, invite any person
belonging to any of the following classes of participants
for their contributions and support to the Group and any
invested entity (the “Participants” and individually, a
“Participant”) to take up share options to subscribe for
shares.

(a)

any full-time employee of the Company, any of its
subsidiary or any invested entity, including (without
limitation) any executive director of the Company,
any of its subsidiary or invested entity;

any non-executive director (including independent
non-executive directors) of the Company, any of its
subsidiary or any invested entity;

any supplier of goods or services to any member of
the Group or any invested entity;

any customer of the Group or any invested entity;

any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technical support to the
Group or any invested entity;

any shareholder of any member of the Group or
any invested entity or any holder of any securities
issued by any member of the Group or any invested
entity;

any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant
to any area of business or business development
of any member of the Group or any invested entity;
and

any joint venture partner or counter-party to
business operation or business arrangements of the
Group.

(2)
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(3)

(4)

(5)

Management Discussion and Analysis

Maximum number of share options available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme

(@) The maximum number of shares of the Company
which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding share option granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any
other schemes for the time being of the Company
shall not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from
time to time. Share options of the Company which
are lapsed or cancelled for the time being shall not
be counted for the purpose of calculating the said
30% limit; and

(b)  The maximum number of shares of the Company
which may be issued upon exercise of all options
granted and to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme is an amount equivalent to 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue as at the dates
of approval of the Share Option Scheme unless
approval for refreshing the 10% limit from the
Shareholders has been obtained.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares of the Company issued upon
exercise of the share options granted and to be granted
to each grantee under the Share Option Scheme and
any other schemes for the time being of the Company
(including both exercised and outstanding share options)
in any 12-month period up to the date of grant to each
grantee must not exceed 1% of the aggregate number of
shares for the time being in issue.

Remaining life and exercisable period of
the share options

There is no general requirement that a share option
must be held for any minimum period before it can be
exercised but the Board is empowered to impose at
its discretion any such minimum period at the time of
grant of any particular share option. A share option may
be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during a period of 10 years
commencing on the date of grant and expiring on the last
day of the said 10 year period.

(3)

(4)
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENwWE DN

(6)

(7)

Payment on acceptance of the share options offer

A sum of HK$1 is payable by the Participant on
acceptance of the share option offer.

Basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price for shares under the Share Option
Scheme should be a price notified by the Board to a
Participant to whom any offer of the grant of a share option
is made and shall be at least the higher of (a) the closing
price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant which must be
a business day; and (b) the average closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant, provided that the subscription price
should not be lower than the nominal value of a share.

No share options under the Share Option Scheme was issued
and outstanding during the Year (2021: Nil).

(6)

(7)
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. LAM Shiu Ming, Daneil, aged 60, is the founder and
chairman of the Group. He is involved in marketing, corporate
strategy, business planning and development and overall
management of the Group. Mr. Lam has over 30 years of
experience in the film industry in Hong Kong. He was awarded
the “Young Industrialist Awards of Hong Kong” by the
Federation of Hong Kong Industries in 2002.

Mr. LAM Kit Sun, aged 45, is the chief financial officer and
company secretary of the Group. Prior to joining the Group in
2013, he has over 20 years' experience in the field of financial
reporting, financial management and audit experience in the
PRC and Hong Kong. He graduated from The Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology with a bachelor’s degree
in Business Administration in Accounting. Mr. Lam is a fellow
and practicing member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants ("HKICPA"), a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (“ACCA"), an
associate of The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute
and a non-practicing member of the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Since August 2022, Mr. Lam has
been an independent non-executive director of Sinopharm Tech
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8156), whose shares are listed
on the GEM of the Stock Exchange. He joined the Group in
August 2013.
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EERSREEAERBN

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. LAM Chi Keung (“Mr. CK Lam”), aged 52, holds a
bachelor’s degree of science in accounting awarded by Brigham
Young University-Hawaii in 1996. He also obtained a master's
degree of science in e-Commerce from The Chinese University
of Hong Kong in 2002. Mr. CK Lam is a fellow of the HKICPA
and a member of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He has over 23 years of experience in accounting
and corporate finance. Since December 2016, Mr. CK Lam
has been an independent non-executive director of Nanfang
Communication Holdings Limited (stock code: 1617), whose
shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr.
CK Lam joined the Group in December 2013.

Mr. CHOI Wing Koon, aged 45, is currently the financial
controller and company secretary of Huanxi Media Group
Limited (stock code: 1003), the shares of which are listed on
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Choi holds a bachelor’s
degree of business administration in accounting awarded by the
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in 1999. Mr.
Choi also obtained a master degree of business administration
awarded by the University of Hong Kong in 2014. Mr. Choi is
a fellow of the ACCA and a member of the HKICPA. Mr. Choi
has over 15 years of experience in accounting and company
secretarial field. Mr. Choi is currently the independent non-
executive director of KuangChi Science Limited (stock code:
439), the shares of which are listed on Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. He joined the Group in December 2013.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

Mr. TANG Yiu Wing, aged 55, is a practising solicitor in Hong
Kong, and the founder and a partner of Ivan Tang & Co.. He
holds a bachelor’s degree in Laws, a postgraduate certificate
in Laws from The University of Hong Kong and a master's
degree in Laws from The City University of Hong Kong. He is
a member of The Law Society of Hong Kong and is admitted
as a solicitor of the Supreme Court of England and Wales and
a barrister and solicitor of the Supreme Court of Tasmania. Mr.
Tang has been an independent non-executive director of Goldin
Financial Holdings Limited (Stock code: 530), a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, since September
2006. Mr. Tang was also (i) an independent non-executive
director of Solomon Worldwide Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
8133) from April 2015 to June 2022; (i) an independent non-
executive director of Zhejiang United Investment Holdings
Group Limited (Stock Code: 8366) from July 2017 to June
2019; and (iii) an independent non-executive director of PF
Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8221) from December
2020 to January 2021, all of these companies are listed on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange. He joined the Group in October
2017.
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Corporate Governance Report
S EERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to attain and maintain high
standards of corporate governance best suited to the needs
and interests of the Group as it believes that effective
corporate governance practices are fundamental to
safeguarding interests of Shareholders and other stakeholders
and enhancing shareholder value. Accordingly, the Company
has adopted and applied corporate governance principles that
emphasise a quality board of Directors (the “Board”), effective
risk management and internal control systems, stringent
disclosure practices, transparency and accountability save as
specifically disclosed below.

The Board has adopted the code provisions as set out in
the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report (the “CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing
Rules”). Continuous efforts are made to review and enhance
the Group's internal controls and procedures in light of changes
in regulations and developments in best practices.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE (“CG CODE")
AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company has, throughout the Year, complied with the
code provisions contained in the CG Code except for (i) the
code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code for the separation of the
roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEO") and (ii)
code provision A2.7 of the CG Code requiring the Chairman to
meet with the non-executive Directors as described below.

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code sets out that the roles of
the Chairman and CEO should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual. The Company does not at
present have any officer holding the position of CEO. Mr. Lam
Shiu Ming, Daneil is the founder and Chairman of the Company
and has also carried out the responsibilities of CEO. Mr. Lam
possesses the essential leadership skills to manage the Board
and extensive knowledge in the business of the Group. The
Board considers the present structure to be more suitable to
the Group because it can promote the efficient formulation and
implementation of the Group's strategies.
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Code provision of A.2.7 of the CG Code requires the Chairman
to hold meetings at least annually with the non-executive
Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
without the executive Directors present. As Mr. Lam Shiu
Ming, Daneil, the Chairman, is also an executive Director, the
Company has therefore deviated from this code provision.

THE BOARD

Duties and Composition of the Board

The Board is collectively responsible for the oversight
of the management of business, strategic decisions and
financial performance of the Group for the best interests of
the Shareholders. The Board has delegated the day-to-day
management power, administration and operation of the Group
to the executive Directors and the senior management of the
Company. The Board regularly reviews its arrangement on
delegation of responsibilities and authority to ensure that such
delegations are appropriate in view of the Group's prevailing
circumstances.

The following matters (including changes to any such matters)
are reserved for the approval of the Board:

(@) any matter determined by the Board to be material
involving any conflict of interest for a substantial
Shareholder or a Director;

(b) any matter relating to the formulation of the Company’s
strategies and directions including:

(i) policies relating to the overall strategic direction and
strategic plans of the Company;

(i) policies relating to key business and financial
objectives of the Company;

(i)  policies relating to the declaration of dividend; and

(iv) the entering into of contracts involving acquisitions,
investments, disposal of assets or any significant
capital expenditure which are deemed to be material
by the Board.
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i

(c)

RERARE

financial controls, compliance and risk management:

()  the approval of annual operating and capital
expenditure budgets for the Company;

(i) the approval of the Company's consolidated
financial statements and published reports;

(i) the establishment and review of the effectiveness
of the Company’s systems of internal control and
risk management process; and

(iv) the adoption of, or approval for any significant
changes in, accounting policies or procedures of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

changes to the Company's capital structure, including
reductions of share capital, share buy-backs or issue of
new securities, other than in accordance with the terms
of the share option scheme(s) or other incentive schemes
adopted by the Company from time to time;

major appointments and removals:

() appointments to the Board, taking into account any
recommendations of the nomination committee of
the Company (the “Nomination Committee”);

(i) the appointment of the Chairman;

(i)  recommendation to the Shareholders on the
appointment or removal of the external auditor after
taking into consideration the recommendations of
the audit committee of the Company (the "Audit
Committee"); and

(iv) the appointment or removal of the company
secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”).
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(f)  delegation of authority:

() changes to the terms of reference or membership
of any committee of the Board;

(i) changes to the authority delegated to the Chairman
and the senior management; and

(i) matters which exceed the authority delegated to
the Chairman and the senior management.

(g) the adoption, review and approval of changes to the
Corporate Governance Practice Manual of the Company,
the Code of Ethics and Securities Transactions applicable
to the Directors and senior management of the Group.

The Board currently comprises a total of five Directors, with
two executive Directors, and three independent non-executive
Directors. The names and biographies of the Directors are set
out on pages 19 to 21 of this annual report.

The independent non-executive Directors are all experienced
individuals, all of them have accounting professional
qualifications or a practising solicitor. Their mix of professional
skills and experience is beneficial to the Board to formulate the
long-term business strategies and monitor the operational and
financial matters of the Group.

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers all of the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent.

The list of the Directors has been published on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange respectively, and
is disclosed in all corporate communications issued by the
Company pursuant to the Listing Rules from time to time.

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance
to cover the liabilities of the Directors that may arise out of the
corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an
annual basis.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING/
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code,
all Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure that their contributions to the Board remains
informed and relevant.

To assist Directors’ continuing professional development, the
Company encourages Directors to attend relevant seminars to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company
will also update the Directors of any material changes in the
Listing Rules and corporate governance practices from time to
time.

All current Directors, namely, Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil, Mr.
Lam Kit Sun, Mr. Lam Chi Keung, Mr. Choi Wing Koon and
Mr. Tang Yiu Wing, had participated in continuous professional
development with respect to directors’ duties, relevant
programmes and seminars or had perused reading materials
and updated information in relation to business and industrial
development.

The Company is committed to arranging and funding suitable
training to all Directors for their continuous professional
development. Each Director is briefed and updated from
time to time to ensure that he is fully aware of his roles,
functions, duties and responsibilities under the Listing Rules
and applicable legal and regulatory requirements and the
governance policies of the Group.

A record of the training received by the respective Directors are
kept and updated by the Company Secretary.
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APPOINTMENTS AND RE-ELECTION
OF DIRECTORS

The appointment of a new Director is made on the
recommendation of the Nomination Committee or by the
Shareholders in general meeting. Any Director who is appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy on the Board shall retire at
the next annual general meeting.

Currently, all independent non-executive Directors are appointed
for a specific term of three years pursuant to code provision
A4.1 of the CG Code. All Directors are subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years and shall be eligible
for re-election in accordance with the provision of the Listing
Rules and the Bye-law(s). At least one-third of Directors shall
retire from office every year at the Company’s annual general
meeting.

Mr. Lam Kit Sun and Mr. Tang Yiu Wing will retire by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with Bye-law 87(1) and Bye-law 87(2) of the bye-
laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”) and Mr. Lam Kit Sun
and Mr. Tang Yiu Wing being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election at such meeting.

For the biographical details of the Director who will stand for re-
election and the candidates who will be proposed to be elected
as Directors, please refer to the circular containing the notice
of the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to
be despatched.
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BOARD MEETINGS

Each year, the Board normally holds two regular board
meetings at approximately half year interval. 4 board meetings
were convened during the Year and the attendances of each
Director at these meetings are set out as follows:

Board meeting

Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil (Chairman) 4/4
Mr. Lam Kit Sun 4/4
Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Lam Chi Keung 4/4
Mr. Choi Wing Koon 4/4
Mr. Tang Yiu Wing 4/4

ANNUAL AND SPECIAL GENERAL MEETINGS

The Board is responsible for maintaining an on-going dialogue
with the Shareholders and in particular, communicates with
them in annual general meetings or other special general
meetings and encourages their participation.

1 annual general meeting and no special general meetings
were convened during the Year and the attendances of each

Director at these general meetings are set out as follows:

Annual General

Meeting
Executive Directors
Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil (Chairman) 11
Mr. Lam Kit Sun A
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Lam Chi Keung 11
Mr. Choi Wing Koon 11
Mr. Tang Yiu Wing 0/1

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the remuneration committee of the
Company (the “Remuneration Committee”), the Nomination
Committee and the Audit Committee.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee with specific written terms of
reference (amended on 29th February 2012) was established by
the Company on 15th July 2005. The Remuneration Committee
currently comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Choi Wing Koon (as chairman), Mr. Lam
Chi Keung and Mr. Tang Yiu Wing and an executive Director,
namely, Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil. The terms of reference of
the Remuneration Committee are available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company respectively.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
policy and structure of the Directors and senior management,
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy.

The model of the Remuneration Committee adopted by the
Company is to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and
senior management.

The main principles of the Group's remuneration policies are:

(@) no Director should be involved in deciding his or her own
remuneration;

(b)  remuneration should be determined by taking into
consideration factors such as salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment, levels of responsibilities,
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and
desirability of performance-based remuneration;

(c) the management’s remuneration proposals should be
reviewed and approved by reference to corporate goal
and objectives resolved by the Board from time to time;
and

(d) recommendations should be made by the Remuneration
Committee to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management.
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2 committee meetings were convened during the Year and the
attendances of each committee member at the meeting is set
out as follows:

Attendance
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Choi Wing Koon (Chairman) 2/2
Mr. Lam Chi Keung 2/2
Mr. Tang Yiu Wing 2/2
Executive Director
Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil 2/2

The Remuneration Committee assists the Group in the
administration of a fair and transparent procedure for setting
remuneration policies for all Directors and senior executives
of the Group. The responsibility for reviewing and determining
the remuneration package of individual Executive Directors
and senior management of the Group is delegated to the
Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee has reviewed and discussed the
remuneration of the Directors and senior management. The
Remuneration Committee has also approved the remuneration
and the discretionary bonuses of the executive Directors and
the senior management of the Group by reference to their
respective levels of responsibilities and performance, industry
benchmarks, prevailing market conditions and the Group’s
financial performance. No Director was involved in deciding his
own remuneration.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee with specific written terms of
reference (amended on 30th August 2013) was established by
the Company on 15th July 2005. The Nomination Committee
currently comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Lam Chi Keung (as chairman), Mr. Choi
Wing Koon and Mr. Tang Yiu Wing and an executive Director,
namely, Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil. The terms of reference of
the Nomination Committee are available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company respectively.
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The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size, composition and diversity
(including but not limited to gender, age, culture and educational
background, ethnicity, skills knowledge and length of service)
of the Board at least annually and making recommendations
to the Board regarding any proposed changes to complement
the Company’'s corporate strategy as well as assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in attaining its strategic objectives and
achieving sustainable and balanced development of the Group.
In view of the new amendments of the CG Code in respect of
diversity of board members that has come into effect on 1st
September 2013, the Board has formulated and adopted its
diversity policy on 30th August 2013.

The nominations were made in accordance with the objective
criteria (including without limitation, gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service), with due regard for
the benefits of diversity. During the year, the Nomination
Committee conducted a review of the Board’'s composition.
The Nomination Committee reviewed the Board structure, size
and diversity annually and recommends any proposed changes
to the Board to complement Company’s corporate strategies.

1 committee meeting was convened during the Year and the
attendances of each committee member at the meeting is set
out as follows:

Attendance
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Lam Chi Keung (Chairman) 11
Mr. Choi Wing Koon IVAl
Mr. Tang Yiu Wing 11
Executive Director
Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil 1
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee on 11th October
1999. The written terms of reference (amended on 29th
February 2012), which describe the authority and duties of the
Audit Committee, were prepared and adopted with reference
to “A Guide for Effective Audit Committee” published by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and in
accordance with the CG Code. The Audit Committee currently
comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Choi Wing Koon (as chairman), Mr. Lam Chi Keung and Mr.
Tang Yiu Wing. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee
are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company respectively.

The Audit Committee meets, at least twice a year, with the
external auditor to discuss any area of concern during the
audit or review. The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for
the appointment, reappointment and removal of the external
auditor, review of the Group’s financial information and
oversight of the Group's financial and accounting practices,
internal control and risk management. It is also responsible for
reviewing the interim and final results of the Group.

The audited consolidated financial statements for the Year have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

4 committee meetings were convened during the Year and the
attendances of the each committee member at these meetings
are set out as follows:

Attendance
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Choi Wing Koon (Chairman) 4/4
Mr. Lam Chi Keung 4/4
Mr. Tang Yiu Wing 4/4
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The Audit Committee has reviewed the terms of engagement
of the external auditor, the revised accounting standards, the
interim consolidated financial statements for the six months
ended 31st December 2021 and annual consolidated financial
statements for the Year. Based on its review and discussions
with management and the external auditor, the Audit
Committee was satisfied that the annual consolidated financial
statements for the Year were prepared in accordance with
applicable accounting standards and fairly present the Group's
financial position and results for the Year.

The Audit Committee also reviewed the internal control
systems and met with the external auditor to discuss the
nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligation prior to
the commencement of and after the completion of the audit.
For details about the internal control review, please refer to the
section headed "Risk Management and Internal Control” in this
report below.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

No corporate governance committee has been established
and the Board is responsible for, amongst other things,
the development and review of the policies and practices
on corporate governance of the Group and monitoring the
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, reviewing
and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, and
reviewing the corporate governance compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the annual report.

The corporate governance report has been reviewed by the
Board in discharge of its corporate governance function.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for establishing, maintaining and
reviewing of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems. The Board must ensure that the Company establishes
and maintains effective risk management and internal control
systems to meet the objectives and safeguard the interests
of the Shareholders and assets of the Company. The internal
control systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failures to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance.
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The Board oversees the Group's overall risk management and
internal control systems on an ongoing basis through identifying
and grading risk components, perceiving control impact and
facilitating remediation plan. The development of our risk
management and internal control systems are largely based on
the framework as set down by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSQO). The risk
management framework, coupled with our internal controls,
ensures the risks associated with our different business units
are effectively monitored, and are in line with the Group's risk
appetite.

The Group adopts the top-down approach to monitor the
principal risks affecting the business. The Board reviews and
approves the effectiveness and adequacy of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems on an annual basis.

In respect to the absence of a separate internal audit
department in the Group, the Group reviews annually on
whether there is a need for such functional department. Given
the possibility to engage external professional assistance,
the Board opposes to divert resources to establish a separate
internal audit department.

During the Year, an external consultant had been engaged
by the Group to facilitate the Board and the Audit Committee
for the evaluation of the Group's risk management and
internal control systems. Through conducting an annual risk
assessment with the assistance of the external consultant, the
Group had identified and assessed the impact of the strategic
risks, operational risks, financial risks and compliance risks of
its major businesses. A three-year rolling internal audit plan
was devised by the Group under a risk based approach with
reference to the results of the annual risk assessment. An
annual internal control review was performed by the external
consultant according to the approved internal audit plan
with a view to making recommendations for improving and
strengthening the internal control systems. The Board will
continue to work with the external consultant to discuss and
follow-up on the status of remediation of the internal control
weaknesses and to monitor the risks of the Group in the
coming years.

With respect to the monitoring and disclosure of inside
information, the Group has adopted a policy on disclosure
of inside information with the aim to ensure the insiders are
abiding by the confidentiality requirement and are fulfilling the
disclosure obligation of the inside information.

ExgEBHEMNMFERRAND KR - BR
ZHIRR M HEE RN MG EEE A RE
MERREREERAIMEZRR - HFNE
REE R ARRE I R MM B E R ERERE
BRERVEREZESTEBNELEAZSR
BREMER - AREEERERERMANA
e JHERERMANSBERGELER
MERSIANEE  BEFEEREENAR
B e

AEERMAE LM M EAEERFERBN
TERR EZSSFEEREARKER
REERAEZERRNBRMELEE N -

ARASEEEFHANIETIN - AEE
BERVEE AR ERILLBEEM - BN
ZRIIMEEALHEOAREE  EFEER
o MERRLEBOA TR BT -

RAFE  RNEECZE—RIMNSER -
HHEEERBEFZEEFHEAKENRER
EERABEIZERR - EINEBEBEOHE T
ETFERBFGE - ARECD B RG
TEXHPERRAR  EZRR - MBERR
ReafiRBnEE AEE2EFERRF
HER - ARBRASERNTTERE —E=F%
BAMEE - SNERARBECHENR
MEAFEETFREABEEERES UK
ERMBRABEERAGREER - EF2H
FrAE RN R S E AR i R BR A AR EE 1E
N R ) RO TR I B 1R R SR B R SR B )
e

FARARHEEZEERKE  A5ECRMN
—ERARBERERE  EERRABAE

ABTRERERBITARBEERER

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2022



Corporate Governance Report

Taking the above into consideration, the Audit Committee
reviews the effectiveness of the Group's internal control
system and reports the relevant results to the Board. For the
Year, the Board considered that a review of the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems had
been conducted and considered that the risk management and
internal control systems were effective and adequate.

DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the
Group and ensure that the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the Year have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and Hong Kong
Accounting Standard and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and disclosure
requirements of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong).

The statement of the external auditor of the Company,
ZhongHui Anda CPA Limited, about their reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor's Report from
pages 75 to 79 of this annual report.

AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
ZhongHui Anda CPA Limited who will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-appointment. For the Year, the remuneration
payable to auditors is set out as follows:
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lam Kit Sun is the company secretary of the Company.
His biographical details are set out under the section headed
“BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT" of Directors and Senior Management Profile
on page 19 of this annual report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

During the Year, the Company adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code") as the
code for dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors.
Having made specific enquiries, all the Directors confirmed that
they have complied with the Model Code throughout the Year.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide a communication
channel between the Shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of the Company shall be held each year and
at a place as may be determined by the Board. Each general
meeting, other than an annual general meeting, shall be called
a special general meeting. The Board may whenever it thinks
fit convene special general meetings.

The procedures for Shareholders to convene a special
general meeting

Shareholders holding at the date of the deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary at the
Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong, to require
a special general meeting to be convened by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of
such requisition.
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The procedures for sending enquiries to the Board

The enquiries must be in writing with the detail contact
information of the requisitionists and deposited with the Board
or the Company Secretary at the Company's principal place of
business in Hong Kong.

The procedures for Shareholders to put forward
proposals at Shareholders” meetings

To put forward proposals at an annual general meeting, or
a special general meeting, the Shareholders should submit
a written notice of those proposals with the detail contact
information to the Company Secretary at the Company's
principal place of business in Hong Kong. The request will be
verified with the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong (the
“Share Registrar”) and upon their confirmation that the request
is proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the
Board to include the resolution in the agenda for the general
meeting.

The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for
consideration of the proposal raised by the Shareholders
concerned at an annual general meeting or a special general
meeting varies according to the nature of the proposal, and the
relevant notice periods are set out as follows:

° At least 14 clear days’ notice (the notice period must
include 10 clear Business Days (Note)) in writing if
the proposal constitutes an ordinary resolution of the
Company in a special general meeting.

° At least 21 clear days’ notice (the notice period must
include 10 clear Business Days (Note)) in writing if the
proposal constitutes a special resolution of the Company
in a special general meeting.

° At least 21 clear days’ notice (the notice period must
include 20 clear Business Days (Note)) in writing if the
proposal constitutes an ordinary resolution or a special
resolution of the Company in an annual general meeting.

Note: Business Day means any day on which the Stock Exchange is

open for the business of dealing in securities.
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The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director

According to the Bye-laws, no person other than a retiring
Director shall, unless recommended by the Directors for
election, be eligible for election to the office of Director at
any general meeting, unless a notice in writing signed by
a Shareholder (other than the person to be proposed) duly
qualified to attend and vote at the meeting for which such
notice is given of his intention to propose such person for
election as a director and also a notice in writing by that
person of his willingness to be elected (including that person’s
biographical details as required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing
Rules) shall be lodged with the Company Secretary at the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong or the
Share Registrar’s place of business in Hong Kong provided that
the minimum length of the period, during which such notice(s)
are given, shall be at least seven days and that (if the notices
are submitted after the dispatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election) the period for lodgment of
such notice(s) shall commence on the day after the dispatch of
the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election
and end no later than seven days prior to the date of such
general meeting.

If such notice(s) are received less than ten business days prior
to the date of such general meeting, the Company will need to
consider the adjournment of such general meeting in order to
allow the Shareholders fourteen clear days' notice (the notice
period must include ten Business Days (Note)) of the proposal.

Note: Business Day means any day on which The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited is open for the business of dealing in
securities.

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of
the Shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by poll
except where the Chairman, in good faith, decides to allow a
resolution which relates purely to a procedural or administrative
matter to be voted by a show of hands.
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SHAREHOLDERS COMMUNICATION POLICY

The Company has adopted a Shareholders Communication
Policy to set out the Company’s procedures in providing the
Shareholders and the investment community with ready, equal
and timely access to balanced and understandable information
about the Company, in order to enable the Shareholders to
exercise their rights in an informed manner, and to allow
the Shareholders and the investment community to engage
actively with the Company.

Pursuant to code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the
chairman of the Board, the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee, or in their absence,
another member of the Board, committees or an appointed
representative, will attend the forthcoming annual general
meeting to answer questions of the Shareholders. The
Company will also invite representatives of the Auditors to
attend the forthcoming annual general meeting to answer the
Shareholders’ questions about the conduct of the audit, the
preparation and content of the auditors’ report, the accounting
policies and auditor independence.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy on 27th September
2019 ("Dividend Policy”) which shall take effect on 27th
September 2019. The Dividend Policy allows the Shareholders
to participate in the Company's profits by provision of dividends
whilst preserving the Company’s liquidity to capture future
growth opportunities.

According to the Dividend Policy, the Board shall consider
the following factors, among others, before proposing and
declaring dividends:

(i) the Company's operation and financial performance;

(ii) the Company’s liquidity conditions;
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(iii) the Company’s capital requirements and future funding
needs;

(iv) the Company’s contractual restrictions;
(v) the Company's availability of reserves; and
(vi) the prevailing economic climate.

The declaration of dividends by the Company is also subject
to any restrictions under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
the Listing Rules, Bye-laws and any applicable laws, rules and
regulations.

The Dividend Policy will be reviewed from time to time by the
Board and may adopt changes as appropriate at the relevant
time. There can be no assurance that dividends will be paid in
any particular amount for any given period.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The memorandum of association of the Company and the Bye-
laws are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company respectively.
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Environmental, Social & Governance Report

SCOPE AND REPORTING PERIOD

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited
(the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (thereafter “Group” or
“We") is pleased to present this Environmental, Social and
Governance ("ESG") Report ("ESG Report”) which summaries
the Group's ESG policies, initiatives, approach, strategy as well
as performance of the ESG’s matters.

REPORTING SCOPE

The ESG Report is prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide ("ESG
Reporting Guide"”) in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

The scope of this report will cover the Group’s whole range
of business activities, including, video distribution, film
distribution and exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of film
rights (“Film Business”), trading, wholesaling and retailing
of optical products and watches (“Retail Business”), leasing
of investment properties, securities investment, provisions
of type-setting, translation, printing, design, distribution of
financial print products and other related services (“Financial
Printing Business”) for the year ended 30th June 2022.

It is also the intention of the management to provide an
overview of the Group’s direction in managing ESG related
matters and the Group's initiatives on further developing
the concept of ESG to employees, customers and suppliers,
putting them into practices in our daily operations, driving for
ESG initiatives throughout the Group, and communicating our
ESG performance result with our stakeholders by this ESG
Report.
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ESG GOVERNANCE

Delivering the best entertainment, services and products
while generating revenue and profit for our shareholders,
and recognising the importance and contributing to both
the environment and local community have always been
one of our guiding principles. ESG is thus considered a high
priority within the Group, and is especially championed by our
senior management. We endeavors to develop its business
sustainably, and contribute positively to the environment and
the society where its business operates.

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) bears
the ultimate responsibility in ESG governance and sets forth
the overall ESG policies, approach, and strategy. Further, the
Board is obligated to evaluate and determine ESG-related risks
and ensure effective ESG risk management and internal control
systems are in place. Disclosures in this ESG Report are
approved by the Board.

With powers delegated by the Board, ESG working
group, which is comprised of the senior management and
representatives from different departments, was set up to
implement the Board's ESG strategies and policies across
departments of the Group, carry out materiality assessments,
evaluate the effectiveness of the Group's ESG related risk
management and report its recommendations to the Board.

An information and data collection template is used for
collecting ESG information and data from relevant departments
and business units of the Group. The ESG Report is prepared
based on the information and data collected. The ESG working
group also supervises the collection of ESG data and assists
the preparation of this ESG Report. Key performance indicators
relating to the Group’s environmental and social performance
are highlighted in the paragraphs below.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

We understand fully that standalone effort is minimal and
therefore see the engagement of its stakeholders as essential.
To extend its efforts to a broader audience, we had consulted
both its internal and external stakeholders on its potential
impact on the environment and society as a result of its
business operations. We understand and values relationship
with customers and suppliers, and thus included both parties
as our consultation targets.

The table below presents key stakeholders of the Group as
well as how the Group communicate with them through a
variety of engagement channels during the year.

Internal Stakeholders

o The Board

° Management

° General Staff

External Stakeholders

o Shareholders

° Customers

° Suppliers

° Local Community Groups

We engage our internal and external stakeholders through a
variety of communication channels, including but not limited
to the Company’s annual general meetings, the Group’s
annual and interim reports, ESG report, Company’s website,
shareholders meetings, company activities, customer

satisfaction survey, community services and business
meetings.
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REPORTING PRINCIPLES

During the preparation process of this ESG report, the Group
adheres to the following fundamental reporting principles
outlined in the ESG Reporting Guide:

(1)

(2)

(3)

Materiality analysis

Materiality analysis is performed annually to identify
the key ESG issues that are material to our business
operations. We invite various groups of key stakeholders
to participate in a stakeholder engagement exercise
to identify the material sustainability topics for the
ESG Report. We also identify most relevant issues by
reviewing peer companies’ ESG priorities. The results
were then reviewed and approved by the Board.

In this reporting year, a total of thirteen material topics
were identified including (i) greenhouse gas (“GHG")
emission; (i) waste management; (iii) use of resources;
(iv) reducing GHG emission and resources conservation;
(v) employment, labour standard and practices; (vi)
equal opportunities, diversity and anti-discrimination;
(vii) occupational health and safety; (viii) development
and training; (ix) supply chain operating practices and
management; (x) product responsibility; (xi) anti-corruption
and anti-money laundering; (xii) data privacy compliance;
and (xiii) community. In response to the impact that these
issues may cause to our business operations, we have
formulated suitable measures and policies to address
these issues. For details of the policies and the relevance
of the topics to our operations, please refer to the
corresponding chapters of this report. We welcome any
feedback and comments from stakeholders to advance
towards a sustainable future.

Quantitative

We compared the year-to-year environmental and
social data and discussed with the management on its
implications.

Consistency

We adopted a consistent environmental data treatment
approach to allow a fair comparison of our environmental
performance over time.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE

The Group's business does not involve in the production-
related direct air, water, or land pollutions, and thus do not
contribute to any material impact in these areas. For the year
ended 30th June, 2022, there were no confirmed incidents
of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations relating
to air and climate resilience and GHG emissions, and illegal
generation and disposal of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste.

The Group recognises the importance of developing policies
and strategies in line with best practices to address climate
change risks and mitigate the associated impacts on the
Group's business operations. Climate change risks, such
as rising sea levels, extreme weather events and rising
temperatures, can impact the Group’s business, assets and
stakeholders. Therefore, we are committed to doing its part
to combat climate change and conserve our recourses by
monitoring the Group’s most relevant environmental issues as
follow:

° GHG emission;
o Waste management;
° Use of resources; and

° Reducing GHG emission and resources conservation

GHG Emission

The Group's primary business activities branch into Film
Business, Retail Business and Financial Printing Business. The
business nature of the Group’s Film Business, Retail Business
and Financial Printing Business does not involve direct or
significant emission of GHG from industrial or combustion
process. In other words, the Group concluded that there is no
material impact found, through direct GHG emission, to the
environment as a result of its business operations.
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Regardless, the Group brought itself forward to examine Eimilfi  NEBP N EEFBEEBEL
the indirect GHG emissions generated via its operations. E’Uﬁaﬂﬁiﬁﬁﬁmﬁmﬁl BiEET - A%
The assessment indicated that electricity consumption, fuel BEEHXBEHANEIMEEZEREREE
consumption of own vehicles for transportation, staffs’ air B ={EJREE - Atk - NEE g it mEEHE K
travel are three of the most significant contributions to such.  ¥R&ZF :
The Group thus reports on the captioned air emissions as
follow:
GHG emissions from the Group's operations: REREEEBHRE RSB -
For the year For the year
ended ended
30th June 2022 30th June 2021
BE—-—T_—— HE_ZT—-—F
/\H :+ H / \ H :+ El
Unit By ILEE IEFE
Scope 1 Direct GHG HE1EZEZE tonnes CO, ME-_S(LIREE 224.4 46.1
emissions TEEHEM equivalent
Scope 2 Indirect GHG ~ #E2E#EAZE  tonnes CO, MI-&LIxE= 418.9 587.8
emissions FEEHER equivalent
Scope 3 Other indirect ~ #ESHABEE tonnes CO, WI—&/LIxE=E 0.5 0.8
GHG emissions BEREH equivalent
e
Total GHG emission BEREHM  tonnes CO, ME_SILEE 643.7 634.8
w=E equivalent
GHG emission intensity JEZEREHMN  tonnes CO, WA — &b 0.005 0.0011
B equivalent/ BEE S
revenue (FBm)
(HK$'000)

Due to the nature of the Group’s operation, emissions of
nitrogen, oxides, sulphur oxides, particular matter and other
air pollutants are not considered significant in the Group's
operations.

The Group will continue to monitor its operational activities
to ensure its GHG emission maintains at a satisfactory
level. Further information shall be disclosed should there be
significant changes to the reported GHG emission levels.
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Waste Management

The Group’s core business involves only Film Business, Retail
Business and Financial Printing Services. However, there were
an insignificant amount of chemicals used during the filming
process (<1 tonne), of which were disposed of safely and
legally by licensed operators. Overall, the Group was not aware
of any non-compliance with related laws or regulations in
regards to such matters and will continue its strict monitoring
practices.

For non-hazardous waste, the Group had been cautious about
waste generation from daily activities, and have worked closely
with employees and partnered with suppliers on reducing solid
waste. The Group promoted the culture of recycling, and had
placed recycling bins in easy-to-access locations to increase
employees’ awareness on recycling. The Group promotes the
paper-less working environment. The Group’s office, retail
and other business activities generated daily wastes from its
operation. For this reporting period, Wastes were produced as
follows:

Unit

Hazardous Waste BEEEEY Total Sum
(tonne)

Non-Hazardous Waste  EZEEEEY) Total Sum
(tonne)

Use of Resources

The Group is an environmentally friendly company, and actively
promotes the culture of “Efficient & Green” operations.
Continued from last year, the Group had continued its efforts
to encourage employees to consume resources smartly,
particularly on paper and electricity.
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For the year For the year

ended ended

30th June 2022 30th June 2021
BE-ZT_—F H=z_2—_—%F
~NAB=+H ~A=+H

By IEFE IEFE
42 2 (W) <0.1 <0.1
48 2 () 231.7 70.5
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Initiatives such as the adoption of energy conservation practices  ERMETRLE N S RENETEXRNER AEH
were successfully implemented in the offices in the past years. 1T - i 8 TIRMHESFHNBRFEA LG
Latest environmental trends and green tips were available Bit+ @ HERBGMULEAETOFEAER
to employees as constant reminders for responsible use of KAZR o 4N BFICHEESENREE
natural resources. In addition, suitable facilities management 12 - LB RIZE BETRAE TR R K E T4
were in place to identify building services that require upgrades & /E AR KIEF RS °

for improved building efficiency and employee comfort.

A summary of the Group’s consumptions on natural resources AEBR AR E HE X AREREDEEZ 0
during this reporting period is provided as below: ™

Consumption ltem ¥ HEHE

Electricity Consumption S

Water Consumption Rk

Petroleum Consumption /5 H#E M

Diesel Consumption LBfEA

Electricity Consumption FAEEE
Intensity

Water Consumption K& E
Intensity

Unit

kWh

L

L

L

kWh/
revenue
(HK$'000)
L/revenue
(HK$'000)

For the year For the year

ended ended

30th June 2022 30th June 2021
BE-ZE-_—F #z_FT=-—

~B=+H ~NA=+H

By IEEE FE

TR 650,819 828,554

NF 424,330 482,000

NF 15,902 16,607

NF 69,550 1,600

TR, Wz 5.10 1.4
(F#T)

D Wz 3.3 0.8
(F#&T)
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Reducing GHG emissions and resources conservation

We aim to realise environmental sustainability, minimise the
adverse impacts on the environment brought by our business
activities and address the climate change risks in the Group's
operations. The Group is now working toward to reduce
the average annual GHG emission intensity and electricity
consumption intensity in coming 5 years by 20% from 2022
baseline. In order to achieve the above targets, we set out
the following measures to reduce GHG emissions and energy
consumptions as follow:

= air conditioners are set to 23 to 25 Celsius degree;

- employees are encouraged to switch off the idle electrical
appliance to minimise non-essential energy consumption;

- alternative communication channels, such as
videoconferencing and conference calls, are preferred
over unnecessary business travel;

- encourage and support the use of electric vehicles;

- communicating and encouraging customers, contractors,
suppliers and other stakeholders to reduce carbon
emissions in daily operations whenever practicable;

- documents were to be printed or copied double-sided;

- e-marketing material, such as greeting cards were to be
sent via electronic means only; and

- monitoring and responding to market and technological
shifts, regulatory and policy changes associated with
climate change.

The Group will continue to put its best efforts on minimizing
GHG emission, enhancing overall performance and operation
efficiency to save energy through working closely with its
stakeholders.
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SOCIAL

The business of the Group spreads across several industry
sectors. In particular, the Film Business involves working
with a large number of individuals across various industries.
The Group understands the best way to attract or retain
talents is by offering competitive compensations, and treating
employees fairly and equally in regardless of culture, gender
and interests, while complying to laws and regulations. As
one of its guiding principles, the Group commits to growing
its business sustainably and in a socially responsible manner,
whilst continuing its best management practices to improve in
areas as needed.

Employment, Labour Standard and Practices

The Group truly understands that its success depends on the
seamless teamwork among employees and thus recognises
its people as one of the most valuable assets in contributing
toward its achievements. The Group trusted that the works
of excellence must be well compensated, and therefore
have always offering a market competitive remuneration and
benefits scheme to its own employees.

The Group is an Equal Opportunity Employer (EOQE). This means
that it is committed to equal treatment of all employees without
regard to race, national origin, religion, gender, age, sexual
orientation, veteran status, physical or mental disability or other
basis protected by law. The Employment Policy of the Group
accords to and exceeds the requirements of the Employment
Ordinance, Minimum Wage Ordinance and the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, aiming to provide a fair
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity and
anti-discrimination scheme for all of our employees.
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During the employment process, the Group made it clear to
responsible recruitment employees that any discrimination
acts against the EOE would not be tolerated. The same policy
extends to its internal training and promotion practices. The
human resource department would also be responsible for
ensuring compliance with all regulations during the employee
recruitment process, where curriculum vitaes and identification
cards are carefully reviewed to prevent any cases of the
employment of child or forced labour, or junior members under
the age of 16 years old as full-time staff. Any breach of such
action will be reported to the company’s senior management
revision and subjected to further company disciplinary action.

In the reporting period between 1st July 2021 to 30th June
2022, the Group has found no material breach of relevant laws
and regulations during operation.

To ensure the remuneration scheme stays competitive, the
Group had established a Remuneration Committee since
15th July 2005, and with the principle duties of making
recommendations to the Board on the Group's Remuneration
Policy, structure of the Directors and senior management, and
on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing Remuneration Policy. In addition, the Remuneration
Committee is also responsible for giving suggestions to the
Board on remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and members of the senior management. In detail,
the principles of the Group’s remuneration policies consist of:

(@) ensuring no Director should be involved in deciding his or
her own remuneration;

(b)  ensuring remuneration should be determined by taking
into consideration factors such as salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment, levels of
responsibilities, employment conditions elsewhere
in the Group and desirability of performance-based
remuneration;
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(c)  reviewing and approving the management’'s remuneration
proposals with reference to corporate goal and objectives
resolved by the Board from time to time; and

(d) recommending the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and senior management to the Board.

The Remuneration Committee will also meet regularly to
determine the policy for the remuneration of Directors and
assess the performance of Executive Directors and certain
senior management of the Group.

The Group employee’s emolument is determined by the
Remuneration Committee, and it will be assessed based
on merit, qualifications and competence. Remuneration is
reviewed annually and certain employees are entitled to
commission. In addition to basic salaries, employee benefits
included discretionary bonuses, medical insurance scheme and
the mandatory provident fund as stipulated by law.

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
("the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying employees
employed.

During the year ended 30th June 2022, the total contributions
paid or payable to the MPF scheme by the Group amounted
to approximately HK$2.6 million (2021: approximately
HK$1.7 million), which had been recognized as expenses and
included in employee costs in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Equal Opportunities, Diversity and Anti-Discrimination

The Group’s Corporate Policy includes provisions on handling
discrimination, harassment and victimisation in the workplace.

The Group acquires talents based on their merits to fit in and
contribute to the company regardless of their gender and
age. Together with a transparent employment process, a fair
appraisal, remuneration and incentive scheme, the Group has
attracted a profile of diversified workers to join their workforce.
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TEBABE S -_—FE XA FREHHHL
121%(ZE=—F : 143%)EBEMIER - F
RO R KER

The following table provided an overview of its employee’s
gender, age distribution and turnover with a total of 121 (2021:
143) employees recorded per June 2022 during the reporting
period:

For the year ended For the year ended

30th June 2022 30th June 2021
BE-=®2—-C BHE_T_—F
ANA=THLEFE ANA=ZTHIEFE
No. of Turnover No. of Turnover
people rate % people rate %
A TKE% AEL MEEY%
Total workforce BTHAH 121 47.3 143 44.3
Total workforce by EHRBSWET
gender e
Male B 58 49.6 71 46.3
Female M 63 48.9 72 42.6
Total workforce by HBEH AR B D W
age group BIHAY
Below 30 years old 30 AT 24 49.9 33 68.9
30-50 years old 30-5073% 75 45.9 82 30.6
Over 50 years old 5055 A £ 22 60.0 28 56.4
Total workforce by REFERESH
employment type BT
Full time R 115 46.9 139 42.0
Part time e 6 50.0 4 66.7
Total workforce by RihEEIWET
geographical region ey
Hong Kong B5 84 56.0 98 56.1
PRC H 37 34.1 45 23.0

The Group had issued a comprehensive Employee Handbook, AEBEEEMG—HE2EME TFM @ REW
providing the basis for human resources management about REMHE - BF EFE - FBEKEAR -
the employment policy, welfare and benefits, leave and rest T R4E BMERFEZ2HER - BAAE
days, conduct and discipline, occupational health and safety £ (FLEB)BENFEREBEHNANEREIE
policy, personal data (privacy) policy and equal opportunity 2 - fIEE TN ERLHSEREME—HE
policy. All employees were handed a copy of such handbook T Ff - REE M EEH KN A TR EF -
upon employment. Any updates to the Group’s employment #EBEF A EMEGBENRERAZZE
policies would be made transparent through electronic means & T A4 °

or other appropriate methods to staff members affected.

R-ZE-—F+A—HBHE-_T-_—_F<A=
+ B ILEE - WEREEREEREGBEEE
REEMHF o

During the period from 1st July 2021 to 30th June 2022, there
was no reported material breach of related regulations and
laws.
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Occupational Health and Safety

As a socially responsible company, the Group places great
emphasis on workplace safety, especially for its film making
activities that occasionally involves activities of high risks to
workers, such as working from height, controlled explosions,
stuntman performances, use of equipment and chemicals etc.

The Group’'s health and safety practices accords to the
guideline from HKSAR Labour Department (section
“QOccupational Safety & Health”), where safety equipment,
measures, practices are enforced per requirement. Sufficient
lighting, air ventilation and spacious working areas are provided
in all premises to minimise occupational health risks imposed
to workers.

Furthermore, the Group safeguards its workplace from
unanticipated events that would require an immediate
evacuation, such as under the accident of fire, and employees
are required to participate in the office building’s regular fire
drills. The building management also provided clear signs and
instructions for emergency incidents (such as the access to
fire safety route or rally points). The participation of these drills
is mandatory for all employees and it were conducted during
office hours.

For the film division, safety practices are part of the daily
routine and it is applied at all times. The Group’'s management
team makes periodic visits to ensure all safety practices
were implemented, and to review potential health and safety
risks, or any accidents that may occur. The Group provides
appropriate safety guidelines and equipment to all workers
exposed to safety risks such as Personal Protection Equipment
(PPE), fire extinguishers, emergency evacuation procedures,
and appropriate training to actors or actresses working on
action movies etc. Special insurance is provided to relevant
employees working in such conditions to ensure the best
assistance would be available should any cases of injuries
happen.

The Group also employs third-party contractors to perform
regular check-ups for filming equipment to ensure they are in a
good condition.

BikfEmEL e
ER—RELEAEENRR  AEEER
TESMNZE  LERBRIRTARSE
SEBEBNEZEIERL  IRZETHE -
THEE - BRAKRE - ERESRIMEER
AEENRFEEL 2B BREB TR
BImuEsl(BXL2MEFE]—F) A
MZ2®RE BEMEREERRENT -
BESMARERRRE - BERGIANER
MITER BB TAXHNBERERREE
RIE -

o AEBEREBETHESMRXFEEL
BEE BN EMH (D) - T B THBES MM
REANBERNEMNERE - KEERET
PEHUB MR 36 S 38R (DI A B RD 2 2 0 £ BE 47
HEEER) - TBEE T MASE ERRAK
FEITRIRS o

BEXRETE - 2EOEMTIEN—B
7 ABRERTT - AEENERBEKE B
EHNERAEZ2BOSART - LERH
ERABERERZEEARIAEELENT
AE - AEBRAXZZREABRNMEET
RESEMNZ I ERE - MEADER
#W(PPE) - RAH ESHEREFUARRZ
HEERNBLORBRESEEIF - M
EREAMRETIENHEBEIRESRR
R BREIEXGHARFEZENR

¥ o

AEENERE=FEABATYRBES
EERE - RREMRERRLL -

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2022



Environmental, Social & Governance Report

During the reporting period from 1st July 2021 to 30th June
2022, the Group is happy to report that there is no material
non-compliance breach with relevant standards, rules and
regulations, and did not involve in any accidents that has
caused serious injuries to its workers. The number of work
related fatalities and lost days due to work injury is zero during
the reporting period.

Development and Training

The Group's business involves selling products in the retail
industry and provision of financing printing services. In order
to stay competitive, periodic trainings for employees are
required for the Group to stay abreast with the latest market
development. Great emphasis was placed on training and
equipping employees with the latest market trend for career
advancement.

Despite considerable training costs involve, the Group adheres
to nurturing talents internally to enhance the overall capability
of its workforce.

The following reports on training received by staff and its
distribution by gender and employee category.

For the year ended
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For the year ended

30th June 2022 30th June 2021
BE-T=-Z— BE_T-_—F
ANA=+THILEFE NA=ZTHIEFE
Training Training Training Training
ratio % hours ratio % hours
3L 2% 323 BE B E % IR ER
Training ratio and &1 BBl 5 19 3 5l
hours by gender bR R FE
Male B4 31.0 364 40.8 644
Female 7 27.0 355 54.2 1,058
Training ratio and RERI S HE I
hours by category bR FE
Senior Management BRERE 100 60 100 60
Management TIRE 20.5 223 60.7 185
Staff 81T 32.5 436 43.4 1,457
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The Group respects intellectual property rights and should
report any infringement on copyrights should any of such
act discovered within the scope of the Group’s management
capability. Its customer database is maintained in strict
confidentiality to safeguard consumer data and their privacy.

Supply Chain Operating Practices and Management

The nature of the Group's business requires to work with
numbers of stakeholders from various sectors. As reported
in last year's ESG report, the Group maintains an open
engagement channel with suppliers that includes procedures to
conduct regular meetings and interviews (for new suppliers).

The Group examines qualifications of its suppliers. Required
business licenses, trademark registration certificates, trademark
use authorizations, product testing reports, and customs duty
certificates are inspected to ensure its validity. Suppliers would
be assessed based on product knowledge, after-sales service,
marketing strategies to ensure the Group’s standards can be
met.

The Group only sources raw materials for its goods from
reputable suppliers. The Group exerts its influence, as a buyer,
to ensure suppliers provide products that comply to local and
international regulations.

The Group collaborates with its business partners to deliver
quality products and services with sustainability attributes to its
customers. The Group encourages its contractors and suppliers
to observe the Group's core values and to adhere to ethical as
well as socially and environmentally responsible practices.

Regular monitoring and annual performance reviews of
registered suppliers are conducted to minimize environmental
and social risks in the supply chain. The Group also has
standard approach and criteria to assess the performance of
suppliers and contractors.
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Number of suppliers by geographic region:

Hong Kong BE
PRC and other Asian countries F7 B0 & H {35 1 B R
(other than Hong Kong) (BAEBRIN

Product Responsibility

The Group’s business spreads across the retail and wholesale
of goods and production of movies. It is therefore anticipated
that the Group has a complicated product management
portfolio due to its subjection to various applicable laws and
regulations. Continued from last year's ESG report, details of
the Group’s product responsibility are summarised as below.

Retails Products — Eyewear

The following ordinances and procedures have been adhered to
regarding the sales of eyewear products:

° Qualified optometrists are present in all of the Group's
eyewear retail shops;

° Eye-tests are conducted by such professionals according
to the section 12(1)(a) of the Supplementary Medical
Professions Ordinance (Chapter 359 of the Laws of Hong
Kong);

° Contact lens are only recommended to customers by
optometrists when a valid prescription is provided (under
section 7.4 of the Code of Practice of the Optometrists
Board);

° Only real and genuine products are offered (under the
Trade Description Ordinance (Chapter 362 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), where false trade descriptions, misleading or
incomplete information and mis-statements in respect of
goods provided in all sales activities) are strictly prohibited
in all of the Group's shops;
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RE  #HEREREE

° Products are directly purchased from the manufacturers
and authorized wholesalers, where invoices and
authorizing documents are provided on re-selling goods;

° Performance of “Triple” quality check-up process
before products are sent to shops (performed by buyer,
procurement officer and front-line sales employees);

° “Table of Tolerance” quality check to be performed on
the lenses upon product arrival to shop. The check is
prepared by the professional association in the Hong
Kong Optical Industry as a quality check up on the contact
lenses, ensuring the status of the expiration of these
lenses are valid before re-selling to customers; and

° Protection of customers’ data and privacy by denying
unauthorised access to customers’ information.

Under the current reporting year, which is from 1st July 2021
to 30th June 2022, the Group had not litigation regarding its
eyewear products and services.

Retails Products —Watches

The Group closely monitors its offered watch products,
especially in relation to safety issues. A consistent update is
performed safeguarding the Group with the compliance to
up-to-date laws and regulations related to watch products,
ensuring the accuracy of the advertised information and labels,
and avoiding any misrepresentation leading to a breach of law.
On the other hand, regular communication is conducted with
suppliers, updating the latest trend on regulation and measures
accordingly.

During its procurement process, the Group relies on a
comprehensive Procurement Policy set by the senior
management. Only genuine goods with relevant trademark
registration certificates or trademark authorisation documents,
or directly from brand owners or brand authorised distributors,
will be procured for resell purposes. Testing reports are
requested from suppliers, while warehouse keepers will also
perform quality control checks to ensure the quality of watches
are up to standard before shipping to shops for sales.
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The Group applies the same Data Protection and Privacy Policy
throughout the business. Customer data are stored in a Point
Of Sales (POS) system, where senior grade employees, with
appropriate authorisation, are able to access such database,
and no data shall be released to any third party under any
circumstances.

There was no complaint received in relation to the Group's
watches sold during this reporting period.

Anti-Corruption and Anti-Money Laundering

The Group is committed to the highest standard of corporate
governance, and aims to maintain the same vision with its
policies in transparency, uprightness and accountability.

It is at the heart of the Group’s business to operate in an
ethical, personal and professional manner. Any activity relating
to corruption, commercial bribery, extortion, money-laundering
and other fraudulent activities would not be tolerated. Conflict
of interests will be reported, to prevent the possible occurrence
of inside-dealing or any criminal regime in client transactions.
Regular anti-corruption, and money laundering training and
circulars are provided to employees to remain cautious on
suspicious transactions.

The compliance manual of the Group has set out policies and
procedures for anti-corruption and anti-money laundering. All
employees are required to be read and acknowledge such
compliance manual. There are Whistleblowing Policy in place
for reporting suspicious fraudulent actions, misconduct,
malpractice and irregularities to the Board.

We encourage employees to raise and report any concerns
in confidence about misconduct, malpractice or irregularities
in any matters related to the Group to the Board. The
confidentiality of all reporting persons is strictly protected
and every reasonable effort will be made to maintain the
confidentiality, to ensure that no retaliation will result from
reports or complaints on reportable misconduct made in good
faith. The mechanism will be followed by careful investigation
procedures to ensure all complaints are treated promptly and
fairly.
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In addition, annual training in anti-corruption and anti-money
laundering is provided for employees, including Executive
Directors, in collaboration with the Independent Commission
Against Corruption and other regulators. The training covers
issues such as integrity in operations, works supervision and
the reporting of the suspicious transactions.

During the current reporting period, the Group had no litigation
in relation to corruption and money laundering activities
identified, involving the Group and its employees.

Data Privacy Compliance

The Group is dedicated to protect the privacy and confidentiality
of personal data from employees, clients, business partners,
and other identifiable individuals. The Group’'s employees are
instructed to handle confidential information with due care.
Information is only collected and used in a responsible and
non-discriminatory manner, and restricting the use of the
information for the purposes consistent with those identified in
the contracts. Generally, the laws and regulations affecting the
Group includes the Trade Marks Ordinance (Chapter 559 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), Copyright Ordinance (Chapter 528 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), Trade Descriptions Ordinance (Chapter
362 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance (Chapter 486 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The Group
will stay alert to the relevant legal issues and update its internal
policies when necessary to avoid any breach of the regulatory
requirements.

There were no issues occurred concerning data privacy in this
reporting period.

COMMUNITY

The Group is committed to serve and give back to the local
community and contribute to social services. The Group's
management team encourage employees to join all of these
activities, which reflects management team’s commitment to
sustainable development. The Group believes by encouraging
employees to participate in a wide range of charitable events,
community awareness will be raised, and more people will
be inspired to take part in serving our community. The Group
made a charitable donation of HK$80,000 during the Year. The
Group will continue to support these meaningful social events
in the future.
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The board of directors (the “Director(s)”) (the “Board”)
submit their report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of Universe Entertainment and Culture
Group Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 30th June 2022
(the "Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
operating segment is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on pages 82
to 84.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the Year (for the year ended 30th June 2021: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group's business during the Year are set out
in “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 6 to 18 of
this annual report.
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TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available
to the shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) by
reason of their holding of the shares of the Company.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in Note 24 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DONATIONS

The Group made charitable donation of HK$80,000 during the
Year (2021: HK$Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in Note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

Details of the principal properties held for investment purposes
are set out on page 271 of the annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movement in share capital of the Company are
set out in Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 30th June 2022
amounted to HK$268,134,000 (2021: HK$288,629,000) including
contributed surplus, of HK$597,789,000 (2021: HK$597,789,000),
which is only distributable subject to conditions as set out in
Notes 24(b) and 24(c) to the consolidated financial statements.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 272 of
the annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the
Year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased or sold any of the Company's listed securities during
the Year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed in the annual
general meeting held on 2nd December 2013, the Company
conditionally approved and adopted a share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”) in compliance with the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing
Rules”). Details of the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

(a) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant share options to selected Participants
(as defined below) as incentive and/or rewards for their
contributions and support to the Group and any invested
entity.
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(b)

Participants of the Share Option Scheme

The Board may, at its discretion,

invite any person

belonging to any of the following classes of participants
for their contributions and support to the Group and any
invested entity (the “Participants” and individually, a
“Participant”) to take up share options to subscribe for
shares.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2022

any full-time employee of the Company, any of its
subsidiary or any invested entity, including (without
limitation) any executive director of the Company,
any of its subsidiary or invested entity (individually,
an "Employee”);

any non-executive director (including independent
non-executive directors) of the Company, any of its
subsidiary or any invested entity;

any supplier of goods or services to any member of
the Group or any invested entity;

any customer of the Group or any invested entity;

any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technical support to the
Group or any invested entity;

any shareholder of any member of the Group or
any invested entity or any holder of any securities
issued by any member of the Group or any invested
entity;

any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant
to any area of business or business development
of any member of the Group or any invested entity;
and

any joint venture partner or counter-party to
business operation or business arrangements of the
Group.
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(c)

(d)

Maximum number of share options available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme

(i) The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding share option
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other schemes for the time
being of the Company shall not exceed 30% of the
shares in issue from time to time. Share options of
the Company which are lapsed or cancelled for the
time being shall not be counted for the purpose of
calculating the said 30% limit; and

(i)~ The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options granted and
to be granted under the Share Option Schemes
is an amount equivalent to 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue as at the dates of approval
of the Share Option Schemes unless approval for
refreshing the 10% limit from the Shareholders has
been obtained.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares issued upon exercise of the
share options granted and to be granted to each grantee
under the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes
for the time being of the Company (including both
exercised and outstanding share options) in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant to each grantee must not
exceed 1% of the aggregate number of shares for the
time being in issue.

Remaining life and exercisable period of
the share options

There is no general requirement that a share option
must be held for any minimum period before it can be
exercised but the Board is empowered to impose at
its discretion any such minimum period at the time of
grant of any particular share option. A share option may
be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during a period of 10 years
commencing on the Date of Grant and expiring on the
last day of the said 10-year period.
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(f)

(9)

Payment on acceptance of the share options offer

A sum of HK$1 is payable by the Participant on
acceptance of the share option offer.

Basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price for shares under the Share Option
Scheme should be a price notified by the Board to a
Participant to whom any offer of the grant of a share option
is made and shall be at least the higher of (i) the closing
price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant which must
be a business day; and (ii) the average closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant, provided that the subscription price
should not be lower than the nominal value of a share.

No share options under the Share Option Scheme was issued
and outstanding during the Year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors
Mr. LAM Shiu Ming, Daneil (Chairman)
Mr. LAM Kit Sun

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. LAM Chi Keung
Mr. CHOI Wing Koon
Mr. TANG Yiu Wing
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Mr. Lam Kit Sun and Mr. Tang Yiu Wing will retire by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
in accordance with Bye-law 87(1) and Bye-law 87(2) of the
Bye-laws and Mr. Lam Kit Sun and Mr. Tang Yiu Wing being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at such meeting.

For the biographical details of the Director who will stand for re-
election and the candidates who will be proposed to be elected
as Directors, please refer to the circular containing the notice
of the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to
be despatched.

All independent non-executive Directors have been appointed
for a specific term and subject to retirement by rotation as
specified by the Bye-laws and the Listing Rules.

The Company has received from each of the above
independent non-executive Directors a confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rules 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
the Company is satisfied that they are independent as such.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS" INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in Note 46 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other contracts of significance in relation to the
Group's business to which the Company, its holding company,
its subsidiaries or its fellow subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the Year.
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DIRECTORS" INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors has an interest in a business which
competes or may compete with the business of the Group.

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 30th June 2022, the interests of each of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares (within the
meaning of the SFO) which were required to be (a) notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of SFO (including interest which any such
Director was taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO) or; (b) entered in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO or;
(c) notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules are as follows:

Name Nature of interest
HA MY

Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil Beneficial owner
MNBRSEHE EnlEAA

Founder and the discretionary

EENGFREXEFER

EEMENYAKREXRBBNEFHATER
PR T 2 R A

ESERFBZTBRAERRND -
MHERD RIE2 2

RZEZ_FRA=Z+H8 SFFFZRAEAQF
FETBRABRERG (E&RFEH KA KD
FHEA (QIRIBEES KB A EXVIETRE
8N EBEHE AR A LT 2 S (BIEE
MZEEEREEFRBE GG A BIEXE
BEREAEE 2 ER) K (D) AZHERAR
BB AR B EIEP EXVEEEI2MERERE
FrERMRzERSS ()R IE R AIK
BTAEZ LM TAESETELERIIN
ST RI([Z 257 A1) BAE AR A R M AT
ZRETRION ¢

object of a discretionary

trust (Note a)

EREFRZAMALDE

SrEER (Hf5a)

Interest of a controlled
corporation (Note b)

A B (HEED)

Beneficial owner
EmlEA A

Mr. Lam Kit Sun (Director)
MEEFT R (EE)

Number

of the
Company’s Percentage of
shares held shareholding

J2iE S N
BRHOEE BEREDL
200,860,000 22.16%
33,546,853 3.70%
430,120,020 47.44%
664,526,873 73.30%
5,920,000 0.65%
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Notes:

(@) The trustee of the discretionary trust is Central Core Resources
Limited which owns the entire issued share capital of the
Globalcrest Enterprises Limited (“Globalcrest”) which in turn
was interested in 33,546,853 shares of the Company as at 30th
June 2022. Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil is the discretionary object
of the discretionary trust.

(b) Pioneer Entertainment Group Limited (“Pioneer Entertainment”),
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability and is wholly-owned by Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil, was
interested in 430,120,020 shares of the Company as at 30th
June 2022.

All the interests in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company were long positions.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30th June 2022, none of
the Directors or chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
which were required to be (a) notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests which they were deemed or taken to
have under such provisions of the SFO) or; (b) entered in the
register kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of Part
XV of the SFO or; (c) notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Year, the
Directors and chief executives of the Company (including
their spouse and children under 18 years of age) had any
interests in, or had been granted, or exercised, any rights to
subscribe for shares (or warrants or debentures, if applicable)
of the Company and its associated corporations required to be
disclosed pursuant to the SFO.

In addition, at no time during the Year was the Company, its
holding company, its subsidiaries, its associated company or
its fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors and chief executives of the Company (including
their spouse and children under 18 years of age) to hold any
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
in or debentures of, the Company or its associated corporation.

Report of the Directors

ESEHRES

(a) #mZEHEEFLZZTAABCentral Core
Resources Limited * E# A Globalcrest
Enterprises Limited([Globalcrest]) 2 2 # &
TR A - MGlobalcrest® —E— /XA
=+ HRARQF)33,546,8530% M 17 #E 5 &
W WAL RZEEETZ2BERY
2 o

(b) Pioneer Entertainment Group Limited
(Pioneer Entertainment]) 58— R EBE K
HEaAMKZ2ERAR - AMDBREESR
BHAE R-Z-_—F#A=+tHRARQF
430,120,020 P& 5 h G s ©

FRERARA I MBRERD 2 a8 R

)

BEXFIHBEEIN R —_FA=+
H BEERARREETHABBENAE
AR R ERABEENRG - BERD RES
FEE @RIBEES REEROIEXVEETRE
87 B /A M E AN N R B X P 2 AR i 2 ol
B (RRESERERESFKIE GO B BIGSUE
RANEERE 2R (OVEZHERER
AILEAF LG RO EXVESEIL2EERF 2
TRz EREEIOAR K  )IRFIZE
SEAIZE AN E AR QA F) R B R BT 2 A ] A A 3%k

A o
PR EXFTRBEEI - RAFEATAERE -

EEERARAEBZTHRAB(BRESF 2R
BRISEA T2 FROWEREE  HER T
TTEEM A BEARRERE BB EE 2 B
(HRBAEBHES - WER) Z N 2 (R
s MARRRE S M EROIAELRE -

SN - RRR] - HERAR - EHBAR -
HBERRSAEREZMBERARRAFEAML
MEEYETLEMNLZY  FEFERAAA
ZEBTBRAB(BEREZEBRISENAT
ZF )R RA R B EARREE 2 B ) 4
R RESPHEETAREIRE

EFREVCEBERLDR —T-_FFH

69



70

Report of the Directors
EEEREE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to any Director or chief executive of the
Company, as at 30th June 2022, Shareholders (other than
Directors or chief executive of the Company disclosed above)
who had interests or short positions in shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register kept by
the Company under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO are as
follows:

Name Capacity

28 g%

Pioneer Entertainment (Note a) Beneficial owner
Pioneer Entertainment(Ffi3Ea) EalEA A

Note:

(a) Pioneer Entertainment, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands with limited liability and is wholly-owned by Mr.
Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil.

All the interests disclosed above represent long positions in
shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30th June 2022, no other person
has any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company in the register required
to be kept by Company under Section 336 of Part XV of the
SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the Year.

FERR
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-
laws and there are no restrictions against such rights under the
laws in Bermuda.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentage of purchases and sales for the Year attributable
to the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases

— the largest supplier 4%
— five largest suppliers in aggregate 8%
Sales

— the largest customer 15%
— five largest customers in aggregate 38%

None of the Directors, their associates or any Shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5%
of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major
suppliers or customers noted above.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Universe Digital Entertainment Limited (“UDE"), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
tenancy agreement with Universe Property Investment Limited
("UPI"), a company owned by Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil
(“Mr. Daneil Lam”), the executive Director of the Company,
for renting (1) an industrial unit on the 18th Floor of a 28-storey
industrial building over a 2-storey lorry/car parking podium
plus a 2-level basement (with a saleable area of approximately
13,983 square foot) and (2) 5 carparking spaces on the 2nd
Floor of a 28-storey industrial building over a 2-storey lorry/car
parking podium plus a 2-level basement (“Rented Properties”)
for warehouse, ancillary office and carparking uses from 25th
February 2021 to 24th February 2024 with a monthly rental of
HK$244,000 (the “Tenancy Agreement”) which were arrived
at arm’s length negotiation between the Group and UPI with
reference to the past monthly rental and the rental valuation
performed by Ravia Global Appraisal Advisory Limited as at 22
January 2021 which reflected the then market rent.
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ESEHREE

In respect of the rent paid by the Group of approximately
HK$2,927,000 (2021: approximately HK$2,417,000) to UPI in
accordance with the terms of the Tenancy Agreement during
the Year, the Group recognized as the repayment of lease
liabilities of approximately HK$2,743,000 (2021: approximately
HK$2,335,000) and interest on lease liabilities of approximately
HK$184,000 (2021: approximately HK$82,000) in the Group's
consolidated financial statements during the Year.

LISTING RULES IMPLICATIONS OF
THE CONNECTED TRANSACTION

In accordance with HKFRS 16 “Leases”, the Group is required
to recognize an additional asset representing its right to
use Rented Properties, and as a result, the entering into
the Tenancy Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder will be regarded as acquisitions of assets by the
Group for the purpose of the Listing Rules.

Mr. Daneil Lam, who is the founder, the chairman of the
Company, an executive Director and controlling shareholder
of the Company, is a Connected Person. Accordingly, UPI is
a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
Hence, the transactions contemplated under the Tenancy
Agreement, the payment of monthly rental payment under the
Tenancy Agreement will be regarded as one-off connected
transaction.

As the highest applicable percentage ratio in respect of the
Value of Right-of-Use Assets under the Tenancy Agreement in
the amount of approximately HK$8,395,000 is more than 0.1%
but less than 5% and the Value of Right-of-Use Assets is more
than HK$3,000,000, the transactions contemplated under the
Tenancy Agreement are subject to the reporting, annual review
and announcement requirements but are exempted from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Please refer to the Company's
announcement dated 29th January 2021 for the details.
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Apart from the above, there are other related party transactions
entered into by the Group during the Year, all of which
constituted exempted connected transactions for the Company
under the Listing Rules, or did not fall under the definition of
“connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction”
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the year.
Details of these transactions are disclosed in Note 46 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors
is currently in force and was in force throughout the Year.
The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover
for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions
against its Directors and senior management arising out of
corporate activities.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme as set out in this report,
no equity-linked agreement that would or might result in the
Company issuing shares, or that requiring the Company to
enter into an agreement that would or might result in the
Company issuing shares, was entered into by the Company
during the year or subsisted at the end of the Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that
there is sufficient public float of at least 25% of the Company’s
issued shares as at 30th June 2022.
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AUDITOR

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited retired as auditor of the Company
and Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited was appointed as auditor
of the Company following the retirement of Crowe (HK) CPA
Limited at the conclusion of the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 20th December 2021. There have been no
other changes of auditors in the past three years.

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited who will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29th September 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report

7

ZHONGHUI

To the shareholders of Universe Entertainment and Culture
Group Company Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) set out on pages 80 to 270, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2022,
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 30 June 2022, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “"Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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BYZBERES

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Film rights and films in progress
Refer to note 9 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group tested the amount of film rights and films in
progress for impairment. This impairment test is significant
to our audit because the balance of film rights and films in
progress of approximately HK$653,122,000 as at 30 June 2022
and an impairment loss on film rights and films in progress of
approximately HK$27,543,000 recognised and charged to profit
or loss during the year ended 30 June 2022 are material to
the consolidated financial statements. In addition, the Group's
impairment test involves application of judgement and is based
on assumptions and estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

° Understanding the process of how management
performs impairment assessment on the film rights and
films in progress;

° Evaluating the appropriateness of the methodology used
by management in determining the recoverable amounts
of the film rights and films in progress;

o Evaluating the reasonableness of the assumptions used
in the future cash flow projection and challenging the
management’s assessment on the expected revenue
to be generated by the film rights and films in progress
by checking the film budget summary to the contract
amounts of the distribution and licensing agreements and
the estimated film box office receipts to the historical
trend of similar film with similar characteristics (such as
main cast members, producers, directors, topic, theme
and etc) released; and
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Film rights and films in progress (Continued)

Refer to note 9 to the consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

° Assessing the mathematical accuracy of the calculations
of the estimated future net cash flows of films rights and
films in progress on a sample basis.

Based on the above, we considered that the Group’s
impairment test for film rights and films in progress are
supported by available evidence.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are responsible
for the other information. The other information comprises all
the information in the Company's annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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BYZBERES

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the Directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
Directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements is located at the HKICPA's
website at:

http://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/Standards-setting/standards/
Our-views/auditre

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Pang Hon Chung

Audit Engagement Director
Practising Certificate Number P05988
Hong Kong, 29 September 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

As at 30 June 2022 R-ZFE-_FXA=1H

As at As at
30 June 30 June
2022 2021
i N
—=E-— —E-—%F
~E=1H ~NA=+H
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
ihg=s FExT FHET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets IREBEE
Property, plant and equipment VI - W3R AR 6 35,678 17,130
Investment properties "EYE 7 31,460 31,460
Other intangible assets HEm\mEEE 8 1,954 2,092
Film rights and films in progress BYMEREERZ2EY 9 653,122 278,195
Loan receivable FEU B 3K 19 = 183
Film related deposits ES-2 = Rk 74,900 79,328
Deposits paid BEfET& 12 2,377 29,690
Deferred tax assets EEFHIBEE 13 502 471
Other financial assets HEmeomERE 14 1,878 16,723
USROS L =L A S 495,272
Current assets REBEE
Inventories & 17 6,767 9,843
Accounts receivable FEUBR K 18 22,648 108,865
Loans receivable FERE R 19 1,235 3,283
Deposits paid, prepayments and BENET® - BRNFKIER
other receivables Ho b e W sk IE 12 20,008 20,458
Trading securities RPHESH 15 7,539 76,871
Other financial assets HEtemEE 14 = 48
Contract assets BHEE 28 948 423
Bank balances and cash RITEHREBE S
- trust accounts - {E5EERP 20 125 785
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEEY 21 211,846 375,924
 Totalcurrentassets . ........ RBEERE ... 200006 . 596500,
Total assets WEE 1,072,987 1,051,772
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to the owners RAREB AEE R
of the Company
Share capital &% A 22 9,066 9,066
Share premium &1 % B 24(a) 35,013 35,013
Other reserves HAnfE 24(a) 546,141 546,264
Accumulated losses REtEsia 24(a) (158,585) (82,033)
431,635 508,310
Non-controlling interests eI i (4,407) (2,843)
Total equity RS 427,228 505,467

......................................................................................................
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

As at 30 June 2022 R-FE-—FXA=1H

As at As at
30 June 30 June
2022 2021
JiS I
—=E-— —E-—%F
~NA=1+H ~NA=+H
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M FExT FHET
LIABILITIES =N
Non-current liabilities kRBAE
Lease liabilities HEAE 25 5,458 9,151
Deferred tax liabilities BELEFIBAE 13 139 102
............ 5,597 9,253
Current liabilities REBEE
Accounts payable FERTER R 26 24,829 50,197
Other payables and accrued HAth fE T 5RIE R FEET 2
charges 27 92,437 236,361
Contract liabilities aHaE 28 491,617 183,863
Deposits received BlET & 11,154 16,184
Lease liabilities HeEaE 25 7,800 12,283
Taxation payable FEST 1A 12,325 38,164
. Total current liabilities mBAREE ... 5840162 537052
,Jotal liabilities . .. e’ . ...................545759 546305
Total equity and liabilities HERREE 1,072,987 1,051,772
Net current (liabilities)/assets RE(BE)/ EEFE (369,046) 59,448
Total assets less current HMEERRBARE
liabilities 432,825 514,720

The consolidated financial statements on pages 80 to 270

HNBGOEEF270E ViR MBWMEN_E
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 29 &g

TTFAMAZTABEREZSHENEET

September 2022: %
Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil Lam Kit Sun R/NEA PREEST
Director Director 4 EF
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEEERER

For the year ended 30 June 2022 HZ_ZFE__FNF=+HIFEF

2022 2021
—E-CHE —E-—F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M s BT FHET
CONTINUING OPERATIONS: FECEER
Revenue g
Sales of goods - video distribution, optical ~ $HE &M — #E T -
products and watches products IRIFEE b S SB SR E 36,896 57,407
Income on film distribution and exhibition, BRBETRRM BEHR
licensing and sub-licensing of film rights BREZRERA 68,220 523,185
Income from other businesses Hip WA 22,522 22,008
Total revenue i 5 127,638 602,600
Cost of revenue L EIDE:S
Cost of inventories sold BEEFEKAK 17 (25,050) (48,007)
Related cost on film distribution and BRI  BHR
exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of BN E P RERBNA
film rights (63,218) (298,542)
Cost for other businesses Hfth ZEHPK AR (16,824) (16,140)
Total cost of revenue W 5 B R AR (105,092) (362,689)
Selling expenses HEER (8,340) (15,639)
Administrative expenses THER (67,136) (61,400)
Impairment loss of film rights and BERERBEFEE 2
films in progress RERE 9 (27,543) (3,000)
Impairment loss of property, WME - WEREEZ
plant and equipment EEE 6 (2,172) (120)
Impairment loss of right-of-use assets CREEEZREEE 6 (6,874) (5,954)
Change in expected credit loss BHEEREZ 30 288 (1,682)
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hith 78 i i 8 (149) (147)
Other income HAb A 34 3,603 22,590
Other (losses)/gains — net Hib(E518), s - FHE 35 (8,996) 16,890
(Losses)/gains: (B18), /s
Fair value change of trading securities RHBHENTEEZH (7,916) (12,460)
Fair value change of other financial assets ~ FEBEFRATFEARZ
carried at fair value through profit or loss HiteMEERFEED = 761
Finance income BB A 36 2,080 2,291
Finance costs BT 29(c) (515) (532)
Gain on deconsolidation of subsidiaries MEARKIEGE ARKE 39 18,900 =
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRELRT (B518),m F 29 (82,224) 181,509
Income tax credit/(expense) FrisRiEse,/ (FAX) 37 3,635 (28,745)
(Loss)/profit for the year from continuing FRREBBELEEBD
operations (B18),/ & F (78,589) 152,764

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2022



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEEERER

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #Z_-_FT_-_—#~ NA=+HIFE

2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M s BT FHET
DISCONTINUED OPERATION: BRIEGE R
Loss for the year from discontinued REEREEEBED
operation FAEE 38 (332) (294)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(ERE),wF (78,921) 152,470
Other comprehensive loss: Hitt2EEE
[tems that may be reclassified subsequently HEAfEeE8HHEE
to profit or loss: BE2EE -
Currency translation differences EMnE =5 (123) (3,301)
Total other comprehensive loss FREMZEBELE
fortheyear . (123) ... 8300
Total comprehensive (loss)/income ER2EER)WE8HE
for the year (79,004) 149,169
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners of RAREEAEL(ER),
the Company: wBA
~ from continuing operations - REBECEER (76,220) 154,639
- from discontinued operation - REERIEREER (332) (294)
(76,552) 154,345
Loss attributable to non-controlling FERESEGES !
interests:
- from continuing operations - REFEREER (2,369) (1,875)
(2,369) (1,875)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income UTEEEAZE (SR
for the year attributable to: Wz -
Owners of the Company ERRHEBA (76,675) 151,044
Non-controlling interests IR R (2,369) (1,875)
(79,044) 149,169

=
E=3

FIRET(EBAR AR —T-_FER
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEEERER

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HZ_-T_-_—FNA=+HIEFE

84

2022 2021
—E-CHE —E-—F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M s BT FHET
Total comprehensive (loss)/income AAREEAEGZEE
attributable to owners of (BB WHERERY :
the Company arises from:
Continuing operations SECE £ (76,343) 151,338
Discontinued operation ERIHEEER (332) (294)
(76,675) 151,044
(Loss)/earnings per share attributable to FRARQFRHEF AEN
owners of the Company for the year SR (EE)BF
(presented in HK$): (UBTE) :
From continuing and discontinued REFEREKL
operations REER
- basic - &K 40(a) (0.0844) 0.1702
- diluted -8 40(b) (0.0844) 0.1702
From continuing operations REFECEER
- basic - &K 40(a) (0.0840) 0.1706
- diluted -8 40(b) (0.0840) 0.1706

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2022



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #Z_-_FT_-_—#~ NA=+HIFE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

ARARAAEL
Non-

Share Share Other Accumulated controlling Total

capital  premium  reserves losses  Subtotal interests equity
(Note 24(a)
&lc)

kx  RHEE  HbRE  ZiHER Mt FERER Ak
(BizE240)
Rl

HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS$'00
TR AT TER thn  TEr T  TEn

At 1 July 2020 R=B-Z£+th-H 9,066 35,013 547,9% (236,378) 355,696 (804) 304,892
Comprehensive income 2EHA
Profitfo the year EREH - - - B35 1435 (1875 152470
Other comprehensiveloss ~— Ef2EEE
Currency translation difference  EHAEZTE - - 3,301) - (3,301) - 3,301)
Total other comprehensive  EMEEEELE

loss - - (3,301) - (3,301) - 3,301)
Total comprehensive income/  EREEWA /(B4

(loss) for the year - - (3.301) 154,345 151,044 (1.875) 149,169
Partial disposal of subsidiaries ~ HEFAHBA - - 1,570 - 1,570 (164) 1,406
At 30 June 2021 and RZB--EXA=1AR

1 July 2021 “E--Etf-H 9,066 35,013 546,264 (82,033) 508,310 (2,843) 505,467
Comprehensive loss 2EER
Loss for the year EREE = S = (76,552) (76,552) (2369 (78,921)
Other comprehensiveloss —— Ef2EEE
Currency translation difference  EHAZZEE - - (123) - (123) - (123)
Total other comprehensive  EMEEEREF

loss - - (123 - (123 - (123
Total comprehensive loss TR EERES

for the year - - (123) (76,552) (76,675) (2,369) (79,044)

Deconsolidation of subsidiaries  HBR AR LA NE
(Note 39) (F&E39) = - = = = 805 805

At 30 June 2022 R=B=ZFxA=1H 9,066 3,013 546,141 (158585 431,635 (4407) 427,228
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERETRER

For the year ended 30 June 2022 HZ_ZFE__FNF=+HIFEF

2022 2021
—=== —E-—fF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt aE FExT FHET
Cash flows from operating EEITHC2RERE
activities
Net cash generated from HETBHEEZFRS
operating activities 42(a) 272,850 459,969
Cash flows from investing REFTEBZ2RERE
activities
Purchase of property, BAMZE - Mas B
plant and equipment (5,914) (1,348)
Proceeds of disposal of property, HEWE - MBS RRE
plant and equipment Fr8 3R 30 =
Deposits paid for acquisition of A - HBR K
property, plant and equipment REZENETS - (28,113)
Purchase of other intangible assets ~ BEAHEMEF & E (11) -
Purchase of club debenture BAGEES - (770)
Decrease in film related deposits BEABER 2R 29,716 11,968
Increase in film related deposits BB 2 280 (25,288) (22,950)
Payments for film rights and BMRAE R BEF 2
films in progress ER-ZNEN (432,469) (257,421)
Payment for settlement of litigation — FFEAFIAE M AERAAK A 2
and related cost (B - (1,851)
Proceeds from capital return EmemEEZ
from other financial assets ERNEEIEEE B = 299
Proceeds from disposal of HEEMEREEL
other financial assets Fr18 3R 3,460 5,932
Cash inflow from deconsolidation REMBRRKIELSE
of subsidiaries ABRMESRA 28 =
Repayment from loan receivable By —R2E=FEK
granted to a third party B ZER 2,014 4,276
Interest received B B 1,351 2,291
Decrease in time REEARZIE ARG
deposits with maturity over 3 @A ZEBEFER
months at acquisition Ve%ea = 108,640
Net cash used in investing REZBHFAZERS
activities (427,083) (179,047)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERETRER

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BZ_-FE__#FNA=+HIFFE

2022 2021
—=E2-= —E-—%F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt aE FET FHET
Cash flows from financing METEBRERE
activities
Capital element of lease rentals ENHEEREEZER
paid #> (9,330) (11,419)
Interest element of lease rentals ENHEERES 2T E
paid s (515) (528)
Net cash used in financing MEEFBHFAZERS
activitles . iiiiiiiiiiiiieeiiieieenee. ... (9.845) . ..... el
Net (decrease)/increase in ReRBRESLEEYZ
cash and cash equivalents FORD) /18 (164,078) 268,975
Cash and cash equivalents RENESRESEZEY
at beginning of the year 375,924 106,949
Cash and cash equivalents RERBESRESEZEY
at end of the year 211,846 375,924
Analysis of the balances of cash B&&BREESEEY
and cash equivalents A i
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEEY 211,846 375,924

The notes on pages 88 to 270 are an integral part of these #HNESSEEF 2708 2 Mt AGA M KHE
consolidated financial statements. 287 o
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) are principally engaged in video distribution,
film distribution and exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing
of film rights, leasing of investment properties, securities
investment, trading, wholesaling and retailing of optical
products and watches products, and provisions of type-
setting, translation, printing, design, distribution of
financial print products and other related services.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in Bermuda. The address of its registered office is
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda. The address of the principal place of business
of the Company is 18th Floor, Wyler Centre Phase I,
192-200 Tai Lin Pai Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories,
Hong Kong.

The Company's shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (“HK$'000"),
unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Board
on 29 September 2022.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

—REH

RFRECEBERRB(ARTA)
REWMBRAB(REIARE]DETEZRHK
EHREHRT ERBROTRHER  BHEK
BREXNRE LHREDE  EFR
B REERRERERES HER
TEXBARREHRY KR EmRZ 5
R~ BEE - EDRI - RRET - DR R EME
AR5

ARBDRBREAMK L ZBRA
A HFEfM#EEmit &Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda ° "R A EBEEHEN
b 7% B R R EOR A E 1925200
REMPOLE_EJ18E -

RRBBNREEBERZABR AR
(TP ER LT -

BB AERBEN - REMBERERIATET
([FETHEY - REVERREEE
FeR _E__FhALA-THABHET
%;_‘g °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the
Group have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"), which collective term includes
all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“"HKASs") and Interpretations issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”).

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of other investments in
equity securities, derivative financial instruments
and investment properties, which are carried at fair
value.

2

A B RRME
EEEHBERAE

RAESEVBHRRRANETERHBR
HRTX - BREARAIN  BEBRRE
FEROMEEEACERER -

2.1 RBEE

AEBENEE BB RKRIRER
BERTEMHREEN(TEEM
BHREEL ] SRBFAZ - BF
BREBEMAE (BB
AR AEERNERNES
MBEREEA((EEVHHREE
A1) - BREER(EBETE
AN RZE)  FELAREERE
K& B R EHED 2 BB R TE MR
o W FEREVBHRRNTEHR
Frag s LR EmARANDME
RIWERE -

RAEMBRRERRELRAVER
B WRHEMEAERRE - 14
SRTAMREMENER(BR
RNFEFIER) MEHIERT o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the
new and revised HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA that
are relevant to its operations and effective for its
accounting year beginning on 1 July 2021. HKFRSs
comprise HKFRS; HKAS; and Interpretations. The
adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs did
not result in significant changes to the Group’s
accounting policies, presentation of the Group's
consolidated financial statements and amounts
reported for the current year and prior years.

The Group has not applied the new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective. The Group has already commenced an
assessment of the impact of these new and revised
HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state whether
these new and revised HKFRSs would have a
material impact on its results of operations and
financial position.

2

EEESTTHERRE @

2.1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B|RME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EESHHEEREZEw@
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests 22 WEBAR RIFERER
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. B AREASREIEHNER - &
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or AEEBL2EEREEMIG]E
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement B ¥RE RS ER - WREHEZHE
with the entity and has the ability to affect those BHENMEBZERRE - BIK
returns through its power over the entity. When EEIEHZER - RNTHAEEE
assessing whether the Group has power, only GEBZENR  REEHASE
substantive rights (held by the Group and other BEREMAFER)EEMLES -

parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into R B AR R E RS #ERLG A
the consolidated financial statements from the date HEEHIELIEABBERNGS
that control commences until the date that control W HREPEETE - SEMENG
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash #®REEBFERUAREERRS
flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra- FTEERMEAAREIRERN - HRE
group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing BURE M TGRSR - £
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised MR SEERNREREIBHZER
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are FHWSARN T NS - HER
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains RERERER 7 5 -

but only to the extent that there is no evidence of

impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a IR E R IR FE AR R Rl E B ok
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the BEEOMONEBAREZ BAE
Company, and in respect of which the Group has B3 B LR SR 5 A ALGE]
not agreed any additional terms with the holders of BRI B A EE AL T
those interests which would result in the Group as HTEATATHABTEENANE
a whole having a contractual obligation in respect £ -

of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability.

EFREVCEBERLDR —T-_FFH



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EESHHEEREZEw@

POLICIES (continued)

92

2.2 Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests in
the results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss
and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the owners
of the Company. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. Loans from holders of
non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as
financial liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are
made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained
in that former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount
is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of
a financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate
or joint venture.

2.2

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2

2.3

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries (Continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2.12(b)), unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).

Interests in joint operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the assets, and obligations for the
liabilities, relating to the arrangement.

The Group recognises in relation to its interest in a
joint operation:

° its assets, including its share of any assets
held jointly;
o its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities

incurred jointly;

2
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2.3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

2.4

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2022

Interests in joint operations (Continued)

° its revenue from the sale of its share of the
output arising from the joint operation;

° its share of the revenue from the sale of the
output by the joint operation; and

° its expenses, including its share of any
expenses incurred jointly.

The assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses
relating to the Group's interest in a joint operation
are accounted for in accordance with the HKFRSs
applicable to the particular assets, liabilities, revenue
and expenses.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Chairman of
the Company (the chief operating decision maker)
for the purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s various
lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services,
and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B|RME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the Company's
functional and the Group's presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are
re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income within ‘other gains/
(losses) — net'.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that
are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. The transaction date is the
date on which the Group initially recognises
such non-monetary assets or liabilities. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value
are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.

2

=T

EEE

TR E

(a) IHEEMZIBRE ¥

(b)

AEETEEEH Y
%P)’T’iulﬁﬁi’]l«x;&,\%
ETENTELEERER
B E® D= -
FBHmERAE (BT
WAL ARNATNYIE
REERFIREE o

%

(][::3
%A o o) ‘mla i

K

VN

4

St

R 5 REER

SMEZ SRR B B KA E
B (1478 B 330 8) ME %
ME RN EN - HEULS
25 5t 1O 3 M2 A S 4B

WA K i LASNES SHE B B Méﬁ
EMBENFREXHRE
EWMERKENBEBERSE
EEKERANE MY
(B18) - FHR TR -

BINEELRAGTEZIFE
KEENRBEERXZHH
ZERBE - XZHH/N
SEBERERBHAIELERE

ERABER - RATET)
B A LA SN B (E 2 U6 S
ERABERATESEE
AZEREE -

FREXCEBERRIR —T-_FFH

95



96

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the
group entities (none of which has the currency
of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

assets and liabilities for each statement
of financial position presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date
of that statement of financial position;

income and expenses for each
statement of comprehensive income
are translated at average exchange rates
(unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on
the dates of the transactions); and

all resulting currency translation
differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the translation
reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B|RME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(d)

Disposal of foreign operation and
partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that
is, a disposal of the Group's entire interest
in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of significant influence over an associate
that includes a foreign operation), all of the
currency translation differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does
not result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
the proportionate share of accumulated
currency translation differences are re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and are
not recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (that is, reductions in the
Group's ownership interest in associates or
joint ventures that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence or joint control),
the proportionate share of the accumulated
exchange difference is reclassified to profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are expensed to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold improvements Over the lease term

Premises 50 years

Machinery and equipment 3-5 years
Right-of-use assets Over the lease term
Others 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (note 2.10(b)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B|RME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EESHHEEREZEw@

POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 26 % - EBINERE@®

2.7

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing the proceeds with the carrying
amount and are recognised within ‘other gains/
(losses) — net’ in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold interest
(see note 2.8) to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation. These include land held for a
currently undetermined future use and property that
is being constructed or developed for future use as
investment property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value,
unless they are still in the course of construction
or development at the end of the reporting period
and their fair value cannot be reliably measured at
that time. Any gain or loss arising from a change
in fair value or from the retirement or disposal of
an investment property is recognised in profit or
loss. Rental income from investment properties is
accounted for as described in note 2.26(d).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EEE:tREEE @

POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.

(i) Asalessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s)
and non-lease component(s), the Group has
elected not to separate non-lease components
and accounts for each lease component and
any associated non-lease components as a
single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability, except for short-term leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less and leases
of low-value assets. When the Group enters
into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the
Group decides whether to capitalise the lease
on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments
associated with those leases which are not
capitalised are recognised as an expense on a
systematic basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease
liability is initially recognised at the present
value of the lease payments payable over
the lease term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot
be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial
recognition, the lease liability is measured
at amortised cost and interest expense is
calculated using the effective interest method.
Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or rate are not included in the
measurement of the lease liability and hence
are charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a
lease is capitalised is initially measured at
cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability plus any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date,
and any initial direct costs incurred. Where
applicable, the cost of the right-of-use assets
also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle
and remove the underlying asset or to restore
the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value,
less any lease incentives received. The right-
of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see notes 2.6 and 2.10(b)), except for
the right-of-use asset that meet the definition
of investment property are carried at fair value
in accordance with note 2.7.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there
is a change in future lease payments arising
from a change in an index or rate, or there
is a change in the Group's estimate of the
amount expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee, or there is a change
arising from the reassessment of whether the
Group will be reasonably certain to exercise
a purchase, extension or termination option.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this
way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when
there is a change in the scope of a lease
or the consideration for a lease that is not
originally provided for in the lease contract
("lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the lease
liability is remeasured based on the revised
lease payments and lease term using a
revised discount rate at the effective date
of the modification. The only exceptions are
any rent concessions which arose as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic
and which satisfied the conditions set out
in paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16 Leases. In
such cases, the Group took advantage of the
practical expedient set out in paragraph 46A
of HKFRS 16, and recognised the change
in consideration as if it were not a lease
modification.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B|RME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

As a lessee (Continued)

In the consolidated statement of financial
position, the current portion of long-term
lease liabilities is determined as the principal
portion of contractual payments that are due
to be settled within twelve months after the
reporting period.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do
not meet the definition of investment property
in ‘other property, plant and equipment’ and
presents lease liabilities separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it
determines at lease inception whether each
lease is a finance lease or an operating lease.
A lease is classified as a finance lease if it
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership of an underlying
assets to the lessee. If this is not the case,
the lease is classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-
lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone selling
price basis. The rental income from operating
leases is recognised in accordance with note
2.26(d).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EESHHEEREZEw@
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Other investments in equity securities and 29 HMWERABSFEE K

derivative financial instruments TSI A

(a) Otherinvestments in equity securities (a) HMBRAZHKRE
The Group's policies for investments in REEZBRAFEHIZE (R
equity securities, other than investments in B HBEQTAREER
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, are AR ERINEER AT -
as follows:
Investments in equity securities are EAR B ETRE RN E B A
recognised/derecognised on the date BE HEzREgA®E
the Group commits to purchase/sell RRITER - BEREY)
the investment. The investments are FIERAFLENEEZEERS
initially stated at fair value plus directly FARF R - B BEREA
attributable transaction costs, except for FEARZZZEERI -
those investments measured at fair value HERXGRABEERBER AN E
through profit or loss (FVPL) for which R BARNEBNMAETS
transaction costs are recognised directly BMTAZAFME AHE
in profit or loss. For an explanation of how 33 - REREBEHEBRTES
the Group determines fair value of financial BIRUATARAAL ¢

instruments, see note 3.3. These investments
are subsequently accounted for as follows,
depending on their classification:

(i) Investments other than equity (i) BEAREUISZKEE
investments
Non-equity investments held by the NEEFAE 2 IERAK
Group are classified into one of the BB AN THEA—EE
following measurement categories: =5
- amortised cost, if the investment - REBHERAR
is held for the collection of RERECZEN
contractual cash flows which BRI EHE S
represent solely payments of e Bk A
principal and interest. Interest XA E RF
income from the investment is B o REMEF
calculated using the effective BRATNERE
interest method (see note 2.26(e)). BREEFTE (R

Mizr2.26(€)) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B|RME

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Other investments in equity securities and
derivative financial instruments (Continued)

(a) Other investments in equity securities

(Continued)

(i) Investments other than equity
investments (Continued)

fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) -
recycling, if the contractual cash
flows of the investment comprise
solely payments of principal and
interest and the investment is held
within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both the
collection of contractual cash flows
and sale. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive
income, except for the recognition
in profit or loss of expected
credit losses, interest income
(calculated using the effective
interest method) and foreign
exchange gains and losses. When
the investment is derecognised,
the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled
from equity to profit or loss.

fair value through profit or loss
(FVPL) if the investment does
not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or
FVOCI (recycling). Changes in
the fair value of the investment
(including interest) are recognised
in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Other investments in equity securities and
derivative financial instruments (Continued)

(a)

Other investments in equity securities
(Continued)

(ii)

Equity Investments

An investment in equity securities is
classified as FVPL unless the equity
investment is not held for trading
purposes and on initial recognition of the
investment the Group makes an election
to designate the investment at FVOCI
(non-recycling) such that subsequent
changes in fair value are recognised
in other comprehensive income. Such
elections are made on an instrument-
by-instrument basis, but may only be
made if the investment meets the
definition of equity from the issuer’s
perspective. Where such an election is
made, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income remains in the
fair value reserve (non-recycling) until the
investment is disposed of. At the time
of disposal, the amount accumulated
in the fair value reserve (non-recycling)
is transferred to accumulated losses.
It is not recycled through profit or loss.
Dividends from an investment in equity
securities, irrespective of whether
classified as at FVPL or FVOCI, are
recognised in profit or loss as other
income in accordance with the policy set
out in note 2.26(f).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B|RME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Other investments in equity securities and
derivative financial instruments (Continued)

(b)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised
at fair value. At the end of each reporting
period, the fair value is remeasured. The gain
or loss on remeasurement to fair value is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

2.10 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(a)

Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables

The Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit losses (ECLs) on the following
items:

- financial assets measured at
amortised cost (including cash and
cash equivalents, time deposits,
loans receivable, accounts and other
receivables and loans to associates);

- contract assets as defined in HKFRS 15
(see note 2.16);

- lease receivables; and

- loan commitments issued, which are not
measured at FVPL.

Other financial assets measured at fair value,
including equity securities measured at FVPL,
and derivative financial assets, are not subject
to the ECL assessment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(a)

Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables
(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all expected cash
shortfalls (that is, the difference between the
cash flows due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive).

For undrawn loan commitments, expected
cash shortfalls are measured as the difference
between (i) the contractual cash flows that
would be due to the Group if the holder of the
loan commitment draws down on the loan and
(i) the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive if the loan is drawn down.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(a)

Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables
(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted
using the following discount rates where the
effect of discounting is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets, accounts and
other receivables and contract assets:
effective interest rate determined at
initial recognition or an approximation
thereof;

- variable-rate financial assets: current
effective interest rate;

- lease receivables: discount rate used
in the measurement of the lease
receivable;

- loan commitments: current risk-free rate
adjusted for risks specific to the cash
flows.

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes
into account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue
cost or effort. This includes information about
past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EEg®

POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(a) Creditlosses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables
(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that
are expected to result from possible
default events within the 12 months
after the reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that
are expected to result from all possible
default events over the expected lives
of the items to which the ECL model
applies.

Loss allowances for accounts receivables,
lease receivables and contract assets are
always measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial
assets are estimated based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors and an assessment of both the
current and forecast general economic
conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments
(including loan commitments issued),
the Group recognises a loss allowance
equal to 12-month ECLs unless there
has been a significant increase in credit
risk of the financial instrument since
initial recognition, in which case the loss
allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B|RME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(a)

Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of
a financial instrument (including a loan
commitment) has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of default occurring on the financial
instrument assessed at the reporting date
with that assessed at the date of initial
recognition. In making this reassessment, the
Group considers that a default event occurs
when (i) the borrower is unlikely to pay its
credit obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as
realising security (if any is held); or (ii) the
financial asset is 90 days past due. The Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(a)

Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

- failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractual due dates;

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial instrument’s
external or internal credit rating (if
available);

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant
adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligations to the Group.

For loan commitments, the date of initial
recognition for the purpose of assessing
ECLs is considered to be the date that the
Group becomes a party to the irrevocable
commitment. In assessing whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition of a loan commitment,
the Group considers changes in the risk of
default occurring on the loan to which the loan
commitment relates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(a)

Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

For margin client receivables, the Group
considers there has been a significant
increase in credit risk when clients cannot
meet margin call requirements and uses the
loan-to-collateral value (“LTV") to make its
assessment. The Group considers a margin
client receivable is in default when payments
under the margin call requirement are 30
days past due. However, in certain cases,
the Group may also consider a margin client
receivable to be in default when there is
a margin shortfall which indicates that the
Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full, taking into account
the pledged securities held by the Group.
A margin client receivable is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either
an individual basis or a collective basis. When
the assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics,
such as past due status and credit risk ratings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(a)

Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date
to reflect changes in the financial instrument’s
credit risk since initial recognition. Any
change in the ECL amount is recognised as
an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Group recognises an impairment gain
or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account.

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with
note 2.26(e) is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless
the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which
case interest income is calculated based on
the amortised cost (that is, the gross carrying
amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(a)

Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables
(Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income
(Continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes the following observable
events:

- significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

- it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation;

= significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the
debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active market
for a security because of financial
difficulties of the issuer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables
(Continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, lease receivable or contract asset is
written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the
Group determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the
period in which the recovery occurs.

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the following
assets may be impaired or, except in the case
of goodwill, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- property, plant and equipment including
right-of-use assets;

- other intangible assets;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B|RME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(b)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

- film related deposits;

= film rights and films in progress; and

- investments in subsidiaries and
associates in the Company's statement
of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for intangible assets that are not yet available
for use and intangible assets that have
indefinite useful lives, the recoverable amount
is estimated annually whether or not there is
any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash-inflows independently
(that is, a cash generating unit).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(b)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss whenever the carrying amount of
an asset, or the cash-generating unit to
which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit (or group of units)
and then, to reduce the carrying amount
of the other assets in the unit (or group
of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying amount of an asset will not
be reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable) or
value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses
are credited to profit or loss in the year
in which the reversals are recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(c)

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required
to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim Financial
Reporting, in respect of the first six months
of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial
year (see notes 2.10(a) and (b)).

2.11 Intangible assets

(a)

(b)

Club membership

Club membership with indefinite useful
life is stated at cost less any impairment
losses. Impairment is reviewed annually and
when there is any indication that the club
membership has suffered an impairment loss.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Brand name

Brand name acquired in a business
combination is recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. Brand name has a
finite useful life and is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method over
the expected life of 7.5 years of the brand
name.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEE=SHBEHEEw@

POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Intangible assets (Continued) 2.11

(c) Computer software

Computer software is stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment loss
(see note 2.10(b)). Amortisation is charged to
profit or loss on a straight-line method over
the assets’ estimated useful lives of 5 years.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.
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2.12 Offsetting financial instruments 212 @t T A H

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position where the Group currently has a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts, and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The Group has also entered into
arrangements that do not meet the criteria for
offsetting but still allow for the related amounts
to be set off in certain circumstances, such as
bankruptcy or the termination of a contract.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B|RME

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average
cost formula and comprises all costs of purchase,
costs of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Film rights and films in progress

(a)

(b)

(c)

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2022

Film rights

Film rights comprise fees paid and payable
under agreements and direct expenses
incurred during the production of films, for
the reproduction and/or distribution of films
in various video gram formats, film exhibition,
licensing and sub-licensing of film titles.

Film rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses.

The cost of film rights is amortised over the
shorter of the underlying license period and
their estimated useful lives, with reference to
projected revenues.

Films in progress

Films in progress are stated at cost less any
provision for impairment losses. Cost includes
all direct costs associated with the production
of films. The balance of film production costs
not yet due at the end of each reporting period
are disclosed as commitments. Cost of films
is transferred to film rights upon completion.

Impairment

At each year end date, both internal and
external market information are considered
to assess whether there is any indication that
film rights and films in progress are impaired.
If any such indication exists, the carrying
amount of such assets is assessed and where
relevant, an impairment loss is recognised to
reduce the asset to its recoverable amount.
Such impairment losses are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B|RME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EESHHEEREZEw@
POLICIES (Continued)

2.15 Film related deposits 215 B €

Film related deposits comprise deposits paid for EXEE S BIEMIEE S ME
the acquisition of film rights and deposits paid to Y zEl e RREXFRBRIIXZNES
production houses, artists and others prior to the BUHERA BARHEMZETE - 1R
production of films. The balance payable under EinamAEBASTRERETLR
agreements for the acquisition and production of VEZ BT 8RR B A ER A B 25 o
film rights is disclosed as a commitment. Provision BB 2 BBEIRERAEEE
for film related deposits is made based on future EZRRBRAREZ @I 2E
revenue generated for the Group and the carrying HE{EMmMEL -

value of film related deposits.

2.16 Contract assets and contract liabilities 26 GRIEERGHAEE

A contract asset is recognised when the group ABRHEEEASEBEEKMER
recognises revenue (see note 2.26) before being BRI TER TR ER#ER
unconditionally entitled to the consideration under U2k (R aE2.26) B HERR - AHVE
the payment terms set out in the contract. Contract EEIRMIE2.10(a) P BUSE #E 1T TR AP
assets are assessed for ECL in accordance with the EEEIEFE - WEUER (B R4
policy set out in note 2.10(a) and are reclassified to F PR A AR (B BB 3T D FR 2 PRI
receivables when the right to the consideration has H(RWE2.17) o

become unconditional (see note 2.17).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer AHBABEASEEREBRKS
pays consideration before the Group recognises AIEPXNRERER (R
the related revenue (see note 2.26). A contract 2.26) o MAREE A B FEFE
liability would also be recognised if the Group has 7N E% [ B SR AE R i s T HSCER A AT K
an unconditional right to receive non-refundable BERE - AEHBETIERR -
consideration before the Group recognises the ERBEBRAT  HERRFETE
related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding EER(RWE2.17) -

receivable would also be recognised (see note 2.17).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net REXEFPHE—EAOME F 8275
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented. BHNEEFEXEHNBEFE-
For multiple contracts, contract assets and contract MELHEHmME  THBEELNE
liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented HNEERAHABETRFEEES
on a net basis. Al o

When the contract includes a significant financing MENBREARERSD + GH%K
component, the contract balance includes interest HEERBERA SRS ENES
accrued under the effective interest method (see FE(RKIFE2.26) ©

note 2.26).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Accounts and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only
the passage of time is required before payment
of that consideration is due. If revenue has been
recognised before the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration, the amount is
presented as a contract asset (see note 2.16).

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit
losses (see note 2.10(a)).

2.18 Loans receivable

Loans receivable are loans granted to customers in
the ordinary course of business. If the collection of
loans receivable is expected to be one year or less,
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Loans receivable are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less allowance for
credit losses (see note 2.10(a)).

2.19 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
cash held at custodian, and short-term, highly liquid
investments readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for ECL in accordance
with the policy set out in note 2.10(a).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B|RME

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Accounts and other payables

2.21

Accounts and other payables are initially recognised
at fair value and are subsequently stated at
amortised cost unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the
effective interest method.

2.22 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Income Tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax
assets also arise from unused tax loses and unused
tax credits.

2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B|RME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EEE2:REEE @

POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Income Tax (Continued) 2.23 FT15354 #)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences, provided
that those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as
the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
differences or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from the initial recognition of
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assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting EXaEzYIPERFIIREEL
nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of a IEBEHz—HD)  UREE

business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the
Group controls the timing of the reversal and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Income Tax (Continued)

Where investment properties are carried at their
fair value in accordance with the accounting policy
set out in note 2.7, the amount of deferred tax
recognised is measured using the tax rates that
would apply on sale of those assets at their carrying
value at the end of the reporting period unless the
property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the
property over time, rather than through sale. In all
other cases, the amount of deferred tax recognised
is measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of
the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Income Tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets
are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred
tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the
Company or the Group has the legally enforceable
right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the following additional conditions are
met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either:

o the same taxable entity; or

° different taxable entities, which, in
each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in share-
based compensation reserve within equity.
The fair value is measured at grant date using
the Binominal Option Pricing Model, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to
the share options, the total estimated fair
value of the share options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B|RME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Share-based payments (Continued

During the vesting period, the number of
share options expected to vest is reviewed.
Any resulting adjustment to the cumulative
fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to the profit or loss for the year of the
review, unless the original employee expenses
qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share-based
compensation reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted
to reflect the actual number of share options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to
the share-based compensation reserve) except
where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market
price of the Company's shares. When share
options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share-based compensation
reserve will be transferred to share premium.
When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised
in share-based compensation reserve will be
transferred to retained earnings.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when
it recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.

2

=T

EEE

TR E

2.24 & B1E@F|®)

(b)

(c)

LARR 9 A Bl 2 A FR (]
REBHA  KNRAREEH
ERSEEZBRERE -
BEFEERZZFATE
ZAEIARRE AR BT
BRIz FEZREMR G
A BRIERRBERXAE
RERS—REE  YHEK
DM FE R IERERAE - Al
fERlim - NEBE A - HiE
RRAX S RETHEBIN
RRFEEREZEREA
(3 B 1 3 B ek 445 1F 48 FB 5
) EEARRERELRR
AR T B AR R 2 BR 8B IR 1
o8 Y& BRSO o fief BB A i 1E
1T - AT B RN (4
RSB BERER DR
B - MBRENEEB AR
RN BB B DR ETT
5 - B ST BT AR 4D 3R B % 4
BRAZEENERERER
R o

BEEBE A

BEREN DN AEE T B
BHIR % SR A R L g
RYEEINEBRERNZE
AR AR (AR T & R%E) 1§

7
e

FREXCEBERRIR —T-_FFH

131



132

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot
be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed
as a contingent liability, unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.26 Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when
it arises from the sale of goods, the provision of
services or the use by others of the Group’s assets
under leases in the ordinary course of the Group's
business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product
or service is transferred to the customer, or the
lessee has the right to use the asset, at the amount
of promised consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

Further details of the Group’s revenue ad other
income recognition policies are as follows:

(a) Revenue from sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised
at a point in time when the customers take
possession of and accept the products.

(b) Income from licensing and sub-licensing of
film rights

Income from licensing and sub-licensing of
film rights is recognised at a point in time
upon the delivery of the pre-recorded audio/
visual products and the materials for video
features including the master tapes to the
customers, in accordance with the terms of
the underlying contracts.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.26 Revenue and other income (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Film exhibition income

Film exhibition income is recognised at a point
in time when the film is shown and the right
to receive payment is established.

Rental income from operating lease

Operating lease and other rental income is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method using the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to the gross carrying amount
of the financial assets. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost that are not
credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is
applied to the gross carrying amount of the
asset. For credit-impaired financial assets,
the effective interest rate is applied to the
amortised cost (that is, gross carrying amount
net of loss allowance) of the asset (see note
2.10(a)).

Dividend income

Dividend income from unlisted investments
is recognised when the shareholder’s right
to receive payment is established. Dividend
income from listed investments is recognised
when the share price of the investment goes
ex-dividend.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.26 Revenue and other income (Continued)

(g)

(h)

Financial printing and translation services

Revenue from the provision of financial
printing and translation services is recognised
overtime by measuring the progress towards
complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation, which is determined
based on the Group's inputs to the satisfaction
of a performance obligation relative to the
total expected inputs to the satisfaction of that
performance obligation.

Revenue from the sales of printed products is
recognised at a point in time as the customers
obtains control of the printed products.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially when
there is reasonable assurance that they will
be received and that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to them. Grants
that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or
loss on a systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred. Grants
that compensate the Group for the cost of an
asset are deducted from the carrying amount
of the asset and consequently are effectively
recognised in profit or loss over the useful life
of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense.

e M B|RME

2 BESTTHXREEwm

2.26 W25 N H o A ()
(g) BHEENRIR B2

YR (R B A BN B B 5 AR %5 2
W HBER EER - AR
AAEEEENEEBENEE
ZEE  EHBEZEERAX
SERTKRBHOREZRA
HEE R T E OB E 2 RE
I o

HENRERZKETINE
5 BR AT ED ol 72 A 122 11 4 B

7
e

(h) BRAFFEBD

el 7] & 32 B TE B 5 U ER BT
w8 BAKESTAERA
77 B P BS 5 BO 164 - RUBR S
BB ML EMBRR K S
BR - MEAKEMRELR
XN EERXR—
HEBERRUNBRERR
WA - HERNREEEEKRAS
2 EEEREEMR
HERNZBEEZAERSF
HIUR DI ER T ANE
3= NH R ©

EFREVCEBERLDR —T-_FFH

135



136

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.27 Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations

(a)

Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group)
is classified as held for sale if it is highly
probable that its carrying amount will be
recovered through a sale transaction rather
than through continuing use and the asset
(or disposal group) is available for sale in its
present condition. A disposal group is a group
of assets to be disposed of together as a
group in a single transaction, and liabilities
directly associated with those assets that will
be transferred in the transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan
involving loss of control of a subsidiary, all
the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are
classified as held for sale when the above
criteria for classification as held for sale
are met, regardless of whether the Group
will retain a non-controlling interest in the
subsidiary after the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B|RME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.27 Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations (Continued)

(a)

Non-current assets held for sale (Continued)

Immediately before classification as held
for sale, the measurement of the non-
current assets (and all individual assets and
liabilities in a disposal group) is brought up-
to-date in accordance with the accounting
policies before the classification. Then, on
initial classification as held for sale and until
disposal, the non-current assets (except
for certain assets as explained below), or
disposal groups, are recognised at the lower
of their carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell. The principal exceptions to this
measurement policy so far as the financial
statements of the Group and the Company
are concerned are deferred tax assets, assets
arising from employee benefits, financial
assets (other than investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures) and investment
properties. These assets, even if held for sale,
would continue to be measured in accordance
with the policies set out elsewhere in note 2.

Impairment losses on initial classification
as held for sale, and on subsequent
remeasurement while held for sale, are
recognised in profit or loss. As long as a non-
current asset is classified as held for sale, or
is included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale, the non-current asset is not
depreciated or amortised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.27 Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations (Continued)

(b)

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of
the Group's business, the operations and cash
flows of which can be clearly distinguished
from the rest of the Group and which
represents a separate major line of business
or geographical area of operations, or is part
of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a
separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired
exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation
occurs upon disposal or when the operation
meets the criteria to be classified as held for
sale (see (i) above), if earlier. It also occurs if
the operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as
discontinued, a single amount is presented on
the face of the statement of comprehensive
income, which comprises:

- the post-tax profit or loss of the
discontinued operation; and

- the post-tax gain or loss recognised on
the measurement to fair value less costs
to sell, or on the disposal, of the assets
or disposal group(s) constituting the
discontinued operation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.28 Related parties

(a)

(b)

A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the Group;
or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.
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e M BHRHE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.28 Related parties (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including currency
risk, interest rate risk and equity price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall
risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's
financial performance. The policies for managing
these risks are summarised below.

(a) Market risk

(i) Currency risk

(i) Exposure to currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency
risk primarily through sales and
purchases which give rise to
receivables, payables and cash
balances that are denominated in a
foreign currency, that is, a currency
other than the functional currency
of the operations to which the
transactions relate. The currency
giving rise to this risk is primarily
Renminbi (“RMB") (2021: RMB).

The following table details the
Group’'s exposure at the end of
the reporting period to currency
risk arising from recognised assets
or liabilities denominated in a
currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which
they relate. For presentation
purposes, the amounts of the
exposure are shown in Hong Kong
dollars, translated using the spot
rate at the year end date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

3 FINANCIALRISK MANAGEMENTANDFAIR 3 HKEKREEREHMIAZ

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AEE@®
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MR A = o)
(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) THiZERE @)
(i) Currency risk (Continued) (i) EHEFEGE)
(i) Exposure to currency risk (Continued) ) Fr#&ZzEE
E B (58)

Exposure to foreign
currencies (expressed in
Hong Kong dollars)

142

P& 2 SNE B B
(LB THIR)
2022 2021
—E-—F T —%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Cash and cash HeERBEEED
equivalents 8 409
Accounts receivable JE U AR X 8,766 90,765
Financial assets included 3T AI2ETS -
in “deposits paid, TETFIE R H A
prepayments and FEWGRIE]Z & 'L
other receivables” BE - 660
Accounts payable JE - BR X (13,636) (83)
Other payables and H b AT 5B &
accrued charges FEET (4,993) (16,999)
(9,855) 74,752
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENTAND FAIR 3 HBIiEEREERESHIAE

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS N{E
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 BBREERZE®
(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) THiZERE @)
(i) Currency risk (Continued) (i) BB E)
(i) Sensitivity analysis (i) BT
The following table indicates TEREI N HE
the instantaneous change in the HIRAS B EEG
Group's loss/profit after tax (and B KA BB E
accumulated losses) that would fEEMNZ A LR
arise if foreign exchange rates to FE)(BREMBEE
which the Group has significant 2 B 2 R 5
exposure at the end of the TE) ¥R E BBk
reporting period had changed at 1&g E518 i T
that date, assuming all other risk (RRFBEE
variables remained constant. HHIBNREE) o
2022 2021
—E-CE —E-—F
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in loss in profit
after tax and after tax and
Increase/ (increase)/ Increase/ (increase)/
(decrease) decrease (decrease) decrease
in foreign in accumulated inforeign  in accumulated
exchange rates losses  exchange rates losses
BREZER BRI &R
#m,/ (HD) /(i)
SHEER REGER HINE B & REER
R/ (TE) (gm) /WD /(TR ¢gm,/ me
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FTET
RMB AR 5% (493) 5% 3,738
(5%) 493 (5%) (3,738)
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Currency risk (Continued)
(i) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

Results of the analysis as
presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the
instantaneous effects on each of
the group entities’ loss/profit after
tax and equity measured in the
respective functional currencies,
translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rate ruling at the
end of the reporting period for
presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes
that the change in foreign
exchange rates had been applied
to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group
which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk at the end of the
reporting period. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for
2021.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises
primarily from fair value interest rate risk
in relation to fixed rate loans receivable
(see note 19) from its money lending
business. The management considered
that the risk is insignificant as the
amounts are carried at amortised cost
and not remeasured in the financial
statements in response to changes in
interest rates. Therefore, no sensitivity
analysis for the years ended 30 June
2022 and 2021 was disclosed.
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e M B|RME

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENTAND FAIR 3 BiEMEENSRTIEZ
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS NFE @)

(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 B REREZ=®
(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) TiZEMKE @

(i) Equity price risk (i) ARAEJE Bz

The Group is exposed to equity price
risk arising from changes in the prices
of listed securities, unlisted investment
funds and unlisted limited partnership.
The sensitivity analysis has been
determined based on the exposure to
equity price risk.

The Group's trading securities are listed
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. Decisions to buy or sell trading
securities are based on daily monitoring
of the performance of individual
securities compared to that of the Hang
Seng Index and GEM Index of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and
other industry indicators, as well as the
Group's liquidity needs.

For the unlisted investment funds and
unlisted limited partnership classified as
other financial assets measured at fair
value through profit or loss, the board
of directors manages the exposure
to equity price risk by maintaining a
portfolio of investments funds with
different risk and return profiles.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
(iii) ~ Equity price risk (Continued)

At 30 June 2022, it is estimated that
an increase/decrease of 10% (2021:
10%) in the fair value of the Group's
trading securities with all other variables
held constant would have decreased/
increased the Group’'s loss after tax
(and increased/decreased accumulated
losses) by HK$630,000 (2021: increased/
decreased the Group's profit after tax
(and decreased/increased accumulated
losses) by HK$6,419,000).

At 30 June 2022, it is estimated that
an increase/decrease of 10% (2021:
10%) in the fair value of unlisted
investment funds and unlisted limited
partnership classified as other financial
assets measured at fair value through
profit or loss with all other variables
held constant would have decreased/
increased in the Group’'s loss after tax
(and decreased/increased accumulated
losses) by HK$93,000 (2021: increased/
decreased the Group's profit after tax
(and decreased/increased accumulated
losses) by HK$145,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.
(b)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty
will default on its contractual obligation
resulting in financial loss to the Group. The
Group has adopted a policy of only dealing
with creditworthy counterparties as a means
of mitigating the risk of financial loss from
default. The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to accounts receivable, loans
receivables and other receivables. The
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from
cash and cash equivalents is limited because
the counterparties are banks and financial
institutions with high credit rating assigned by
rating agency, for which the Group considers
to have low credit risk.

Accounts receivable from businesses other
than securities brokerage and margin financing
businesses

In respect of accounts receivable arising
from trading, wholesaling and retailing of
optical products and watches products, and
provisions of financial printing services, in
order to minimize the credit risk, management
has a credit policy in place and the exposures
to these credit risks are monitored on an
on-going basis. Credit evaluations of its
customers'’ financial position and condition are
performed on each and every major customer
periodically. These evaluations focus on the
customer'’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and
take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the customer
operates. Receivables due from customers are
due within the settlement period commonly
adopted by the relevant market convention,
which is usually within 180 days from the
trade date. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from its customers.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 3
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BrsE R E =@
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERR@E

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2022

Accounts receivable from businesses other
than securities brokerage and margin financing
businesses (Continued)

In respect of accounts receivable arising
from video distribution, film distribution and
exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of film
rights business, in order to minimise the
credit risk, management has a credit policy
in place and the exposures to these credit
risks are monitored on an on-going basis.
Credit evaluations of its customers’ financial
position and condition are performed on each
and every major customer periodically. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment
in which the customer operates. Sales of
videogram products are with credit terms of
7-60 days from the trade date. Sales from film
exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of film
rights are on open account terms. Sales to
retail customers are made in cash or via major
credit cards. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from its customers.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Accounts receivable from businesses other
than securities brokerage and margin financing
businesses (Continued)

In respect of businesses mentioned above, the
Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
debtor and customer. The default risk of the
industry in which debtors or customers operate
also has an influence on credit risk but to a
lesser extent. The Group had no concentration
of credit risk in respect of accounts receivable
from these businesses with exposure spread
over a number of counterparties.

The Group measures loss allowances for
accounts receivable from these businesses
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. For
accounts receivable arising from trading,
wholesaling and retailing of optical products
and watches products, and provisions of
financial printing services, these receivables
are normally settled within 6 months. The
Group has assessed that the expected
credit loss for these receivables as at 30
June 2022 and 30 June 2021 based on
historical settlement records and looking-
forward information (including the economic
environment) and impairment loss allowance
was recognised on these accounts receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

3 FINANCIALRISK MANAGEMENTANDFAIR 3 HKEKREEREHMIAZ

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS N {E @
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BIRREREZ=®
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERR@E
Accounts receivable from businesses other K EFBFELRFIRAE
than securities brokerage and margin financing EBEUIFEFE 2 BWIR
businesses (Continued) (%)
The following table provides information TRERRZ-_ZZ-__FXA
about the Group's exposure to credit risk for —THABAEBREESFH
accounts receivable arising from businesses BuERAERBEEB 2N
other than securities brokerage and margin EBRERER ZEERE
financing businesses as at 30 June 2022. HZ2&#R -
At 30 June 2022 R-ZFEZZFANHAH=1H
Gross
Expected carrying Loss  Net carrying
loss rate amount allowance amount
BEEEE BEAE BERE REFE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tin THn Tin
Trading, wholesaling and BHEER  #ER
retailing of optical KEERES
products, watches and HERBEER
jewellery
Current (not past due) A (R = 128 = 128
1-30 days past due BE0A = 55 S 55
31-90 days past due BE3IZI0H = 89 = 89
91-365 days past due #8912365H = 635 = 635
QOver 365 days past due B3R L L - 63 - 63
970 - 970
Provision of financial printing 1248 S RIRH
services
Current not past due) SE(Ra) 2.30-100.00 11,386 (946) 10,440
1-30 days past due BH1Z30R 2.60~100.00 4n (66) 345
31-90 days past due BHIZ0H 3.10-100.00 316 (153) 163
91-365 days past due 39123650 3.10-100.00 396 (186) 210
QOver 365 days past due BH65H A L 3.10-100.00 498 473) 25
13,007 (1,824) 11,183
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3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Accounts receivable from businesses other

e M B|RME

3 BEEREENESMIAEZ

NEE@
3.1 BIRREREZ=®

(b) EEREER @)

KEEFELRFRABE

than securities brokerage and margin financing EHUIEHZERRL
businesses (Continued) (%)
At 30 June 2022 (Continued) R-ZE-Z—F,A=+H
()
Gross
Expected carrying Loss  Net carrying
loss rate amount allowance amount
RRERE BEEE BERE REFE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THn TR
Video distribution, film RERT EYRAR
distribution and exhibition, M - BHREZE
licensing and sub-licensing ~ FREEHR
of film rights
Current (not past due) A (R 0.10-11.70 1,046 (32) 1,014
1-30 days past due BEE0A 0.15-11.75 3,040 (5) 3,035
31-90 days past due BHNENA 0.15-11.75 21 = 21
91-365 days past due #1891 %3651 0.20-11.80 1,444 7) 1437
QOver 365 days past due BH365A M £ 0.25-11.85 4,324 (10) 4314
9,875 (54) 9,821
Others At
1-30 days past due BEH1ZE30A 0.15-3.87 12 1) 1
QOver 365 days past due B3R L L 0.25 664 (1) 663
676 2) 674
Total @t 24,528 (1,880) 22,648
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued)

Accounts receivable from businesses other
than securities brokerage and margin financing
businesses (Continued)

The following table provides information
about the Group's exposure to credit risk for
accounts receivable arising from businesses
other than securities brokerage and margin
financing businesses as at 30 June 2021.

3 BEEREENESMIAEZ

NEE@
3.1 BIRREREZ=®

(b)

(B

KEFEHLLRFIRHE
EBEUIFEFE 2 BWIR
(&)
TREHR - -_FF,XA
=t+tREBAEEKXEEF
KERFTRBEEE 2
¥ EWER R 2 EE R R
OZ&R -

At 30 June 2021 R-_E_—FXH=1H
Gross
Expected carrying Loss  Net carrying
loss rate amount allowance amount
RRERE BEEE BERE REFE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T ThEL TR
Trading, wholesaling and BEER  #ER
retailing of optical KEERES
products, watches and HERBEER
jewellery
Current (not past due) A (R = 668 = 668
31-90 days past due BHIZ0H = 133 = 133
91-365 days past due 1912365 = 20 = 20
821 - 821
Provision of financial printing 12448 1l AR 7%
services
Current (not past due) A (R ) 1.70-100.00 4,389 [415) 3,974
1-30 days past due BE1Z30R 1.70-100.00 5,375 (186) 5,189
31-90 days past due BH31Z90H 1.70-100.00 760 (74) 686
91-365 days past due ##912365H 1.70-100.00 1,490 (604) 886
Over 365 days past due #1365 A M £ 6.90-100.00 473 (205) 268
12,487 (1,484) 11,003

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B|RME

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Accounts receivable from businesses other

3 BEEREENESMIAEZ

NEE@
3.1 B REREZ=®

(b) EEREER @)

KEEFELRFRHBE

than securities brokerage and margin financing EBUIEBZERIRL
businesses (Continued) (%)
At 30 June 2021 (Continued) RZFE-—FNA=+H
€-))
Gross
Expected carrying Loss  Net carrying
loss rate amount allowance amount
REBEE BERE BERE REFE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tix THER Tix
Video distribution, film RERT E¥ROR
distribution and exhibition, M - RERERE
licensing and sub-licensing ~ FIREEK
of film rights
Current {not past due) SN (R i) 0.10-9.30 21,985 420) 21,565
1-30 days past due BHIZE0A 0.15-9.30 561 (1) 560
31-90 days past due BH31ZE0A 0.15-9.30 248 = 248
91-365 days past due 89123650 0.20-9.30 68,183 (134) 68,049
Over 365 days past due otk =D 0.25-9.30 4,692 (23) 4,669
95,669 (578) 95,091
Others Ht
Current (not past due) BlkieSat) 0.1 22 = 2
1-30 days past due BE30A 0.15 8 S 8
31-90 days past due BE3IZ0H 0.15-0.20 9 = 9
91-365 days past due BEI912365H 0.20-0.25 10 - 10
Over 365 days past due B3R L L 0.25 1,889 (5) 1,884
1,938 (5) 1,933
Total o 110,915 2,067) 108,848
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENTAND FAIR 3 HEREREERERMIAZ

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS NEE@
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BrrgRBe A=)

(b)  Credit risk (Continued)

Accounts receivable from businesses other
than securities brokerage and margin financing
businesses (Continued)

Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts
in respect of accounts receivable from businesses

(b)

(B
KEEFELRFRABE
RIELUSP 5 2 FEW AR
(&
KEEFEGLRITRBE
B AIPZFE 2 JEH IR

other than securities brokerage and margin R
financing business
2022 2021
—E-F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Balance at 1 July Rt A—B s 2,067 1,066
Amounts written off EiiE e = (815)
Current year change in TR EEBEAFTERZE
expected credit loss (187) 1,816
Balance at 30 June RANA=Z+RZ&ER 1,880 2,067

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2022



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B|RME

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Accounts receivable from securities brokerage
and margin financing businesses

In order to manage the credit risk in the
accounts receivable due from clients arising
from securities brokerage and margin
financing business, individual credit evaluation
are performed on all clients including cash
and margin clients. Accounts receivable
from cash clients related to a wide range of
customers who generally settle the accounts
receivable within two days after trade date
and are secured by the portfolio of securities
of the cash clients. Credit risk arising from
the accounts receivable due from cash
clients is therefore considered minimal. For
margin clients, the Group normally obtains
liquid securities as collateral based on the
customers’ margin requirements. The margin
requirement is closely monitored on a daily
basis by designated team. In addition, the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of
each individual receivable at the end of each
reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the credit risk
is significantly reduced. Market conditions
and adequacy of securities collateral and
margin deposits of each margin account are
monitored by management on a daily basis.
Margin calls and forced liquidation are made
where necessary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 3
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

BEEEEERERmTE
NEE@®

(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 BBREERZE®
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERR@E
Accounts receivable from securities brokerage KEFEHLLRFIRHE
and margin financing businesses (Continued) X EWER (&)

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2022

The credit quality and the maximum exposure
to credit risk of accounts receivable from
margin clients is mainly based on Loan-to-
value ratio (“LTV") unless other information is
available without undue cost or effort.

In respect of accounts receivable from
brokers, credit risks are considered to be low
as the Group normally enters into transactions
with brokers which are registered with
regulatory bodies and enjoy sound reputation
in the industry.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
has no significant concentration risk (2021: no
significant concentration risk).

The Group has no account receivable from any
margin client as at 30 June 2022 and 2021.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)
Loans receivable

In respect of loans receivable (including loan
to an associate) from customers and third
parties, the objective of the Group’s measures
to manage credit risk is to control the potential
exposure to recoverability problem. The Group
manages and analyses the credit risk for each
of its new and existing customers before
payment terms and conditions are concluded
by assessing the credit qualities of the
customers and the third parties, taking into
account its financial position, past settlement
experience, collateral held and other factors.
Loans receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis, management reviews the
loans receivable at each reporting date to
ensure that adequate impairment allowance is
made. In this regard, management considers
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced. Interest income are usually billed on
a quarterly basis.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had concentration of credit risk as 100%
(2021: 100%) of the loans receivable are due
from the Group's four (2021: six) debtors.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 3

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued)
Loans receivable (Continued)

An analysis of changes in the gross amount
of loans receivable (including loan to an
associate) is as follows:

FEEREERSRMIAZ
N{E

3.1 BIRREREZ=®
(b) EERE @
JEU E5 2 (58)

RE R (R EET— B
AR ZER)BBEOR B
m

For the year ended 30 June 2022
BE-E-EXRR=TRLEE

Purchased
Lifetime Lifetime or
expected expected originated
12-month  creditloss credit loss credit-
expected - not credit - credit impaired
credit loss impaired impaired ("POCI") Total
BAY
FARE
AE
2HES 2HES [BAS
2ERRYE  FEEE-  GEEE- FEEE
FEFE  FERHE EERE HE) h
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3)
(#E-§) (#E=) (E=8
HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
Thn T T Fin Fhn
Balance at 1 July 2021 RZB--FLh-Bz&H 3,682 = 2,052 2,450 8,184
Loans repaid during the year EREERER
(other than write-offs) (Hnsamean) (2,308) = = - (2,308)
Balance at 30 June 2022 RZBZZERAZTHZ
&8 1374 - 2,082 2,450 5,876
Representing: f%:
Loans receivable EUER 1,374 = 2,082 2,450 5,876

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2022



3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENTAND FAIR 3 BiifEMREEREMIEZ
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS YNSSENC)
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 IR EEEZE®
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERR@E
Loans receivable (Continued) FEW B 5 (48)
For the year ended 30 June 2021
BE-E_-EXA=THLEE
Lifetime Lifetime
expected expected
12-month credit loss credit loss
expected - not credit - credit
credit loss impaired impaired pocCl Total
2HEN 20RS BAY
12EREE FEFR-  GEEE- FikE
REBE  FEENE EEHE HE &t
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3)
(#E-§) (#E=§) (=R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Ti#n TR TR T Thn
Balance at 1 July 2020 RZE-EELA-AzER 7475 = 2,052 2,450 11977
New loans originated REZHER 5,400 . S S 5,400
Loans repaid during the year FREERER
(other than write-offs) (R 9,193) = - - (9,193)
Balance at 30 June 2021 WZEZ-EXB=1RZ
i 3682 = 2,052 2,450 8184
Representing: R&:
Loans receivable ERER 3682 . S S 3682
Loan to an associate iGN WA £ = = 2,052 2450 4502
3,682 - 2,062 2,450 8,184

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B|RME

EFREEBERAR —T_FFRK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

3

(Continued)

(b)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENTAND FAIR 3 BiIEREEREMIAE Y
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS N{E
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 IR EEEZE®
Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERR@E
Loans receivable (Continued) FEW B 5 (48)
An analysis of changes in the corresponding HEBHEEBERENE
ECL allowances is as follows: Elleakng (NN
For the year ended 30 June 2022
BE-Z__ERA=tHILEE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total
BAg
RERE
E-% £ £=4 wE @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn FER TEn TATL TEn
Balance at 1 July 2021 RZBZ-EtA-Az&H 216 = 2,052 2450 4718
Loans repaid during the year ~ FACEEBEH
(other than write-offs) (Hrsamon) 77) S S = (77)
Balance at 30 June 2022 RZBZZERA=1A
&8 139 = 2,052 2450 4,641
Arising from: EEB:
Loans receivable RBUBER 139 S 2,052 2450 4,641

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2022



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B|RME

3 FINANCIALRISK MANAGEMENTANDFAIR 3 HKEKREEREHMIAZ

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS NEE@
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BrrgRBe A=
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERE @
Loans receivable (Continued) FEWE L (48)

For the year ended 30 June 2021
B2-E_-ERA=tHILEE

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total
BAg
FERE
£-8 ot F=R WE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TARL TAR A TAR TAR
Balance at 1 July 2020 R-ZB-BELA-AZEH 259 = 2,052 2450 4,761
New loans originated FELHER 131 = = = 131
Loans repaid during the year ~ £RCEBER
(other than write-offs) (Hrsamron) (179) - - - (179)
Movement dus tochange i~ EEEREEEY
oredit risk ik 5 - - = 5
Balance at 30 June 2021 RZB=-%¥XA=1H
2t 216 = 2,052 2450 4718
Arising from: EkE:
Loans receivable EUER 216 - - S 216
Loan to an associate RT-HBEARAER = = 2,052 2,450 4,502
216 - 2,052 2450 4,718
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

FEEREERSRMIAZ

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS N Ew@

(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BrrgRBe A=)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERR@E
Other receivables Bt e 8

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2022

For other receivables which includes other
receivables and amounts due from joint
operation partners, credit checks are part of
the normal operating process and stringent
monitoring procedures are in place to deal
with overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amounts of other
receivables at the end of each reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
has concentrations of credit risk as 19% (2021:
35%) of the total other receivables was due
from the Group's largest debtor and 72%
(2021: 79%) of the total other receivables
was due from the Group’s five largest debtors
respectively.

The Group measures loss allowance for other
receivables using lifetime ECLs for each
debtor individually with significant balances.
As at 30 June 2022, based on historical
settlement record and risk of default for
each debtor and forward-looking information
(including the economic environment), write-
back of loss allowance of HK$24,000 was
recognized during the year 30 June 2022
(2021: HK$91,000).

FhE AR FE UK IR (B R E A R
WA R WS EXBBH
RBE)ME  EERER/L
FREREFZ D - A
BREREFREEBHREK
oo MH REBERE®RE
IRt E E A B YRR 2 7]
Yool FREE - DA BE AR B SRR
B SREE A B SR E B 1R o

REER  ANEBESE
EEFRERE  HPHMER
RIEAEMNII% (= —
F :36%) BEWNAEEHEK
B ARFRIE » M H b EK
RIBHENT2% (T = —
F 1 79%) A0 RIERAEE
AKEHAWFIE -

AEBABA2PBEHEES
BYHAEBSEREHNBRE
5 B £t 8 UL 51 IE (8 Bl i
ATESEREE  RZE==
FXNAZTH RESRE
BARBAEGEETSNED
EBARAEEER (B
KERE) BEREE-Z
T CEXRAZ=THIEFEER
REEE E 18 E 24,0007 T
T —F  BEEERE
91,0007 7T) °



3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the
Group are responsible for their own cash
management, including the short term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising
of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to the parent company's board
approval. The Group's policy is to regularly
monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants to ensure that it maintains sufficient
amount of cash and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term. All of the Group's
financial liabilities are due within one year.

3.2 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders,
issue new shares or sell assets.

e M B|RME
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.2 Capital management (Continued)

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of a gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total
capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings
(include borrowings and lease liabilities) less cash
and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as
‘equity’ as shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position, plus net debt, where applicable.

The Group’s adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio at the
end of the current and previous reporting periods
and at the date of transition to HKFRS 16 was as
follows:

3 BEEREENESMIAEZ
N{E

3.2

BAREIR @#®
MEMAL 1 FEENEES
(B LV BB A AR EE o Sk
RSB A ERIVBERE - 8
EREES BEEERASERE)
HEBSRBLZEYHE - B4
AR A B TEOR R B8 [HE28
EFEENRAE)EE

REBRERHEBEREER - A
MBEZBEBUBRELRFE 16
SRE R RAERFEKEARLLEN
™

30 June 30 June
2022 2021
—E-= T
ANA=+H ~NAZTH
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHExT FHET
Current liabilities: mEaE:
Lease liabilities MEAE 25 7,800 12,283
7,800 12,283
Non-current liabilities: JEREEE -
Lease liabilities HERE 25 5,458 9,151
Total debt HER 13,258 21,434
Less: Cash and cash B IReRReE
equivalent BY 21 (211,846) (375,924)
Adjusted net debt RARFER (198,588) (354,490)
Total equity g 427,228 505,467
Adjusted capital BRBER 427,228 505,467
Adjusted net debt-to- BRARBEKELX N/A N/A
capital ratio [z TEHR T iE A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.3 Fair value measurement

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s financial instruments measured at
the end of the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level fair
value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair
Value Measurement. The level into which
a fair value measurement is classified is
determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the
valuation technique as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs, that is,
unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
at the measurement date

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs, that is, observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and
not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs
for which market data are not available

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs

The Group has a team headed by the
finance manager performing valuations for
the financial instruments. The team reports
directly to the directors of the Company and
the audit committee. Valuation reports with
analysis of changes in fair value measurement
are prepared by the team at each annual
reporting date, and are reviewed and approved
by the directors of the Company. Discussion
of the valuation process and results with the
directors and the audit committee is held once
a year, to coincide with the reporting date.

e M B|RME

3 BREREERSBMIAY
NEE@®

33 A¥EE=
(i) BRATEIEZSH

LEREE

AFEZER

TRENAEESBIA
NEE ZEERIARR
RIS B B B
W HE BB B ERS &
BIE135R [ A EFE IR
Er=HMATEEE - BA
FEIBHEL SR ES
TG E T SRR R AR
BrABEMREE NN

JE -

o ERME EERE
— R85 A B (DR 5t
EABARAERRE
RE R 2 RSB
(E)H 22 AFE

e FE_QMHE:ERF-
Ao A BUR (AR BEIE
AE—RZABRBA
BB BAREREKR
TR BRGARIBTE
ZRFE - TABER
ABESEMSEEZ
BARE

s  F=AMEHE:ERERX
TRBRBARESE
ZRFE

REBEHEE — B BERE
BEZHEK  BEHERMT
BETHE - ZEBREER
ARREENENAZRBEER
HFoHEAFEAEZS D
M2 BERS T HBEBER
BFERESAHRE - I H
ARRREEZHRME - B
BrtfbERrF MEREGFHE
EEREFZBEET KX
AR AR E B HRE —
o

EFREVCEBERLDR —T-_FFH
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e M BHRHE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.3 Fair value measurement (Continued)

3

FEEREERSRMIAZ
N{E

33 AFEFT=Ew@

(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at (i) TBAFEFTEZEEH
fair value (Continued) EERBE®
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) o FEZAR (E)
Fair value measurements as at Fair value measurements as at
30 June 2022 categorised into 30 June 2021 categorised into
REBZZERA=TRZAVEHEANER RZZZ-§/ A=tRZATEHEAER
Fair value at Fair value at
30 June 30 June
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2022 Level 1 Level2 Level 3 2021
R IS
—E-CF it bt
~A=TA ~A=TH
£-8 £2H F=R  ZAYE F-8 £Z& £=8  0VE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TH7R THT TR TH7 TFiEn TR TR TFiEn
Recurring fair value M ATE
measurements itE
Assets: EE:
Other financial assets ~ Et 2 BEE
- Unlisted - EMRE
investment b5
funds (Note a) (Hista) = = = = = = 346 346
-Derivative financial - 744 R
instruments I
Note a) (Hiita) = - - = - = 14,499 14,499
= Unlisted limited -FETAR
partnership AELE
(Note &) (Hista) - - 1,108 1,108 - - 1,108 1,108
- Club debenture -eERES = = 770 770 = = 770 70
- Other derivative - EpfrE
financial SHIA
instruments - - - - - - 48 48
Trading securities R5E%
(Note b) (Hf3H0) 6,189 - 1,350 1539 75,521 - 1,350 76,871
6189 - m T BE - B B

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2022



3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.3 Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

During the years ended 30 June 2022 and
2021, there was no transfer between Level 1,
Level 2 or transfer into or out of Level 3.

Notes:

(a)

For unlisted investment funds and limited
partnership classified under Level 3 of the
fair value measurement hierarchy, the fair
values are determined based on the net
asset values of those investment funds and
limited partnership determined with reference
to third party valuation of the underlying
investment portfolio and adjustments of
related expenses. When the net asset values
of the unlisted investment funds and limited
partnership increases/decreases by 10%
(2021: 10%), the fair value will increase/
decrease by HK$110,000 (2021: HK$145,000).
The higher the net assets values, the higher
the fair value.

3

e M B|RME

FEEREERSRMIAZ
N{E

33 RNFEFTE®
(i) TBAFEFTEZEEH
EERBE®
N FEZERE)
REBEE_ZE-_—_FR_F—
—FEXNA=ZTHILEEFEE  §
— B _HrzETESE
B ONEEBAZ-fE
BREEY -

it

(a) MOERAFEHEER
FZHMBATZELEME
BEESRAERAGBLEM
= AFEDIBREZER
BEEDERABLEY
BESFE S2ERBEERE
MAEZEZFHEET
WAL EL A -
BEIFLTREESRE
BABLENEEFE
#n, W A10%(ZE =
—F 1 10%)  AFEK
#n,/4110,00058 7T
—Z 4 : 145,000
) c BEFEMS - 8
ANFEHS -

FRE(CEEBBRAE —TZ_FFH
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e M BHRHE

3 FINANCIALRISK MANAGEMENTANDFAIR 3 HKEKREEREHMIAZ
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DNF{E@

(Continued)

3.3 Fair value measurement (Continued) 33 AV EE®

(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at (i) TBAFEFTEZEEH
fair value (Continued) EERBE®
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) o FEZAR (E)
Notes: (Continued) W - (8)
(@ (Continued) @@ (&)

During the year ended 30 June 2019 the
Group entered into certain arrangement to
dispose one of the unlisted investment funds
at a fixed consideration of HK$17,796,069
in December 2021. In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the arrangement
constituted a derivative contract which
should be recognised as a derivative financial
instrument (“DFI") (note 14(i)). The DFl is
net of deferred day one gain, which arise
from the difference between its fair value
at initial recognition and its transaction price
of HK$Nil. The deferred day one gain is
amortised over the period from March 2019
to December 2021. The valuation techniques
and key inputs used for the DFI in Level 3 fair
value measurement at the end of the year of
2021 are as follows:

BE_Z—hAEFEAR~A=
+HLEFE  AEEF
VEFTLZHUR-_ZT =
—F+_ARETERE
17,796,069 T & H
FIEIEETIREES -
AABEERE  ZEL
BB —ITEEY B
FTHRRAETEEBMTA
(€T A (RKE
14(1) » $TAES B T A THE
MBREE e B © JhmE
RER TS HEREH AT
BEREXFGERENESE
AEBTTMESL - BLH
Bl —E—NE=A
BT —F+ = AHME
N R-ZT-—FF

K AE=MATFEN B
ZATE SR T ARERZ

HEFTEREEH AR
U
Valuation
techniques Significant
and key inputs unobservable input Range
HER* BEATABE
REZ@AEE BWABE E
HK$
BT
Derivative instruments Marking-to-market Fair value of equity interest ~ HK$346,000
approach and in unlisted investment
discounted cash fund
flow approach
PTETR mEFEER RIFELTEREERZ 346,000/ 7T
BRREREX A TE
Credit value adjustment 14.03%
factor
FEBERERZ 14.03%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.3 Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

As at 30 June 2021, it was estimated that
a 5% increase or decrease in the fair value
of the unlisted investment fund while
holding all other variables constant would
not significantly affect the value of the DFI.
As a result, no sensitivity analysis for the
year ended 30 June 2021 is disclosed for
the impact of changes in the fair value of the
unlisted investment fund.

As at 30 June 2021, a 5% increase or
decrease in the credit value adjustment
factor while holding all other variables
constant would decrease or increase the
carrying amount of the DFI by approximately
HK$148,000 or HK$148,000, respectively.

3

=
E=3

e M B|RME

FEEREERSRMIAZ
N{E

33 RYEFE®
() BRATFENEZSH
EEREE@®
A FEZRE)
W - (8)

@@ (&

R-_ZT-—FXA=+
A WA EMmERER
T EEMIREESA
1B 2 5% 3% 0 gm A il
A resTEer T A
ZEBEEEEATE - H
it BE-Z-—%XA
“t+HLFEERERI L
THREELAFEEHZ
HEWBRHBE DN

R—ZZE=-——F~ A=+
A fHETE EM e
N ZEEBEARRE
Z.5% 3 hNskm 4 #6555
WA IMITE SR T A
Z BETEE#148,00008 7T
5,148,000/ T °

FIRET(EBAR AR —T-_FER
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e M BHRHE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENTAND FAIR 3 HiiEREERESMIEZ
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS N{E
(Continued)
3.3 Fair value measurement (Continued) 33 A EFTE®
(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at (i) TBAFEFTEZEEH
fair value (Continued) EEREBE®E
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) o FEZAR (E)
Notes: (Continued) W - (8)
(@)  (Continued) (@ (&
The following table represents the changes in TRBFAB=ZHLFE
other financial assets included in Level 3 fair AEZEMEREEZE
value measurements: E
Other
Unlisted  Derivative Unlisted derivative
investment financial limited Club financial
funds instruments partnership  debenture instruments Total
kEH fT4ER ELTER Htbfa
REES IR RPt¥  8EE3x ¢@IR &zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL TAL ThL Thr TAL TAL
As at 1 July 2020 RZZE-%F
+A-H 322 8,336 1,350 - - 10,008
Addition NE - - - 770 - 770
Gainffloss) included in HABRZ
profit or loss Wiz / (Bi8) 24 632 57 S 48 761
Amortisation of defered B &R
day one gain 1 = 5,531 = S S 5,531
Return of capital EXEH - - (299 - - (299)
As at 30 June 2021 R_E--%
~NA=TH 346 14,499 1,108 770 48 16,771
(Loss)fgainincludedin ~ FtABHZ
profit or loss (BB i (346) 557 = = (48) 163
Settlement #E - (17,844) - - = 17,844)
Amortisation of defered B &AM
day one gain LB - 2,768 S S S 2,788
As at 30 June 2022 S —a
~AZTH = = 1,108 770 = 1878
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.3 Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

The financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss classified under Level 3 of the
fair value measurement hierarchy represent
investment in the equity security of a Listed
entity which trading was suspended.

The fair value of those equity instruments
is mainly valued based on Guideline Publicly
Traded Company (the “"GPTC") method
whereas the key inputs to the valuation
models include the market multiples, share
prices of similar companies that are traded
in a public market and discount for lack
of marketability. The discount for lack of
marketability used are unobservable input.
As at 30 June 2022, if any of the significant
unobservable input above was 5% higher/
lower while all the other variables were held
constant, the changes in fair value of the
listed equity security would not be significant
to the Group.

3

=
E=3

e M B|RME

FEEREERSRMIAZ
N{E

33 RYEFE®
() BRATEFEZSH
EEREE@®
AS=E2/ AT )
W - (8)

) HDERRFEFAEERE
=BRETERBRERAF
BARZEZREEER—
MLEmERBZBRAZES
(CEFEER)ZKRE -

RERFTAEZAFET
BREIIRHERXI QA
(ME3I AR B ARIE
HITHE EZAHET
HEEB FBH ARG
PREAHTSBETRS
ZRBEARZTIGEER
B (B K $ = T I5 AT 1E
ZHE - FTAZHBREZM
GUREZ R AT I
S N S e —
FRNA=+H - LT
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thEEEHTE - B LD
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e M BHRHE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENTAND FAIR 3 HEREREERERMIAZ

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS N {E @
(Continued)
3.3 Fair value measurement (Continued) 33 RYEFE®
(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at (i) TBAFEFTEZEEH
fair value (Continued) EERBE®
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) o FEZAR (E)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)  (Continued)

The movement during the year in the balance
of these Level 3 fair value measurements are

faE - ()
(I IC-))

HESMATET B
RERZ BT :

as follows:
2022 2021
—E-CF T
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET T
Listed equity security suspended L TRRAES
from trading (BEEEE)
At the beginning of the year REH) 1,350 3,300
Total loss included in profit or FAEEZER
loss s - (1,950)
At the end of the year RER 1,350 1,350
2022 2021
—EB-—F —T -4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Total loss included in profit or PR EHR
loss for assets held at the BBEESA
end of the reporting period Bam EBEE - (1,950)

(ii)  Financial assets and liabilities at other than (i)
fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost
are not materially different from their fair
values as at 30 June 2022 and 2021.

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B|RME

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4 FERESTTHERHAE
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates, assumptions and judgements are continually HE - BREHEEREETE YR

evaluated and are based on historical experience and BRALHBMEMERETIE B

other factors, including expectations of future events that FEBBATEREBEENRREY

are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. TEA o

(a) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (a) EARETMHENMEBRXR
The Group makes estimates and assumptions Zli'iliﬁi?ﬂ’ﬁﬂjffﬂxﬂfﬁ““ Fr
concerning the future. The resulting accounting M ENHEESR - ROoghk
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal ,\f REERER - EEEAERE
the related actual results. The estimates and BT EMBEENEEMAENEK
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing HEELERNABRNGHEEMREFR
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of U o

assets and liabilities within the next financial year
are discussed below.

(i)  Impairment of film rights, films in progress () SBME - BHEpz

and film related deposits EYNEFHBI 2
BB

The Group assesses annually whether there RIEMFE2FT S 2 S FTEUR -
is any indication for impairment on the film REEREBEET  EXE
rights, films in progress and film related Thkpw  REREREF
deposits for video distribution, film distribution W % 2 58 & F 77 & &2 I
and exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing - BERZEFRETR
of film rights segment and further assesses Rl &= A W IR AR E D
if they have suffered any impairment, in £ MEIREARERET
accordance with the accounting policy stated HE— R o
in note 2.

ERRET(EBERAT —B-—EER 173



174

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(i)

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2022

Impairment of film rights, films in progress
and film related deposits (Continued)

As at 30 June 2022, the Group assessed that
there were impairment indication for certain
films included in films rights, films in progress
and film related deposits with gross carrying
amount of approximately HK$34,403,000
(2021: HK$3,950,000), HK$32,350,000 (2021:
HK$16,954,000) and HK$26,195,000 (2021:
HK$25,157,000) respectively because of the
change of comparable market information
and expected performance. As at 30 June
2022, these film rights, films in progress and
film related deposit have been reduced to
their recoverable amount of approximately
HK$2,956,000 (2021: HK$46,000),
HK$28,600,000 (2021: HK$13,205,000)
and HK$14,839,000 (2021: HK$13,801,000)
respectively. The recoverable amount was
determined on a title-by-title basis, and is
assessed with reference to a value-in-use
calculation at the end of the reporting period,
which was derived from discounting the
projected cash flow forecast using a discount
rate of 11% (2021: 11%). Key assumptions
for the value-in-use calculations related to the
estimation of cash inflow include the budget
film exhibition income, budget licensing and
sub-licensing income revenue and discount
rate. Such estimation is based on the historical
box office of the same director and main cast
members, the market comparable data of films
with the same theme, and management’s
expectations of the market development. The
discount rate used is before tax and reflected
current market assessment of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the film
production business.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(Continued)

(i)

Impairment of film rights, films in progress
and film related deposits (Continued)

Taking into account the impairment
assessment performed by the
management, an impairment loss of film
rights of approximately HK$27,543,000
(2021: HK$3,000,000) were recognised
respectively in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income for the year
ended 30 June 2022 to reduce the carrying
amounts of these assets to their recoverable
amounts. The directors and management have
considered and assessed reasonably possible
changes for other key assumptions and have
not identified any instances that could cause
the carrying amount of film rights, film in
progress and film related deposits to exceed
their recoverable amount as at 30 June 2022.

As at 30 June 2022, the aggregate carrying
amount of film rights, films in progress
and film related deposits amounted to
approximately HK$728,022,000 (2021:
HK$357,523,000).
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ERREEYSE 10

(a) BAREETEEMERR®

(i)

B - B>
BYREHIEET S
Im 1E n\ﬁ )

LA REBREETT ZBERF
o EEREREBEBBELY
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e M BHRHE

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(Continued)

(ii)

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2022

Provision for impairment of accounts
receivable

Accounts receivable are reviewed by
management at the end of each reporting
period to determine the expected credit
losses. The management bases the estimates
on the historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors and assessments of both current and
forecast general economic conditions. Credit
risk assessments focus on the customers’
past history of making payments when due
and current ability and willingness to pay,
taking into account the financial position
of the customers and the macroeconomic
environment in which the customers operate.
If the financial conditions of the customers
and/or the macroeconomic environment of
the Group were to deteriorate, resulting in an
impairment of their ability to repay, additional
impairment provision may be reputed. As at 30
June 2022, the carrying amount of accounts
receivable amounted to approximately
HK$22,648,000 (2021: HK$108,865,000).

4
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e M B|RME

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Estimated valuation of investment properties

In determining the fair value, the valuer has
based on property valuation techniques which
involve, inter alia, certain estimates including
comparable sales in the relevant market,
appropriate discount rates and expected
future market rents. In relying on the valuation
report, management has exercised their
judgement and is satisfied that the method
of valuation is reflective of the current market
condition. As at 30 June 2022, the carrying
amount of investment properties amounted
to approximately HK$31,460,000 (2021:
HK$31,460,000).

Estimation of fair value of financial assets
measured at fair value through profit or loss

The fair value of financial assets measured at
fair value through profit or loss that are not
traded in an active market is determined by
using valuation techniques. The Group uses its
judgement to select a variety of methods and
make assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in these estimates
and assumptions could have a material
effect on the fair value of the financial assets
measured at fair value through profit or loss.
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4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(Continued)

(iv)

(v)

Estimation of fair value financial assets
measured at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

As at 30 June 2022, the carrying amount
of other financial assets amounted
to approximately HK$1,878,000 (2021:
HK$16,771,000).

Recognition of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and tax
losses can be utilised, and is measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax assets are
realised. In determining the deferred tax
assets to be recognised, management is
required to estimate the future applicable tax
rate for each entity within the Group at each
tax jurisdiction and the profitability of each
entity, so as to estimate the future utilisation
of tax losses. Any difference between these
estimates and the actual outcome will impact
the Group’s results in the period in which
the actual outcome is determined. As at 30
June 2022, the carrying amount of deferred
tax assets amounted to approximately
HK$502,000 (2021: HK$471,000).
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(a)
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4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(Continued)

(vi)

Impairment of loans receivable and other
receivables

The impairment loss for using the expected
credit loss model is subjected to a number of
key parameters and assumptions, including
the identification of loss stages, estimates
of probability of default, loss given default,
exposures at default and discount rate,
adjustments for forward-looking information
and other adjustment factors. The expected
credit losses for loans receivable and other
receivables are derived from estimates
whereby management takes into consideration
historical data, the historical loss experience
and other adjustment factors. Historical loss
experience is adjusted on the basis of the
relevant observable data that reflect current
economic conditions and the judgment based
on management’s historical experience.
Management reviews the selection of
those parameters and the application of
the assumptions regularly to reduce any
difference between loss estimates and actual
loss. As at 30 June 2022, the carrying amount
of loans receivable and financial assets
included in deposits paid, prepayments and
other receivables amounted to approximately
1,235,000 (2021: HK$3,466,000) and
HK$20,896,000 (2021: HK$48,204,000),
respectively.
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e M BHRHE

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(Continued)

(vii)

(viii)

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2022

Useful lives of other intangible assets

The Group amortises its other intangible
assets with a finite useful life on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful lives reflect management’s
estimate of the period that the Group is able
to derive future economic benefits from
the use of the other intangible assets. At
30 June 2022, the carrying amount of other
intangible assets amounted to approximately
HK$1,954,000 (2021: HK$2,092,000).

Net realisable value of inventories

The Group’'s management reviews the
inventory ageing analysis periodically, and
makes allowance on an annual basis for
obsolete and slow-moving inventory items
identified that are no longer marketable. The
Group carries out an inventory review on a
product-by-product basis at the end of each
reporting period and makes allowance for
obsolete and slow-moving items through
management’s estimation of the net realisable
value for such obsolete and slow-moving
items based primarily on the latest invoice
prices and current market conditions. At 30
June 2022, the carrying amount of inventories
amounted to approximately HK$6,767,000
(2021: HK$9,843,000).

4

(a)

SEHEE R E o

R HE MMERR®

(vii)

(viii)

HttELEE Z M
£

AEBIBEEBRAFERE
M EMEREEZ BT
FEAFRANEREIRNEZS
EBILEE - BT ERFH
R EREEBHAEBNEE
BEREtGEFEEELS
RIRGEF R 2 AR -

R_TE-_—_FXA=+8"

HEREE2EEEYD
£1,954,0008 (=& =—
% 2,092,000/ 7T) °

FETZHEFE

AEBCEEECTHEMNT
BEZERRST TEBFA
BRAETHHEALENRE
AT EBEBEELRE -
RERERR - AEESR
MEEERZHTE  UEFE
BEBEFEREBEZIEE
BRBITTMHBREZER
ERFHEBEMECTER
FEGE - BRE RBHIE
SRGEET - I - ——
ANA=ZTH BEZE@EE
#)7/56,767,0008 L (—F =
—% 1 9,843,000/ 7T) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Critical accounting judgement in applying the
Group’s accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
accounting judgements:

Classification of joint arrangements

The Group has entered into joint arrangements to
produce and distribute television series, films and
webisodes. The Group has participating interests
ranging from 5% to 90% (2021: from 5% to 90%)
in these joint arrangements. The Group has joint
control over these arrangements as, under the
contractual agreements, unanimous consent is
required from all parties to the agreements for all
relevant activities. The Group’s joint arrangements
involve the joint control by the venturers of the
assets contributed to the joint arrangement and
dedicated to the purposes of each joint arrangement
for the benefits of the venturers. Each venturer
may take a share of the output from the assets
and each bears an agreed share of the expenses
incurred. These joint arrangements do not involve
the establishment of a corporation, partnership or
other entity, or a financial structure that is separate
from the venturers themselves. Therefore, these
arrangements are classified as joint operations of
the Group and the Group recognises in relation to its
interest in a joint operation in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in note 2.3 joint operations
requires management'’s significant judgement.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which
are organised by business lines (products and services).
In a manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the Chairman of the Company,
being the Group’'s chief operating decision maker
("CODM") for the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment.

During the year ended 30 June 2018, the Group ceased
its business in securities brokerage and margin financing
which are classified as discontinued operations for the
year ended 30 June 2022 and 2021.

The Group has presented the following reportable
segments.

Continuing operations

- Video distribution, film distribution and exhibition,
licensing and sub-licensing of film rights

- Trading, wholesaling and retailing of optical products
and watches products

- Leasing of investment properties
- Securities investments
- Financial printing services

- Other (i.e. Money lending and entertainment
business)

Discontinued operation

- Securities brokerage and margin financing (ceased
during the year ended 30 June 2018)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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5

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(a)

Segment revenue, results, assets and
liabilities

Management monitors the results of the Group’s
operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment (loss)/profit,
which is a measure of (loss)/profit before tax from
continuing operations. The (loss)/profit before tax
from continuing operations is measured consistently
with the Group’'s loss before taxation from
continuing operations except fair value change of
other financial assets, amortisation of deferred day
one gain in respect of derivative instruments, gain
on settlement of litigation, gain on deconsolidation
of subsidiaries, finance income, unallocated finance
costs and unallocated corporate expenses.

Segment assets exclude unallocated other intangible
assets, other financial assets, unallocated loan
receivable, unallocated cash and cash equivalents,
deferred tax assets and other unallocated corporate
assets as these assets are managed on a group
basis.

Segment liabilities exclude tax payable, deferred tax
liabilities and other unallocated corporate liabilities
as these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

e M B|RME

Dbl - 4R BE

EEEAIEHERD B MKRBETE
ZARREGBEIERAEBEED
WM2RE - DBERAGERERD
BR(E1R),m AT - M2 H
(B1R),af i ER L E BRI
AT (E1R),SRFIMEt 8 - FE
L EBRBAT (B1R), 8 2 5t
ENABEREEFBELEEEBHRB
RIEIE—2 AR ETRRA
ftEMEEL A HEEZS - BiTE
THZIEEE B as 2 855 - Fal
Mgz W -~ HERRRLERA A
AR ES ~ SIS« RO BCRI TS
ARARDREEFX

DHEETNBREANDREMETLE
E EMeREE RKHOERK
EX RoERELREEEY -
BEEHBEEREMARDEEEE
B DHRZEEERSEER B
#e

DEHBEETEREREHE BTN
HEEREMRDBECERE - )
RZFREHEER—EE -

EFREVCEBERLDR —T-_FFH

183



184

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5

(a) Segment revenue, results, assets and
liabilities (Continued)

Information regarding the Group's reportable
segments as provided to the Group’s CODM for the
purposes of resources allocation and assessment of
segment performance for the years ended 30 June
2022 and 2021 is set out below:

AN

(a)

%B ;E *’I’ (lnﬁ

SR

Hﬂ

)32 T$

BE_Z-_—_FR-_F-_—FA
= tTHLFE REHETEAEEXE
BIERRERIEERS NS HE

BRHE 2 AN KB 25H D BEFL
T

For the year ended 30 June 2022
HBE-B-ERASTALEE

Continuing operations Discontinued operation
FREERE BRIEERE
Video Trading,
distribution, wholesaling,
film and
distribution, retailing of
and optical Securities
exhibition, products brokerage
licensing and and Leasing of Total for and Total for
sub-licensing watches investment Securities Financial continuing margin  discontinued
of film rights products properties  investments printing Others Elimination operations financing operations Total
ELEGR
YRR REERR
H# - i HEER BAL
REREY 285" it KfE  RREER f-E3 s
it ] HERTE RENE RERE BHBER £t it} ES e FREE EH &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
7 47 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7
Segment revenue ABkE
Disaggregate by timing of BARRAREIRT
revenue recognition
- Point in time -¥-BE 69,030 36,076 - - 11562 304 - 116,972 - - 116,972
- Over time o i - - - - 9438 - - 9438 - - 9438
-Revenue outof scopeof - BB LR
HKFRS 15 FIRERN
ey - - 1142 - - 86 - 1228 - - 1228
Exteral revenue Sl 69,030 36,076 1142 - 21,000 390 - 127,638 - - 127,638
Inter-segment sales APREE © © o - 24 - (284) - - - -
69,030 36,076 1142 - 21,284 390 (284) 121,638 - - 121638
Segment results (61,655) (9,757) 861 (6,375) (11,170) (3,050) (284) (91430) (332) (332) (91,762)
Amortisation of deferred fiviika &IEZEQ
day one gain in respect BB 2N
of derivative financial
instruments 2,188 - 2,788
Gain on disposal of unlisted
investment funds 163 - 163
(Gain on deconsolidation of
subsidiaries 18,900 = 18,900
Impaiment loss onamounts MR FFA AR
due from deconsolidated HEARERERE
subsidiaries (10,649) - (10,649)
Finance income BRIMA 2071 - 2011
Finance cost BHRA (216) - (216)
Unallocated corporate ROELERR
expenses (3,857) = (3,857)
Loss before taxation BHRAEE (82,224) (332) (82,556)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
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5 gl %B ;E *’I’ (lnﬁ

ally /= S S
(a) Segment revenue, results, assets and (a) : %Z - BE
. ey, E'E
liabilities (Continued) & T
2022
St
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
BAL
REREEY Bexn
Video
distribution, Trading,
film wholesaling,
distribution and retailing
and exhibition, of optical Securities
licensing and products and Leasing of Total for brokerage
sub-licensing watches investment Securities Financial continuing and margin
of film rights products properties investments printing Others operations financing Total
BERT BEERR
BYRAR HRER
BB BRR 285 i BREE REELR
BREVNE HEREE REME BERE pda] £ EBast FREE it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FEx TER FEx Tin TR Fin TR F#n
Assets &
Segment assets ABEE 785,728 12,302 31,493 7,539 14,603 2,663 854,328 518 854,846
Other financial assets EthemAE 1878 - 1,878
Deferred tax assets ERBEEE 502 = 502
Unallocated other intangible FAREMENEE
assets 1,858 S 1,858
Unallocated cash and cash FHERERAS
equivalents ) 211,607 - 211,607
Unallocated corporate assets FARGEAE 2,296 - 2,296
Total consolidated assets GAEERE 1,072,469 518 1,072,987
Liabilities af
Segment liabilities AHEE 599,214 8312 364 - 16,950 1,680 626,580 213 626,793
Taxation payables JE&HE 12,325 = 12,325
Deferred tax liabilties BEFEAE 139 - 139
Unallocated corporate liabilities FARCEERE 6,502 = 6,502
Total consolidated liabities GRAELE 645,546 213 645,759
EFREVICEBERAR —T-_FFR
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(a) Segment revenue, results, assets and

liabilities (Continued)

5

wa) %B ;E *’I’ (lnﬁ

(a)

&Ti

2022
—B-CE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
BAL
RREERE BERK
Video
distribution, Trading,
film wholesaling,
distribution and retailing
and exhibition, of optical Securities
licensing and products and Leasing of Total for brokerage
sub-licensing watches investment Securities Financial continuing and margin
of film rights products properties investments printing Others operations financing Total
BERT BEERR
BYRAR HRER
BB RER 285 i BREE BEELR
BREVRE HERSE REME BERE i £ EBast FREE it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn F#n Ti#n FEx Fin TR Fin TR F#n
Other information HbEH
Additions of property, plant and RENE KBRRE
equipment 29,713 1512 5 - 2,790 7 34,027 - 34,027
Additions of right-of-use assets RERBELE - 3 = = 7,05 = 8,478 = 8,478
Total additions of property, plant ~ FEWE - B&R
and equipment e 42,505 = 42,505
Additions of film right and films PEEYRERR
in progress 432,469 - - - - - 432,469 - 432,469
Additions of film related deposits B/ AEEFI £IEM 25,288 o o = = = 25,288 = 25,288
Depreciation of property, plant % KBRRERE
and equipment 358 644 13 o 404 = 1419 - 1419
Unallocated depreciation of FAMME - BER
property, plant and equipment RENE 7 = 7
Amortisation of film rights EYRELER 29,999 = o = = = 29,999 = 29,999
Depreciation of right-of-use EREAEZINE
assets 3,575 2,833 - - 2,316 2 8,726 - 8,726
Unallocated depreciation of FAREREREL
right-of-use assets & 542 = 542
Amortisation of other intangible EtbER AR BH
assets - 147 - - 2 - 149 - 149
Total depreciation and nERERRE
amortisation 40,842 - 40,842
Reversal of write-down of FERHAER
inventories (145) - - - - - (145) - (145)
Impairment loss of property, NF BERRENE
plant and equipment g - 286 = = 1,886 = 2172 o 2172
Impairment loss of right-of-use EREAEAERS
assets - 1419 - - 5,455 - 6,874 - 6,874
Impairment loss of film rights and ~~ EFMEREUET 2
films in progress EYRERR 21543 o o = o = 21543 = 21,543
Change in ECLs tﬂ%ﬁﬁiﬁmé‘é
- Accounts receivables (695) - - - 526 (18) (187) = (187)
- Loans receivable = - - - - (77) m - m
Unallocated change in ECLs
) (24) - (24)
Total change in ECLs ﬁ%ﬁﬁéﬁ‘}‘é% it (288) - (288)
Fair value change of trading LHEFATEED
securities - - - 7916 - - 7916 - 7916
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
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e M B|RME

5 DEER@®

. - N\ 7 Al bl =
(a) Segment revenue, results, assets and (a) DEPUE - ¥E - BE
liabilities (Continued) NEaE®
For the year ended 30 June 2021
HECR--FRAZTHLFR
Continuing operations Discontinued operation
BEEEZE BEIHEERE
Video Trading,
distribution, wholesaling,
film and
distribution retailing
and of optical Securities
exhibition, products brokerage
licensing and and Leasing of Total for and Total for
sublicensing watches investment Securities Financial continuing margin-~ discontinued
of film rights products properties investments printing QOthers Elimination operations financing operations Total
REET
YRR BEERR
1 it #5ER B
REREY 285 i it ik EREER BEEH
i HERTE REnz FHRE FHEER B4 it ES AREE it a3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FET FAT TR TFEr TFhn i i iR Fin Tin
Segment revenue APhE
Disaggregate by timing of BREEIRRLR
revenue recognition
~Pointin time -¥-BY 524,111 55,867 - - 7953 264 - 588,845 2 2 588,847
- Over time -KER - - = = 11,621 = = 11,621 = = 11621
- Revenue out of scope of - BRERREE
HKFRS 15 FISHEEN
g - = 1,167 = = 97 = 213 = = 2134
Extemal revenue Sl 5410 55,867 1167 - 19574 121 - 602,600 2 2 602,602
Inter-segment sales AHEEE 3 - - S 340 - &340} - - - -
524802 55,867 1,167 = 19914 1221 el 602,600 2 2 602602
Segment results AR 193473 (14,744) 870 (12,262) (4,464) (2,149) 871) 160,363 (294) (294) 160,069
Fair vlue change of other EREREATEAE
financial assets carried at pa-4ka v
fair value through profit or ATEEY
loss 3 - 3
Amortisation of deferred HTESBTAZEL
day one gain In respect ERKEES
of derivative financial
instruments 5,531 2 5,531
Gain on settlement #Ehs 18,549 S 18,549
Finance income KA 2,000 = 2,000
Finance cost SRR (167 (167)
Unallocated corporate AARLERR
expenses 5.470) - (5470
Profit before taxation BRAIER 181,509 (294) 181,215
BFREVVIEEERAT T _FFK
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 2DEER@®

DEIRE - ELE - BE
NE=RERC )

(a) Segment revenue, results, assets and (a)
liabilities (Continued)

2021
3%
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
BRI
BEEEEK HE2H
Video
distribution, Trading,
film wholesaling,
distribution and retailing
and exhibition, of optical Securities
licensing and products and Leasing of Total for brokerage
sub-licensing watches investment Securities Financial continuing and margin
of film rights products properties investments printing Others operations financing Total
BRER REEMR
EFER EHER
B8 RER 8% et i ] FHELR
BREYIE FERTE RENF BHERA BHEERI £t FHA FERE 3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi#T Tn T Fn T TFhn T ThL Tr
Assets E
Segment assets PHEE 501,267 23,556 31,564 76,919 12,614 4,393 650,313 4,806 655,119
Other financial assets EhemEE 16,723 - 16,723
Deferred tax assets BEHEEE 47 - an
Unallocated other intangible FAREMEYEE
assets 1,858 o 1,858
Unallocated loans receivable FARERER 666 - 666
Unallocated cash and cash FARRERES
equivalents L) 372,101 S 372,101
Unallocated corporate assets FAARLEEE 4834 S 4834
Total consolidated assets RREEEE 1,046,966 4,806 1,051,772
Liabilities R
Segment liabilities AHaRE 433,196 25,867 260 - 12,347 1871 473,541 775 474,316
Taxation payable E&HA 38,164 S 38,164
Deferred tax liabilities EERRRR 102 = 102
Unallocated corporate liabilities FORLEEE 33723 S 33723
Total consolidated liabilities GREMELEE 545,530 775 546,305
Other information HfbEH
Additions of property, plant and RENE  BEREE
equipment 134 1,067 15 - 127 - 1,343 - 1,343
Additions of right-of-use assets REEREEE 8,395 7,354 - - 3,080 - 18,829 = 18,829
Additions of unallocated property,  FEXAENE - #B
plant and equipment R 5 - 5
Total additions of property, plant ~ FEWE - BBRZE
and equipment &8 20,177 S 20,177
Additions of film rights and fims ~ FEEFHEREED
in progress 8% 257,421 = = = = S 257,421 S 257,421
Additions of film related deposits ~ EFBETEEM 22,950 = = = = S 22,950 = 22,950
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 2DEER@®

Lva N2 ALl /== > =
(a) Segment revenue, results, assets and (a) PE M ~ 45 BE
- ape, . (== .
liabilities (Continued| NE &)
2021
—3--F
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
BAILE
BEEEEK HE2H
Video
distribution, Trading,
film wholesaling,
distribution and retailing
and exhibition, of optical Securities
licensing and products and Leasing of Total for brokerage
sub-licensing watches investment Securities Financial continuing and margin
of film rights products properties investments printing Others operations financing Total
BRER REERR
EYEAR EHER
B8 RER 8% et i ] FHELR
BREYIE HERTE REnF BHERA BHEERI £t FHA FERE 3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi#T Tn T Fn T TFhn T ThL Tr
Depreciation of property, plant n% BERRENE
and equipment 102 1,720 15 = 7 = 1,844 o 1,844
Unallocated depreciation of FARNE  BER
property, plant and equipment RERE 1 S 1
Amortisation of film rights EYMEC B 197,986 = = = = = 197,986 = 197,986
Depreciation of right-of-use BREEEINE
assets 3,682 5513 - - 513 12 9,720 - 9,720
Unallocated depreciation of FAREREEEL
right-of-use assets g 270 = 270
Amortisation of other intangble At EMEEZBH
assets - 147 - - - - 147 - 147
Total depreciation and HEREHEE
amortisation 209,978 - 209,978
Write-down of inventories FE 7R - 1,693 - - - - 1693 - 1,693
Reversal of write-down of FEMAED
inventories (187) 1,880) - - - - (2,067) - (2,067)
Impairment loss of property, n%  BERXERE
plant and equipment BB - - - - 120 - 120 - 120
Impairment loss of right-of-use FREEERERR
assets - 3,388 - - 2,566 - 5,954 - 5,954
Impairment loss of film rights EYMERE R
and films in progress EYHERE 3,000 = = = = = 3,000 S 3,000
Change in ECLs WTEEZESEE
BEEY
- Accounts receivable - RS 1,306 - - - 528 (18) 1816 - 1816
- Loans receivable - EAER [111) - S - - 2 (109) - (109)
- Other receivables - A RIGR (93) - - - - 2 (91 - 91)
Unallocated change in ECLs FARZBHEEER
29 66 - 66
Total change in ECLs BHEEEREDEE 1682 - 1682
Fair value change of trading RFRFNTEED
securities - - - 12,460 - - 12,460 - 12,460

BRI EBERAT —E-—FER 189



190

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

(b)

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 ZDEER @
Geographical information (b) hig &
The Company is domiciled in Hong Kong. The RRBMNES - REBEZEBE
Group's operations are mainly located in Hong Kong EMNREBRPH -
and the PRC.
The revenue information below is based on the TR EER DA EFTE AE
location of the operations. i
2022
—E__—F
Non-current
assets (other
than financial
instruments,
deposits paid
and deferred
Revenue tax assets)
REBEE
(TEEem
IR B
A2 RIEL
W= BEEE)
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEKEER
Hong Kong (place of domicile) B8 (FrfEis) 26,807 769,125
PRC and other Asian countries ST RN TS
(other than Hong Kong and Macau) (B8 KIBFIBRIN) 100,707 27,989
Others H 124 =
127,638 797,114
DISCONTINUED OPERATION ORI K
Hong Kong (place of domicile) &7 (FTfEs) - -
Total HET 127,638 797,114

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2022
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e M B|RME

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 DEER @
(b) Geographical information (Continued) (b) HuBELE R @)
2021
—E-—F
Non-current
assets (other
than financial
instruments,
deposits paid
and deferred
Revenue tax assets)
EMBEE
(T BiESR
TA Bf
e REE
Wz MIAEE)
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEREER
Hong Kong (place of domicile) FA(FTiEH) 74,327 385,814
Macau P 71 -
PRC and other Asian countries LTSRN TS
(other than Hong Kong and Macau) (BB REFIBRIN 525,386 22,392
Others HAth 2,816 -
602,600 408,206
DISCONTINUED OPERATION BRIEEEEK
Hong Kong (place of domicile) BB (FTiEih) 2 -
Total HEt 602,602 408,206
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e M BHRHE

5

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(c)

Information about major customers

For the year ended 30 June 2022, one of the
customers from video distribution, film distribution
and exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of film
rights segment contributed 10% or more of the
Group’s revenue amounting to approximately
HK$19,452,000 (2021: one of the customers
contributed 10% or more of the Group’s revenue
amounting to approximately HK$60,260,000).

Revenue expected to be recognised in the
future arising from contracts with customers in
existence at the reporting date

The Group has applied the practical expedient in
paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 to its sales contracts for
video distribution, film distribution and exhibition,
licensing and sub-licensing of film rights, trading,
wholesaling and retailing of optical products and
watch products and provision of financial printing
services, such that the Group does not disclose
information about revenue that the Group will
be entitled to when it satisfies the remaining
performance obligations under the sales contracts
as their performance has an original expected
duration of one year or less.

(d)

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2022
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NTH o 2
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 6 W - HBERRXE
Right-of-use Leasehold Machineryand ~ Furniture and Motor Office
assets Premises  improvements equipment fixtures Vehicles equipment Total
FREEE nE  HEVERE  ASRERE  KARZE RE BOERE aE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn T ThL Tin ThL ThL T ThL
oSt R
At 1 July 2020 RZEZ%
tA-A 21,159 - 11,729 25,726 2,086 3729 10,640 81,069
Additions AE 18,829 - 647 - 291 - 410 2,177
Disposals HE - - - (1 () - - 6)
Wite-off Lt (9,079) - [2,475) - (147) - (1,480) (13,181)
Bxchange realignment ERHE 349 = 275 = % 12 82 812
Lease modification REBY 334 - 5 = - - _ 2
Cancelation of tenancy PHRERE
agreement 2,786) - - - - - - (2,786)
At30 Jung 2021 and R-E--%
1 July 2021 *B=1ER
—E--F
tA-A 34,806 - 10,176 25,725 2319 3741 9,652 86,419
Additions AE 8478 29,460 2481 8 300 1451 327 42,505
Disposals HE - - - - - (118) - (118)
Wiite-off Lt - - (778) - (97) - (11 (886)
Bxchange realignment EXi8% (74 (1,250 (75) - 29) [ (26) (1,457)
Cancelation of tenancy JARERE
agreement 2.2 - - - - - - .21
Deconsolidation of WEBAREL
subsidiaries FEAE (2,652) - (286) - - - = (2,938)
At 30 June 2022 A
~AZtA 38,287 28210 11,518 25,733 2,494 5070 9942 121,254
ACCUMULATED ZHFERAE
DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 July 2020 H-3-EE
tA-A 13,600 - 10,066 25,724 1,594 3303 9,51 63,798
Depreciation charge TEER 9,990 = 924 1 179 428 305 11,845
Disposals tE - - - (1 () - - 6)
Write-off i (9,079) - (1,947) - 81) - (736) (11,843)
Exchange realignment EiA% 132 - 27 - 59 12 69 519
Impairment WE 5,954 S = = 2 = 118 6,074
Cancelation of tenancy MEREhE
agreement (1,09) - - - - - - (1,09)
At 30 June 2021 and RZE--F
1July 2021 ~A=TAR
“E-F
tA-A 19,499 - 9290 25,724 1,748 3741 9,287 69,289
Depreciation charge NEER 9,68 27 794 1 207 23 164 10,694
Disposals HE - - - - - (118) - (118)
Write-off i - - (498) - (43) - (6 (547)
Exchange realignment EXA% (64) 6) (7) - (23) [ (24) (199)
Impaiment B 6,874 - 2172 S S S S 9,046
Cancellation of tenancy MERERE
agreement (192) - - - - - - (192)
Deconsoldation of WEBARAL
subsidiaries Fa & (2231) - (167) - - - - (2,398)
At 30 June 2022 i St
~A=1A 33,154 2 11514 25,725 1,899 3,642 9421 85,576
CARRYING AMOUNTS ~ KEf
At 30 June 2022 St
~A=TA 5133 21,989 4 8 595 1428 51 35,678
At 30 June 2021 RZE--%
~AZtA 15,307 - 886 1 51 - 365 17,130
BFRECEBRRAT —TZ_FFRK
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6

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

Depreciation of approximately HK$Nil (2021: HK$1,000)
has been charged to “cost of revenue” and approximately
HK$10,694,000 (2021: HK$11,844,000) has been charged
o "administrative expenses” in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

In accordance with the Group's accounting policy,
property, plant and equipment (note 2.6) and right-of-use
assets (note 2.8(i)) are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment loss. During the year,
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
for financial printing business were fully impaired as
the value-in-use of those assets are estimated by the
management of the Group to be HK$Nil because of the
past poor financial performance of the business segment
and it is foreseen that those assets will not be able to be
used to generate positive future cash inflow.

The impairment losses of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets of approximately HK$2,172,000
(2021: HK$120,000) and HK$6,874,000 (2021:
HK$5,954,000) were recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income respectively.

(a) Right-of-use assets

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use
assets by class of underlying asset is as follows:

Other properties leased for own
used, carried at depreciated cost

RGITEXRAAREE
B MR E Y%

M - BERFRE®

FEATETL(ZFT=—%F : 1,000/&7T)
B R &R %EH&@%ZFH&@W$J¢

kR ﬁ%ﬁo 694,000 L (=T =—
111,844, ooo,%m)aﬁé,qé%@uﬁzm
FRZTHRER]IR MK -

RBEAKEZEFBER W% #ER
R (P aE2.6) M it P #E & 2= (MY 5E2.8(1)
BRARRAITEREBRYIE - 1
REE - BEEHBERB 2ME - #EzR
REAREREEETZSRE  RAR
AEBEEBRIARSFEECERER
REET  NRAZEBOBBEMBER
BRERBRLFEE/BELIARESE
ERFRERA °

M BRERBREARERESE 2
EEE D RI492,172,0008 T (ZE=—

¢ © 120,000/ 7T) }.6,874,0008 7L (—

T~ —4 : 5,954,000 70) B R A
Euﬂzm%mﬁ&w\ o
(a) EREEE
BRBEEERRE D 2 ERAEEE
BRENFEDTOT
As at As at
30 June 30 June
2022 2021
R=-E=-C RZE=——F
ANHA=+H ~NA=1H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHEIT
5,133 15,307
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 6 WIE -  EBINZE®D
(Continued)
(a) Right-of-use assets (Continued) (a) FEREEE®
The analysis of expenses items in relation to leases REEZHANHEEMRBERYEE S
recognised in profit or loss is as follows: M
2022 2021
—E-F %
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FHET
Depreciation charge of REBEEERNEDH
right-of-use assets by class of FREEEBRTE
underlying asset: (Note 29) (B 5E29)
Other properties leased MEEE Ay
for own use Hob % 9,268 9,883
Motor vehicle leased HMENEEANAE
for own use - 107
9,268 9,990
Impairment loss of right-of-use FRAEEEREBE
assets (Note 29) (Biz¥29) 6,874 5,954
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEHNE (F7E29)
(Note 29) 515 528
Expense relating to short-term EHHERERAE
leases (Note 29) (f$7E29) 1,512 1,666
Expense relating to leases of HEREBEEEMBRAX
low-value assets (Note 29) (F$7%29) 182 96
Variable lease payments not WEFAHEAEAEZ
included in the measurement of  A] & & R (F5£29)
lease liabilities (Note 29) 234 299

ERRET(EBERAT —B-—FER 195
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6

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

During the year, additions to right-of-use assets
were approximately HK$8,478,000 (2021:
HK$18,829,000). This amount primarily related to
the capitalised lease payments payable under a new
tenancy agreement.

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the
maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set out in
notes 42(c) and 25 respectively.

Other properties leased for own use

The Group has obtained the right to use other
properties as its office, warehouse and retail stores
through tenancy agreements. The leases typically
run for an initial period of 2 to 3 years. The lease of
retail stores contain variable lease payment terms
that are based on sales generated from the retail
stores and minimum annual lease payment terms
that are fixed. These payment terms are common in
retail stores in Hong Kong and the PRC where the
Group operates. Other than the retail stores, other
leases do not include variable lease payments.

Other leases

The Group leases a motor vehicle under leases
expiring in one year. The leases include an option
to renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated
and include an option to purchase the motor vehicle
at the end of the lease term at a price deemed to
be a bargain purchase option. The lease does not
include variable lease payments.

6

M - BERFRE®

(a)

(b)

(c)

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2022
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES REWZE
2022 2021
—=E-= —E-—%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
At fair value BAFE
At the beginning of the year REY] 31,460 31,460

Fair Value Measurement of Investment Properties

(a)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s investment properties measured at the
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement.
The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs, that is, unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs, that is, observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs
for which market data are not available

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

REMEZ RNFEAE

(a)

DNFEER
TREINBERRRZEEUERE
AE URBEVEHREENF
1B AFEAEIFAERN=F
BAFEZEOBENAREREY
ERFE - BRARATEFENER
SE[ETTETAEREARERN
ABRMENER2MEEENT ¢

FIRME - EBERAF1RBARK
BETENATE  BRFEBRHE
BMHTPHREEXRENRER
B&RE

F2qfhE - ERFE2REBARE
AEMNATE ITHEE IR
ABRBARE  RTEAEAT
AERNBAZE - TR BRHA
FBEE AN SEBRESNEA
i

EIWAE  NERTAERNE
ABIBEHENRTE

FRE(CEEBBRAE —TZ_FFH
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7 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

7 REYHw@
SEME 7 N EETE @)

Fair Value Measurement of Investment Properties

(Continued)

(a) Fairvalue hierarchy (Continued)

(a)

DR EZER@E

Fair value measurements at
30 June 2022 categorised into
R-BE-_—FXA=+ALVEIAEREA

Fair value at
30 June 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R-EBE__—F
~A=1+H
ZAYE BIR E21% B3R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TET FEx TET TET
Recurring fair value EEEATE
measurement iE
Investment properties: BEME
- Residential = Hong Kong -FE-FE 31,460 = = 31,460
Fair value measurements at
30 June 2021 categorised into
RZEZ—FAA=+HRTFENEHFEAR
Fair value at
30 June 2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R-ZTEZ—F
~A=1H
ZRAFE FR FoR £33k
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THET TET THET
Recurring fair value "EMDNFE
measurement e
Investment properties: REME :
- Residential — Hong Kong -FE-B% 31,460 = = 31,460

During the year ended 30 June 2022, there were no
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfer
into or out of Level 3 (2021: Nil). The Group's policy
is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in

which they occur.
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7 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair Value Measurement of Investment Properties

(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

All investment properties of the Group were
revalued as at 30 June 2022. The valuations were
carried out by an independent firm of surveyors,
Ravia Global Appraisal Advisory Limited, who have
amongst their staff members of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in the
location and category of properties being valued.
The management of the Group has discussions with
the surveyors on the valuation assumptions and
valuation results when the valuation is performed at
each reporting date.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

e M B|RME

7 REYHw@

SEME 7 N EETE @)

(a)

(b)

DR EZER@E
AEBRERENEAR T _—
FRA=THETEMR - HETH
B EENTT - B B IRIRFH A
BRARET  ZRRHMAEIR
BARREBMBEEER - HWAHEY
K EV P MO AN P B B R B T
B - RBRREE BETRHRE
R AEEERED RSN
EEREEEBESR -

BEABMR A FEFEZER

Valuation Unobservable
techniques inputs Range of inputs
FABEZBEA
HERE HiE WABEZEE
Investment properties REBZREWE

in Hong Kong
- Residential properties  Direct comparison
approach

- FEME BELBUE
The fair value of investment properties located
in Hong Kong is determined using direct
comparison approach by reference to recent
sales price of comparable properties on a price
per square foot basis, adjusted for a premium or
discount specific to the quality and location of the
Group’s properties compared to recent sales of
comparable transactions. Higher discount for lower
quality properties will result in a lower fair value
measurement.

Discount on quality
of properties

RYESES(Sir

-10%-0% (2021: -5%-0%)
10%—0%(ZZE=—% : -5%—0%)

NREBBZEENEZ A FETE
RERLEEERE - BES2EH
HEMERET T RERELEFTE
IHEE  BEAKREYERE
BN E 7R B SRR (BT
HHEX S LBMEIEHAR -
REEERMEZERIESEHR
B2 RAFEFERE-

EFREVCEBERLDR —T-_FFH
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7 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 7 REVE®
Fair Value Measurement of Investment Properties SEYEZ N FEFE @
(Continued)
(b) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (b) BEFERLAFEFTEZER
(Continued) (4&)
The movements during the year in the balance FANEIR AT EFELEBNED
of these Level 3 fair value measurements are as wmr
follows:
2022 2021
—E-CF T %
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Investment properties REWME
- Residential - Hong Kong -FE-5B
At the beginning of the year REH] 31,460 31,460
Fair value change NEES) - -
At the end of the year RER 31,460 31,460
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OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 8 HttEFEEE
Computer Club
software Brand name ~ membership Total
£ G mEER e% Azt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR FET FAT TET
cosT A
At 1 July 2020, 30 June 2021 RZZ-ZF+A-H-
and 1 July 2021 ZE-FRAZTAK
S o = 1414 1,108 1,858 4,380
Addition NE 11 - - 11
At 30 June 2022 RZZ-ZZF,:A=+H 1,425 1,108 1,858 4,391
ACCUMULATED Rt BERAE
AMORTISATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 July 2020 R-Z-TF+A—R 1414 727 - 2,141
Amortisation for the year FREHE(H29)
(Note 29) - 147 - 147
At 30 June 2021 and 1 July RZBZ—-FRA=THR
2021 —Z--ftA-H 1,414 874 - 2,288
Amortisation for the year EREH (29
(Note 29) 2 147 - 149
At 30 June 2022 RZFZZF/ A=1H 1416 1,021 - 2437
CARRYING AMOUNT REE
At 30 June 2022 RZBZZFXA=TA 9 87 1,858 1,954
At 30 June 2021 RZEZ—%FXA=1H - 234 1,858 2,092
No impairment loss of the other intangible assets ﬁﬁ:%::i&:%:\—i/—\ﬂ‘ E"‘_
was recognised in the consolidated statement of RILFE  UEHEMETLEEZRER
comprehensive income for the years ended 30 June 2022 BR&EA2E KSR AR -
and 2021.
BFRECEBRRAT —TZ_FFRK
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9 FILM RIGHTS AND FILMS IN PROGRESS 9 EXMEREERZEE
Film Films in
rights progress Total
Stk
SME ZE¥ st

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT

COST B
At 1 July 2020 RZZ-ZE+H—H 101,754 224,240 325,994
Additions NE 11,972 245,449 257,421
Transfer from film in progress EREEPEY 188,611 (188,611) -
Write-off of expired film rights FHIE R R 2 sE (476) - (476)
Write-off DVD pre-product cost D\/Dﬂiﬁz{’ﬂﬁ$%ﬁ% (42) - (42)
At 30 June 2021 and 1 July 2021 RZEZ—§ A=tHK
—E-—%+A—H 301,819 281,078 582,897
Additions NE 1,219 431,250 432,469
Transfer from film in progress BRAREPEY 58,445 (58,445) -
Write-off of expired film rights eSS 6 (367) - (367)
L. M80June2022 o REESSEAASTA 861,116 663883 1014999
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION AND Z:t# & KRE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 July 2020 R-ZE-ZF+H—H 100,485 3,749 104,234
Amortisation for the year (Note 29) FrEE(H29) 197,986 = 197,986
Impairment (Note 29) B (F1EE29) 3,000 = 3,000
Write-off of expired film rights BIERE MR 2 5K (476) - (476)
Write-off of pre-product cost RELVERK A 55 (42) - (42)
At 30 June 2021 and 1 July 2021 R-B-—F~A=+BR
—E-—%+A—H 300,953 3,749 304,702
Amortisation for the year (Note 29) FrEE(H29) 29,999 = 29,999
Impairment (Note 29) B (F15E29) 27,543 = 27,543
Write-off of expired film rights FIERE MR I 2 5K (367) - (367)
L ASOune2022 L REFS SR RASTR 308128 3749 361877
CARRYING AMOUNT REE
At 30 June 2022 R-ZZE-—FxA=1+H 2,988 650,134 653,122
At 30 June 2021 R-_E_—%XA=t+H 866 277,329 278,195
Amortisation of approximately HK$29,999,000 (2021: B4 %E4929,999,000/5 7T 7E (ZF=—
HK$197,986,000) is included in the cost of revenue in the ¢ 197,986,000/ 7T) 5t Adr & 2 E I
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. R WG AR A o
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FILM RIGHTS AND FILMS IN PROGRESS

(Continued)

Impairment test for film rights and films in progress

The Group assesses whether the film rights and films
in progress for video distribution, film distribution
and exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of film
rights segment are subject to any impairment loss, in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in note
2.14 of these consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 30 June 2022, management
assessed whether there was an impairment indicator in
relation to the film rights and films in progress for video
distribution, film distribution and exhibition, licensing and
sub-licensing of film rights segment by reviewing the cast
or scale of each films, current market condition, the trade
history, current financial position and popularity of film
outline stories. Management has further performed an
assessment on the recoverable amount of the film rights
and film in progress based on each film sales forecast.
As at 30 June 2022, the Group assessed that there were
impairment indication for certain films included in films
rights and film in progress with gross carrying amount
of approximately HK$34,403,000 (2021: HK$3,950,000)
and HK$32,350,000 (2021: HK$16,954,000)respectively
because of the change of comparable market
information and expected performance. As at 30 June
2022, these film rights and film in progress were
reduced to their recoverable amount of approximately
HK$2,956,000 (2021: HK$46,000) and HK$28,600,000
(2021: HK$13,205,000) respectively. The recoverable
amount was determined on a title-by-title basis, and was
assessed with reference to a value-in-use calculation at
the end of the reporting period, which was derived from
discounting the projected cash flow forecast using a
discount rate of 11% (2021: 11%). Key assumptions for
the value-in-use calculations related to the estimation of
cash inflow included the budget film exhibition income,
budget licensing and sub-licensing income revenue
and discount rate. Such estimation was based on the
historical box office of the same director and main cast
members, the market comparable data of films with
the same theme, and management’s expectations of
the market development. The discount rate used was
before tax and reflected current market assessment of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the film
production business.

9
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9

FILM RIGHTS AND FILMS IN PROGRESS

(Continued)

Impairment test for film rights and films in progress
(Continued)

Taking into account the impairment assessment
performed by the management, an impairment loss
of film rights of approximately HK$27,543,000 (2021:
HK$3,000,000) were recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for the year ended
30 June 2022 to reduce the carrying amounts of these
assets to their recoverable amounts. The directors and
management have considered and assessed reasonably
possible changes for other key assumptions and have
not identified any instances that could cause the carrying
amounts of film rights and film in progress to exceed
their recoverable amounts as at 30 June 2022.

9
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e M B|RME

10 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 10 FEWELE]

MTAR-_ZE-__FXA=1THZTE

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 30

June 2022. MEBARIRE -
Proportion
Proportion  of ordinary  Proportion
of ordinary shares  of ordinary
shares heldby  shares held
Place of incorporation/ Principal directly  other group by non-
establishment and kind ~ Particulars of activities and held by entities  controlling
Name of legal entity issued share capital place of operation parent (%) (%) interests (%)
HEE
EfA HfHE  dmEER
BRREE KE  BESEW
B AN e VEER  WEER EER
£R RtaRRER BRARRFE IERRRERMY (%) t (%) S B(%)
Universe Films (Holdings) The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$100 Investment holding in 100 - -
Limited* limited liability Hong Kong
company
EBRUES EBRER1005T RERk &%
EREHEAF
Universe Films Distribution Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 Subrlicensing of film - 100 -
Company Limited liability company rights and television
series, film exhibition
and leasing of investment
properties in Hong Kong
SEPRENERAR Eh BRELLT ERRRAZET BREYMERERE
EYMMNRILRRE
Unigue Model Limited* Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$100 Model agency in - 100 -
liability company Hong Kong
Bk ARRALT ERRRER100ET BERRE &4
Universe Digital Entertainment Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$10,0005%  Distribution of films in - 100 -
Limited liability company deferred HK$10,000 various vidgogram
formats in Hong Kong
EXHERLERLT B5 BREELT  ERRRA00ORT  HTREEHAES
5% iR TR A A
10,0007
Universe Management Services  Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$10,0005%  Provision of management - 100 -
Limited liability company deferred HK$10,000 services for the Group
in Hong Kong
BRLEERERL Eh BREELT LRRER00008T  WAEEREERRY
B%EEREA 305
10,0007

EFREVCEBERLDR —T-_FFH
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10 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

10 EEMELQE @

Proportion
Proportion  of ordinary  Proportion
of ordinary shares  of ordinary
shares heldby  shares held
Place of incorporation/ Principal directly  other group by non-
establishment and kind ~ Particulars of activities and held by entities  controlling
Name of legal entity issued share capital place of operation parent (%) (%) interests (%)
H&E
Efh HftHE  BEER
BRRRE ¥E  BEBEW
HHREL/ R VEER  HEER EER
£R RERREEN BRARRRE IRRBRERNY (%) HAI%) $AI(%)
Universe Entertainment Limited ~~ The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$2 Investment in films - 100 -
limited fiability production and licensing
company of film rights in
Hong Kong
STREERAT ABRUES ERRRAZET RABYRERRILEY
EREARA g - B
Universe (Chinal Development — Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HKS2 Investment holding in Hong - 100 -
Limited liability company Kong and investment in
television series
production in the
PRC
FREARARAR BE BRALAT LRRBA2ET REZR B8 RiRE
i
il
Globalink Advertising Limited* Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 Advertising agent for the - 100 -
liability company Group in Hong Kong
B ARELAT LRREA2ET AEEVEERE BE
Universe International Technology  Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 Purchasing agent for the - 100 -
Limited liability company Group in Hong Kong
STERNRERAR BE BREELT ERRRA2ET AEEZRBAR B4
Universe Artiste Management Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$10 Management of contracted - 100 -
Limited liability company artistes in Hong Kong
RTEAEERERAA Eh BRELLT ERRBRAI0AT ERRNEA BR

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited
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e M B|RME

10 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 10 TENBA R @

Proportion
Proportion  of ordinary  Proportion
of ordinary shares  of ordinary
shares heldby  shares held
Place of incorporation/ Principal directly  other group by non-
establishment and kind ~ Particulars of activities and held by entities  controlling
Name of legal entity issued share capital place of operation parent (%) (%) interests (%)
H&E
Efh HftHE  BEER
BRRRE B8 BEREN
HHREL/ R VEER  HEER EER
£R RERREEN BRARRRE IERRRERMY (%) HAI%) $AI(%)
Films Station Production Limited*  Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HKS2 Films production in - 100 -
liability company Hong Kong
Eh BRELLA ERRRT2ET EYAE TE
Universe Music Limited Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 Licensing and sub-icensing - 100 -
liability company of music programme and
investment in concert in
Hong Kong
STREERLT Eh BRELLA ERRRR2ET o EBER SELT
NRRERES &
Universe Films Acquisition Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 Subrlicensing of film rights - 100 -
Limited* liability company in Hong Kong
Bk ARELAT ERRRT2ET EREYME B
Wide Avenue Holdings Limited*  The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$1 Investment holdings in the 100 - -
limited liability British Virgin Islands
company
EBRTES ERRBERET REZR  REERES
EREHRA
Universe Martix Films Investment  Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$1 Investment in films - 100 -
Limited liability company production
STMEEYREARAA BE BRELLT ERRBEAET KA HE
SRR LEYRIUR) PRC, limited liabiity RMB1,000,000 Distribution of films in = 100 =
ER AR company the PRC
hE - AREEAT ARH1,0000007 QAL

EFREVCEBERLDR —T-_FFH
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10 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 10 TENBA R @

Proportion
Proportion  of ordinary  Proportion
of ordinary shares  of ordinary
shares heldby  shares held
Place of incorporation/ Principal directly  other group by non-
establishment and kind ~ Particulars of activities and held by entities  controlling
Name of legal entity issued share capital place of operation parent (%) (%) interests (%)
H&E
Efh HftHE  BEER
BRRRE B8 BEREN
HHREL/ R VEER  HEER EER
£R RERREEN BRARRRE IERRRERMY 5% HAI%) $AI(%)
FFEEREQR)BBRLE®  PRC limited liabilty RIIB3,000,000 Advertising agent for S 100 S
company the Group in PRC
hE - EREAAT AR3,000,0007 REEZRERE
Fragrant River Entertainment The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$100 Investment holding in the 100 - -
Culture (Holdings) Limited limited liability British Virgin Islands
company
BIREUL (BRIERAT EBRUES ERRBRA100%T REBR  AEEXHS
EREFAT
Weluck Development Limited The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$1 Securities investments - 100 -
limited liability
company
K ERERAT ARRLHE LERRMIET EAkE
EREFAT
Precise Reach Group Limited The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$100 Investment holding in - 100 -
limited liability Hong Kong
company
FEEEERAT EBRUES ERRBER100%T REZR B
BREFAT
Rising Fame International Limited ~ The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$100 Investment holding in - 100 -
limited liability Hong Kong
company
REERERAT EERTES ERRBER100%T REZR B
EREHEAT

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2022
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e M B|RME

10 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 10 ZEMBAR@
Proportion
Proportion  of ordinary  Proportion
of ordinary shares  of ordinary
shares heldby  shares held
Place of incorporation/ Principal directly  other group by non-
establishment and kind ~ Particulars of activities and held by entities  controlling
Name of legal entity issued share capital place of operation parent (%) (%) interests (%)
H&E

Efm  HHAMR  BEER
§oRRE KF RERAN

HHREL/ R VEER  HEER EER
£R RERREEN BRARRRE IERRRERMY (%) HAI%) $AI(%)
Galaxy View Group Limited The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$1 Investment holding in - 100 -

limited liability Hong Kong, British Virgin
company Islands and the PRC
STEERRAT iRRAES ERRRAIET RERR Bk
EREARA ABRAEBRY
China Jianxin Credit Services Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$100 Money lending in - 100 -
Limited liability company Hong Kong
TERERERRAA B ARELAT LERBRA100ET HE B
Formex Financial Press Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$21,000,000  Financial printing services - 85 15
liability company in Hong Kong
FRRERERLA B ARELAT LERRA21,000000%7 EHEENGIRE - BS
Formex Financial Press Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$100 Investment holding in - 100 -
(International) Limited liability company Hong Kong
(formerly known as
"Fragrant River Entertainment
Investment Limited"|

HRSEANRIERARAT  FE - BRELLH ERRBEI002T REmE Bk
(A BIREREERAA)

Rising Fame Investment Limited ~Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$3,000,000 Securities investments - 100 -
liability company
FEREERAT B ARELAT ERRER FHRA
3,000,000 T

ERRET(EBERAT —B-—EER 209



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

10 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

10 EEMELQE @

Proportion
Proportion  of ordinary  Proportion
of ordinary shares  of ordinary
shares heldby  shares held
Place of incorporation/ Principal directly  other group by non-
establishment and kind ~ Particulars of activities and held by entities  controlling
Name of legal entity issued share capital place of operation parent (%) (%) interests (%)
H&E
Efh HftHE  BEER
BRRRE B8 BEREN
HHREL/ R VEER  HEER EER
£R RERREEN BRARRRE IERRRERMY 5% HAI%) $AI(%)
Winston Asia Limited* The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary HK$3,319 Investment holding in - 100 -
limited liability Hong Kong and the PRC
company
AERTHE BREM LRRRA39ET REBR - FERTE
Rl
Universe Watch and Jewelery Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$73,944,225  Investment holding in - 100 -
Group Co Ltd liability company Hong Kong and the PRC
STEGREREARAA Bh BRELLA ERREER REBR  BERTE
73.944,205% ¢
AIHHEEFERAD® PRC, limited liabilty Ordinary RMB27,500,000  Wholesale and retailof - 100 -
company watches and optical
products in the PRC
hE EREAAT ERRREE HENSEERR
ARH27,500,0007 BRER T
ERRS(RIERAT® PRC, limited liabilty Ordinary HK$9,000,000  Wholesale and retal of - 100 -
company watches in the PRC
hE - EREAAT ERRHEER RENSEER 1E
9,000,000 T
Garona (HK) Limited* Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$300,000 Wholesale and retail of - 100 -
liability company watches in Hong Kong
B ARELAT ERREA000008T  HENTEER FR

210
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10 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

*

@

Name

£R

Universe Optical Investment
Limited

STRERERRAA

Universe Optical Company Limited

Universe Optical Group Limited

TRESEARL

et

gt

China Jianxin Financial Services
Limited

PERGERREARAR

Place of incorporation/
establishment and kind
of legal entity

AMRY/RyhE
REERREN

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

Bf BRELAT

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

Bt ARRELA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

B ARALLA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

WM

B BRRED

Particulars of
issued share capital

ERIRARFE
Ordinary HK$100

LERBRAI00AT
Ordinary HK$100
ERRRAI00ET
Ordinary HKS$10
ERREAR0ET

Ordinary HK$34,900,000

SRR
34900,000% T

No registered Chinese name for the companies

No registered English name for the companies

Represent a wholly foreign owned enterprise

10 EENB L@

Proportion
Proportion  of ordinary
of ordinary shares
shares held by
Principal directly  other group
activities and held by entities
place of operation parent (%) (%)
H&E
Effh HfpEE
BRRRE b2
VEER  HEER
ITERREENY EL (%) H5(%)
QOptical shops - 90
REE
QOptical shops - 90
REE
Providing management - 90
service
RULERRE
Securities brokerage and - 100
margin financing
(The busingss was
discontinued during
the year ended
30 June 2018)
EREERARRE
FxHNEz
“E-\E/A=1H
HEERID)
* ZERNRNEETLPETE
# ZENRLEE LR ETE
e BERINEHmBLE

EFREVCEBERLDR —T-_FFH

Proportion
of ordinary
shares held

by non-
controlling

interests (%)

kLR
RRERYH
EER
(%)
10
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11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 1N ZREE D zEMIA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RIBERR  SESRTAMNEEER
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period I
are as follows:
As at 30 June 2022 RN_E-_—FA=+H
Financial assets EREE
Financial
assets
measured at Financial
fair value assets
through profit  at amortised
or loss cost Total
ERBE BEHEKA
BALEAE iR
ZERMEE CREE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TR
Other financial assets HinemaE 1,878 = 1,878
Trading securities RGBS 7,539 = 7,539
Accounts receivable FEMBR R = 22,648 22,648
Financial assets included in FAIERET S - BN
“deposits paid, prepayments IR E R FR
and other receivables” LEREBE = 20,896 20,896
Loans receivable FEWER = 1,235 1,235
Bank balances and cash BB RRS
- trust accounts - REEHRP = 125 125
Cash and cash equivalents Re kREEEN = 211,846 211,846
9,417 256,750 266,167

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2022
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11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 1N ZERE o2/ Ewm
(Continued)
As at 30 June 2022 (Continued) R-E-—FRA=1TH®
Financial Liabilities EWmas
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost Total
LU 85 AR 2
SIER 2
sRER wat
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHEx FHBx
Accounts payable FETBR IR 24,829 24,829
Financial liabilities included in ST AE fh A 30E &
“other payables and accrued charges” Btz I MIEUWETE ]
and “deposits received” ZEMAas 92,437 92,437
117,266 117,266

b}

ﬂ

R4

XIEEBBERAR —TZZFFH
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11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

1N ZERE o2/ Ewm

(Continued)
As at 30 June 2021 R-ZZE_—FA=1H
Financial assets SREE
Financial
assets
measured at Financial
fair value assets
through profit at amortised
or loss cost Total
FEiBER KA
BAFEAR il
JEMEE SREE &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THx THT THT
Other financial assets EhempEE 16,771 S 16,771
Trading securities R5EH 76,871 = 76,871
Accounts receivable FE AR X - 108,865 108,865
Financial assets included in FAIERET S - BN
“deposits paid, prepayments PO K A e IR
and other receivables” LEREE = 48,204 48,204
Loans receivable EIER = 3,466 3,466
Bank balances and cash RITHEHBEAS
- trust accounts - FFEHRP = 785 785
Cash and cash equivalents Re kRS EEN = 375,924 375,924
93,642 537,244 630,886
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11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 1N ZERE o2/ Ewm
(Continued)
As at 30 June 2021 (Continued) R-_E-—FA=1+TH®@
Financial Liabilities EWmas
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost Total
LA §5 A AR
HIAR 2
TREE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHET
Accounts payable FETBR IR 50,197 50,197
Financial liabilities included in ST AE fh A 30E &
“other payables and accrued charges” Bt I R[EUETE ]
and “deposits received” ZEMAas 238,209 238,209
288,406 288,406
BFIREVYLEBBRAR —T__FFRHK
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12 DEPOSITS PAID, PREPAYMENTS AND 12 5= - AAREREAM
OTHER RECEIVABLES FE Y Fk8
As at As at
30 June 30 June
2022 2021
R=2=Z= RIE_—_—%F
ANA=1+H ~NA=+H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Non-current portion JE BPHA &R
Rental deposits Heile 2,377 1,677
Deposits for acquisition of property, BAYE « #BNEBEZFT &
plant and equipment - 28,113
At 30 June MHAB=+H 2,377 29,690
Current portion BNERE o
Prepayments TEfTFRIE 1,489 1,944
Interest receivable JE U F B 1,590 861
Amounts due from joint operation JEU A &R RIE
partners 1,664 1,468
Rental deposits and other deposits &7 & M EMETE 4,896 4,416
Other receivables e U R IE 10,397 10,318
Less: loss allowance B Eia e (28) (4)
Other receivables — deposit in broker E b fE Y 5118 — & 42 1F 50 = 1,455
At 30 June RA<A=1+H 20,008 20,458

The amount of the Group’s deposits paid expected
to be recovered or recognised as expense after
more than one year is approximately HK$2,377,000
(2021: HK$29,690,000). All of the other deposits paid,
prepayments and other receivables are expected to be
recovered or recognised as expense within one year.

REBIEAE R —FRUE S ER B
SHENEI£MEELAE2,377,0008
TT(ZZ = —4% : 29,690,000/ 7T) ° FT
BEEMEMNE® AR FEREMEK
REYEHRR —FRAKRE K EREM
S'Z °
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13 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(a)

13 EERBREERERE

The movements in deferred tax assets and (a) RAFER @ RAEFIE
liabilities during the year are as follows: BENBEZES
M :
Deferred tax assets EERIEEE
Tax losses Total
HIEEE et
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
At 1 July 2020 RZEZTF+A—H 271 271
Credit to profit or loss RIEEFETA 200 200
At 30 June 2021 and RZEBE-_—FA=Z+EK
1 July 2021 —ZE-—%+tHA—H 471 471
Credit to profit or loss RIEEFETA 31 31
At 30 June 2022 R-ZZE-_—FA=+H 502 502
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHEEE
Accelerated
tax
depreciation Total
MEBRIETE et
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
At 1 July 2020 R-ZZE-_TF+A—H (84) (84)
Charge to profit or loss RIBFHBR (18) (18)
At 30 June 2021 and RZZE-—FA=1+BK
1 July 2021 —E-_—9FtA—H (102) (102)
Charge to profit or loss RIS IR (37) (37)
At 30 June 2022 R-ZZE-_—_FA=+H (139) (139)

BFIREVYLEBBRAR —T__FFRHK
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e M BHRHE

(Continued)

(a)

13 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 13 EEHEEEREE®
The movements in deferred tax assets and (a) RAFEER @ BLEHIE
liabilities during the year are as follows: BERBEZE
(Continued) I NEC )
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax MERENME @ BTELEHREE
assets and liabilities have been offset in the ERBEENEE BT ANK
consolidated statement of financial position. The e TRARMBEHEENT S M
following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances REBIEERIBESBR DT
of the Group for financial reporting purposes:
2022 2021
—ZE_— B —4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTERT FET
Net deferred tax assets RErE M BEMARREA
recognised in the WRAEERIBEE
consolidated statement of HRE
financial position 502 471
Net deferred tax liabilities RERE BRI ERA
recognised in the BERAREREAE
consolidated statement of pEit-E
financial position (139) (102)
363 369
Deferred tax assets in respect of the unused tax (b) BRELERDHARIAFEZELTR

(b)

losses carried forward are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the unused tax losses can
be utilised.

The Group has not recognised deferred tax
assets in respect of tax losses of approximately
HK$232,443,000 (2021: HK$325,320,000) as
at 30 June 2022 due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. Included in the above tax
losses, approximately HK$19,125,000 (2021:
HK$19,826,000) can only be carried forward for a
maximum period of five years. Other losses can be
carried forward indefinitely.

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2022
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WA —_E-_—F~A=1+BZ
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e M B|RME

14 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 14 HittemEE
As at As at
30 June 30 June
2022 2021
R-E=—— i ——C
NB=1H ~NA=1H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
M FET FET
Financial assets measured at fair ZEBIEFEAFLEARE
value through profit or loss ZEMEE
Non-current FERE
Unlisted investment funds JELEMIEEES = 346
Unlisted limited partnership FLEMBEREBLE 1,108 1,108
Derivative financial instruments PTESBMITA (i) - 14,499
Club debenture gHEE 770 770
At 30 June ANA=1H 1,878 16,723
Current B
Other derivative financial EmirEemI A
instruments - 48
At 30 June W/NA=+H - 48
Notes: MI5E
(i) As at 30 June 2021, unlisted investment funds included (i) n= —EXA=+H"3¥Lm

the equity securities issued by a private equity fund
(the “Fund”) with a carrying amount of HK$346,000.
The Fund was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with
limited liability in February 2014 and principally engaged
in investing in social media businesses since 2015. The
Group subscripted for the shares of the Fund (the “Fund
Shares”) since the year ended 30 June 2015 with an
aggregate consideration of HK$19,493,000. The manager
of the Fund (the “Fund Manager”) had been delegated
authority to manage the Fund.

Since the subscription of the Fund Shares by the Group,
the fair value of the Fund significantly decreased because
of the under performance of the Fund investment. As
informed by the Fund Manager in December 2018, in view
of the real litigation risks and regulatory risks surrounding
the Fund Manager's holding company and the fact that the
underlying investment was loss making, the Fund Manager
decided to divest the underlying investment held by the
Fund at a price significantly below the its investment cost.
In addition, a fellow subsidiary of the Fund Manager (the
“Purchaser”) also agreed to provide a conditional offer (the
"Offer”) to buy-back the Fund Shares held by the Group
at a consideration of approximately HK$17.8 million by
reference to the Group's share of net assets of the Fund
as at 31 December 2017.

RELERBBR D]

&éﬁéé(@%—lﬁﬂ\%ﬂx$ﬁé§
(B2 )BT 2RAES) 2EEER
346,000 7T c B R ZE—NF=
REREHESFMKLZERAT
B —RAFRBEITERIRERNTER
HEBERK ASBEEBHE-_ZT—H1F
NAZTHIFFEERBES ZKD
(TE2kHm]) » 2FER(EA19,493,000
B Ee v KEBE(ESKEEER
HEEES -

EZJS%%E%%@HQ@MW - v
AFEBEETR REARESKRER
WRE - BOESEER_ZT—N\F
T AFME  EREEESKIERT
Az BEEFARR&EE R R U
LEELFRBRERSER E2K
BREZRARERIEENAE T&tﬁﬁ
HEeBBE2HBIRE - it oK
EZH%W%’AE(FEED%H%%&
BBRHEEZENTENDUREBAEERZS
ZEEED  REYN178EHEETLLE
AEEBSER-ZE—+FE+-A=1+
—HZESEEFE-

TR CFFR
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14 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i

(ii)

(Continued)

On 1 March 2019, the Group accepted the Offer to
dispose of the Fund Shares at a consideration of
approximately HK$17.8 million (the “Disposal”). The
Purchaser was to settle the consideration of the Disposal
to the Group in cash by 34 monthly instalments, whereby
(i) approximately HK$1,483,000 was to be paid on or
before 29 March 2019 and (ii) approximately HK$494,000
on or before the last business day of each consecutive
month from April 2019 to December 2021. Completion
of the Disposal is conditional upon the Purchaser having
paid the consideration of the Disposal to the Group in full
in accordance with the schedule described above, and
the Fund Shares will be transferred to the Purchaser on
receipt of the consideration of the Disposal in full by the
Group. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
arrangement constitute a derivatives contract to dispose of
the Fund Shares at a fixed consideration in the future and
should be recognised as a derivative financial instrument
("DFI"). Based on the business valuation report issued
by an independent professional valuer not connected
with the Group, the fair value of the derivative contract
was approximately HK$15.5 million at the date of initial
recognition and the carrying amount of DFI is net of the
deferred day one gain arising from the difference between
its fair value at initial recognition and its transaction price
of HK$NIl. The deferred day one gain is amortised over the
period from March 2019 to December 2021.

During the year ended 30 June 2022, the net gain in fair
value of the unlisted investment fund of approximately
HKS$Nil (2021: HK$24,000) and net gain in the fair value of
the unlisted limited partnership of approximately HK$NIil
(2021: HK$57,000) were recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

14 EMHE@mEE@®

BsE ()

(i

(ii)
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15 TRADING SECURITIES 15 RJIEFH
2022 2021
—E_— B —4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Listed equity securities — ETRAES -
held for trading HIEEE 7,539 76,871
Market value of listed securities EmRESHE A 7,539 76,871
Trading Securities are presented within ‘operating EREEESEHN —HH  XHEBH
activities’ as part of changes in working capital in the TIAREBRERERAZ[&E/EE ] (H
consolidated statement of cash flows (Note 42). 5142) -
As at 30 June 2022, the trading securities of RZEBEZ_FRAA=Z1+H RXFF
HK$1,350,000 (2021: approximately HK$1,350,000) %1,350,0008 L(ZFE=Z—F : &
represents listed equity securities suspended from 1,350,000 ) EEEEFEEE 2 ETHR
trading. The fair value of those securities is determined KEH o ZEBH 2 AT ETIIREWE
based on valuation techniques and input as stated in note 3.3(I)(b)Frill 2 fh B 5% g A SR E
3.3(i)(b). TE ©
BFRECEBRRAT —TZ_FFRK
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16 INTERESTS IN JOINT OPERATIONS 16

The Group has entered into certain joint operation
arrangements to produce and distribute two television
series (2021: two), twenty-eight films (2021: twenty-
eight). The Group has participating interests ranging
from 5% to 90% (2021: from 5% to 90%) in these joint
operations. As at 30 June 2022, the aggregate amounts
of assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated
financial statements relating to the Group’s interests in

BEXRBER

REBBTUETAEEEBTH - UR
ERBITMBEREER (ZT=—F
M) ZFN\BEX (T —F : =
TN c REEBRZEAEEBIHE
ﬁﬂ\%ﬁ5%§:90% :g:—$ E%E
90%) 2 2B - RZEZ_F A=
+H BREASERLEEEEHLH
ZHEmET  EREAMBHRETER

these joint operation arrangements are as follows: BEENBERBHOT :
2022 2021
—E-= —E_—f
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHEIT
Assets BE
Film rights and films in progress BRI REEFR 2
B 159,034 144,434
Film related deposits ES-2 Rk 25,059 25,491
Accounts receivable and other P M52 B R % L b JrE UK
receivables A 4,532 7,842
188,625 177,767
Liabilities =L
Accounts payable and other JE AT BR 3R B2 EL A JE A~
payables A 430 1,278
Deposits received BlET & 10,306 1,678
Contract liabilities aHAaE 145,404 94,656
156,140 97,612
2022 2021
—E-= T4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Revenue Wz 8,535 15,828
Expenses EH (7,522) (12,337)
Profit after income tax bR TS Ei 185 1,013 3,491
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17 INVENTORIES 17 78
2022 2021
—E_— B —4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Raw materials b 142 171
Finished goods BIRK 6,625 9,672
6,767 9,843
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as BRAEAY KT AGAEEARERANZ
an expense and included in consolidated statement of FEFBZAMEAT
comprehensive income is as follows:
2022 2021
—E_— = —4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Carrying amount of inventories sold BEEFECZEEE 25,195 48,381
Write down of inventories FEMR = 1,693
Reversal of write-down of inventories 17 & s ¢ @ (M 551
(Note i) (145) (2,067)
25,050 48,007
Notei: The amount resulted from the utilisation of obsolete Mizti: BHLBREDASNBEFEM
inventories that were written down in prior years. BERERFE -

ERRET(EBERAT —B-—FER 223
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18 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 18 FEURBRFX
2022 2021
—E=-= T —%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&xT FHET
Accounts receivable arising BERLERFTRERME
from securities brokerage EBEE ZERWERR :
and margin financing
business:
- Brokers and cash clients (Note a) — &4 RIR &P (Mista) = 17
- 17
Accounts receivable arising HEKEE CBWIRR
from other businesses:
Accounts receivable — others YRR — E 24,528 110,915
Less: Impairment loss (Note 3.1(b)) J& : JREEE (FI5E3.1(b) (1,880) (2,067)
Net(Noteb) . .. ... ... FRMEED) 22,648 108848
Accounts receivable — net FEUWERR — F5E 22,648 108,865
The carrying amounts of accounts receivable approximate JEWBR R 2 BREEHEE A ERE -

their fair values.

Notes: Bz -
(a)  Accounts receivable arising from brokers and cash clients (a) RLEMREBFELZERIER
The ageing analysis of the accounts receivable from HEREHR  COBERRECE
brokers and cash clients which are past due but not e RReBFPERERZER TN
impaired as of the end of the reporting period is as T
follows:
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Neither past due nor impaired N 58 EA SR B - 7
More than 1 year past due B EARE A1 F = 10
- 17

The normal settlement terms of accounts receivable from
brokers and cash clients, which arise from the securities
brokerage and margin financing business, are within two
days after trade date.

ELRERTEMERTEEZRER
BERBREEPERERHERRR
ZREMRA
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18 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(a)

Accounts receivable arising from brokers and cash clients
(Continued)

Accounts receivable from cash clients relate to a wide
range of customers. These receivables are secured by
their portfolio of securities. As at 30 June 2021, the
total market value of their portfolios of securities was
approximately HK$3,000. Included in the Group's accounts
receivable are cash clients with a total carrying amount of
approximately HK$10,000 which are past due at the end
of the reporting period but for which the Group has not
provided for impairment as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality. The Group believes that the
amounts are still considered recoverable. No accounts
receivable due from past due cash clients which are not
fully secured by the listed securities of the respective
cash clients, are considered impaired as at 30 June 2021.
Accounts receivable due from cash clients bear interest at
commercial rates when they become past due.

Accounts receivable arising from other businesses
The following is an ageing analysis of accounts receivable

arising from other businesses, presented based on the
invoice dates or date of revenue recognition:

e M B|RME

18 FEWERF @)

BsE ()

(a)

BERBRSEPEE ZRWRT(E)

RUREEFPRFEZEZEFER -
ZERBEFAREZLFESER -
MRZBZ—FRA=1+H KEZFH
HAEEMEDHARI000ET - BERF
FEAREE YRR - EREAED
#310,0008 7T - RIWEHMRD@H
MR L AN S B B AE HORERE R
AAEEEXRUELNRENES - K
SEBEZELBRNHBRR/TRD -
WHEENR B BN e TP RRM LR
HERREEP LTRSS E2RERK
ZEZ—FXAZTHEERRE -
YR & E PRIV B MR IRE N
ZETE o

HAb T E 2 FEUR R

NTRREZAHSMEERZAME
Pl B EBEE 2 RKERRZ RER
DT

2022 2021

—E_-— T4

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET TFHET

1 to 90 days 1£290H 14,274 32,725
91 days to 180 days 91HZE180H 2,546 66,995
Over 180 days 180H A £ 5,828 9,128
22,648 108,848

Sales of videogram products are with credit terms of 7
days to 60 days. Sales from film exhibition, licensing and
sub-licensing of film rights are on open account terms.
Sales from trading and wholesaling of optical products
and watches products, and provisions of financial printing
services are with credit terms of 0-180 days. Sales to
retail customers are made in cash or via major credit cards.
The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales of
products on credit terms are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history and the Group performs periodic
credit evaluations of its customers.

Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit
risk arising from accounts receivable arising from other
business are set out in note 3.1(b).

BEFIREX

EEBEBRATF

HERREMRZEEHR7TAE60AT
F BB RENMEREXIRE
ZHEBARKRIZA#ET - RIFEM
MEFREME S IMBZHENRE
HEEENRIRE 2 EEHR0E180H
% - MEEFFHEOURESTER
FERTBRERARET - AEECSH
EBRERENEEHCERFEET
MAERIFERRENEL L - K
SEHEEPETEREERS -

BRARENEERRRAEMBER
EENEURFEENEERBROE
—HFHBRRHES D)

TR CFFR
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19 LOANS RECEIVABLE 19 EWRERK
As at As at
30 June 30 June
2022 2021
R=2=Z= i S
NA=1+H ~NAZ=1H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Loans to third parties R¥E=H2ER 1,374 3,682
Less: loss allowance W EIE R (139) (216)
1,235 3,466
The maturity profile of the loans RIRZEIH 251 2 FEIRE K
receivable, based on the BHERT ¢
maturity date is as follows:
- Non-current - JERNHA = 183
- Current — BNE 1,235 3,283
1,235 3,466
The credit quality analysis of the loans receivable is as EREFHNEEEERIMOT :
follows:
As at As at
30 June 30 June
2022 2021
R=2=Z= MRIEZ—%F
NA=1+H ~NAZ=1H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Unsecured loans EEAER
Not past due I K 181 HA 1,174 3,682
31 days to 60 days past due #HI31HZ=60H 100 =
91 days to 180 days past due #HI91H=180H 100 -
1,374 3,682
Less: loss allowance B R EE (139) (216)
1,235 3,466
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19 LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

As at 30 June 2022 and 2021, the Group has no secured
loan receivables.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at each year end
date is the carrying amount of the loans receivable.

All the loans receivable from third parties are entered
with contractual maturity within 1 to 2 years. The Group
seeks to maintain tight control over its loans receivable in
order to minimise credit risk by reviewing the borrowers’
or guarantors’ financial positions.

Loans receivable from third parties are bearing interest
rates of 10% per annum (2021: 8.5% to 11% per annum).

Interest income of approximately HK$86,000 (2021:
HK$967,000) has been recognised in ‘revenue’ in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

19

=T

e M B|RME

FERE K @)

RZEZZFR-_ZE-_—FRA=ZT
B AEBRERWAKPER -

REFRAHAKANEERR AREE
R ARHEE -

BRBE=7TERMAITEHIHEN
FIE2FR - AREZTNBEBEHEN
/\Tﬂi‘{%/\ﬁ’]ﬁﬂ‘%ﬁﬁiﬂ ERHREE

R BRARIES - BRBEERBRER
ﬁio

RAFE=ZHEWERIL10% 2 FF R
B(ZZ=—F : FHEEE%ET1%) °

MEBUWAKIB6,000TT(ZT - —F :

967,000/ 70) BN #RA 2 EER 2 [
= IAmER -

FREV(CEBBRAR —ZT__FFRH
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21

20 BANK BALANCES AND CASH — 20 SRITHEERKRIRE -
TRUST ACCOUNTS EFEERFP
The Group maintains segregated trust accounts with AEBEBRFBRIBTHRBILIELERS
licensed banks to hold clients’ monies arising from NFEHEBEEKBREFELANTRLR
its normal course of business. These clients’ monies o ZEXFPHREGFHN — @A £
are maintained in one or more trust accounts. The ErEERP - AR RSB AHRFFIAE
Group has recognised the corresponding amount in SEBRIEMAMAEERST - UGS HE
accounts payable to the respective customers under BEFPHENERERNREBERE -
current liabilities section as the Group is liable for any AEETSEARPRBEEEEESE
loss or misappropriation of clients’ monies. The Group %o ERERPNRITEHRIBESESFL
is not allowed to use the clients’ monies to settle its HEKRAETESFRBE(BEFPHRBE)R
own obligations. The trust accounts bank balances are BUFFPRR RS2 EARE ©
restricted and governed by the Securities and Futures
(Client Money) Rules under the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures Ordinance.
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 21 BERASEEY
2022 2021
—E-= T —%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHEIT
Cash at bank IRITIFR 87,967 375,822
Cash in hand FER® 114 102
Time deposits TEHRTF R 123,765 S
Total cash and bank balances Re RIRITH B EE 211,846 375,924
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21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued) 21

Included in the cash and bank balances at 30 June 2022
was a total sum being the equivalent of approximately
HK$181,268,000 (2021: HK$281,232,000) which was
maintained in mainland China and is subject to foreign
exchange control regulations.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for
varying periods depending on the cash requirements
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective time
deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

22 SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:
Ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each

Issued and fully paid:
Ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each

There are no movements in the issued share capital of
the Company during the years ended 30 June 2022 and

2021.

— = —

FER
fR -

HeRE€EEY@
—EXA=STAZBELRETE

IR E 7 49181,268,000/8 7T (=
T —4F : 281,232,000/ T) HyFIH

X 5NE E R B P

A B

22 B
2022 2021
—E-CF —E - —
Number Nominal Number
of shares value of shares
RGEE HE RHOBEE
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000
TR FERT Fh%
R
Fh0.01BTZ
TER 10,000,000 100,000 10,000,000
BETRHE
FR0.01BTTZ
TER 906,632 9,066 906,632

& o

FHRNRIT 2R S RE B RITERME
AEZFBMNEGFE c REASEHE
TLZHBHR - MR FZEHEFER
I BREX 32 R E #F ROM R EHE 2 A
B e |RITHEBTF RO REE R LR
EERIFZIRIT -

Nominal
value

HfE
HK$'000
TR

100,000

9,066

AARRBE_T__FR-_T_—
NAZTALEFREZEBITRASES

EFREVCEBERLDR —T-_FFH
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23

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company operates a share option scheme adopted
on 2 December 2013 (the “Share Option Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants of the
share option schemes include the Company's directors,
including non-executive directors, other employees of
the Group or any invested entity, suppliers of goods or
services to the Group or any invested entity, customers
of the Group or any invested entity, shareholders of the
Group or any invested entity, holders of securities of
the Group or any invested entity and persons or entities
providing research, development or other technological
support to the Group or any invested entity. According to
the provision of the Share Option Scheme, share options
granted during the term of the Share Option Scheme
and remaining unexercised immediately prior to the end
thereof shall continue to be exercisable in accordance
with their terms of grant notwithstanding the expiry of
the Share Option Scheme. Unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, the Share Option Scheme will remain in
force for 10 years from the date of adoption of the Share
Option Scheme. Each option gives the holder the right
to subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company and is
settled in gross shares.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options granted and to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme is an amount equivalent
to 10% of the shares of the Company in issue as at the
date of approval of the Share Option Scheme unless
approval for refreshing the 10% limit from the Company’s
shareholders has been obtained. The maximum number
of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
share options granted to each eligible participant in the
Share Option Scheme (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) within any 12-month period is limited
to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue. Any further
grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

23

B
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RS IER - AEBESREMFIREE
B2EF AEESTAHEETE
IR - AREB SR EARIEEER ES
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F IR AT 2 E R - PR IR AT 21 2 R
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SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

Under the Share Option Scheme, a share option granted
to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder
of the Company, or to any of their associates are subject
to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
directors. In addition, any grant of share options to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or to any of their associates,
which would result in the shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of all options already granted and to be
granted (including options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) to such person in the 12-month period up to
and including the date of such grant in excess of 0.1% of
the shares of the Company in issue and with an aggregate
value (based on the closing price of the Company’s
shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000 is
subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options under the Share
Option Scheme may be accepted within 28 days from the
date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration
of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of
the share options granted is determined by the directors,
save that such period shall not be more than 10 years
from the dates of adoption of the Share Option Scheme
subject to the provisions for early termination set out in
the Share Option Scheme. Unless otherwise determined
by the directors at their sole discretion, there is no
requirement of a minimum period for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised.

The exercise price of share options granted under the
Share Option Scheme is determined by the directors,
but shall not be less than the highest of (i) The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
offer of the share options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share of the Company on the date of
offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

There are no share options outstanding during the years
ended 30 June 2022 and 2021.
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24 SHARE PREMIUM, OTHER RESERVES AND

(a)

(b)

24 RmE -

Hof e &

2 it N — |
ACCUMULATED LOSSES AITEE
Group (a) A&
Other reserves
HibRs
Reserves
Share arisingon  Reorganisation Capital ~ Translation ~ Contributed Accumulated
Premium ~ consolidation reserve reserve reserve surplus ~ Sub-total losses Total
(Note i) (Note i) (Notev) (Note ii) (Note iv)
G4KAR
ROEE  FERE Efifie  EARRE  EXRE  EAEH Nt BiER &3t
GED) (Kt (Hi&v) (HysEii) (Hitiv)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$'000 HKS'000  HKS'000
Thn Thn T T T Thn  Thn T T
At 1 July 2020 R=-Z-Z5tA-A 35,013 81 60,677 - 1,187 485,360 547,99 (236,378) 346,630
Currency translation difference BRHERE - - - - (3,301) - 33 - (3,301)
Profit for the year FREF - S = = = = = 154345 164,345
Partial disposal of subsidiary BHEHBAA - - - 1570 S S 1570 = 1570
At30 June 2021 and 1 July 2021 RZZ--FRA=THR
“EC-5rA-H 35,013 81 60,677 1,570 2,114 485,360 546,264 (82,033 499,244
Currency translation difference BRHERE - - - - (123) - (123) - (123)
Loss for the year FREE - - - - - - - (76552 (76,552)
At 30 June 2022 RZF-=FRAZ1A 35,013 871 60,677 1,570 2,231) 485360 546,141 (168685 422,569
Company (b) AKAR7A]
Other reserves
Hftit
Share  Contributed Reorganisation Accumulated
Premium Surplus reserve Sub-total losses Total
RiEE B4R EQRE it 2ithR @it
(Note i) (Note iv) (Note ii)
(M) (H&tiv) (Kt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T AL T T Tbn T
At 1 July 2020 RZZ=SE+A-A 35,013 537,212 60,677 597,789 (465,537) 167,265
Profit for the year EmET - - = = 156,377 156,377
At30June2021and 1July 2021  WZF--FEXA=TEE
ZE--%tf-A 35,013 537,212 60,677 597,789 (309,160) 323,642
Loss for the year ERER = = = = (20,495 20,495)
At 30 June 2022 RZE--FxA=1H 35,013 537,212 60,677 597,789 (329,655) 303,147
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24 SHARE PREMIUM, OTHER RESERVES AND
ACCUMULATED LOSSES (continued)

(c)
(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Nature and purposes of the reserves

Share premium

The application of the share premium account
is governed by section 40 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981. The share premium
account of the Company is distributable to the
owners of the Company in the form of fully
paid bonus shares.

Reorganisation reserve

The reorganisation reserve of the Group
represents the reduction in share capital
of the Company pursuant to 2015
Capital Reorganisation and 2016 Capital
Reorganisation.

Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy set out
in note 2.5.

Contributed surplus
The Group

The contributed surplus of the Group
represents (i) the amount transferred from
the share premium of HK$893,345,000 as
approved by the shareholders at the special
general meeting on 17 September 2018, less
(ii) the distribution of special dividends of
HK$407,985,000 during the year ended 30
June 2019.

e M B|RME

24 BR1D=E - HittFEER
ZitEiEm

c) FEHEZ2MENMAR
(i) BROERE
B aER2ERNTASR
E—NN\—FREEFL01E
FTiEE - RRRZBMDERE
BRAT A R AT B 5 IR F
KRBEAA °

EAMRE

AEBEZEGBRERERE =
T-AFRAEAR T~
NERAEAHRARFZ
PR o

(ii)

B %R
EXFEHeEmERESI)
EBMBRREEZELE
B o BRI E2.60TH
BERREIE -

(iii)

L

= B

rEEF
AKEBZEHABHE()RE
R-ZE—NFNLA+LBZ
R RS EHEERE
%15 % {8 893,345,000/ 7T 2
&8 RHNEZE=_F—NF
NAZTBIEFEZERR
B 5ik407,985,0007 7T °

(iv)

\

EFREVCEBERLDR —T-_FFH

233



234

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

24 SHARE PREMIUM, OTHER RESERVES AND
ACCUMULATED LOSSES (continued)

(c)

Nature and purposes of the reserves (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

Contributed surplus (Continued
The Company

The contributed surplus of the Company
represents the difference between the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued
in exchange for the issued shares of Universe
Films (Holdings) Limited and the value of net
assets of the underlying subsidiaries acquired
on 28 June 1999. Under the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, the contributed surplus
shall not be distributed to the shareholders
if there are reasonable grounds for believing
that:

()  the Company is, or would after the
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due; or

(i)  the realisable value of the Company's
assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital and share premium
accounts.

At Group level, the above contributed surplus
is reclassified into its components of reserves
of the underlying subsidiaries.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the difference
between the fair value of consideration
received and the proportion of the carrying
amount of the subsidiaries’ net assets/
liabilities attributable to the partial disposals of
ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in a loss of control.

24 R0
?J%E@

(EA A=Y IeEE=IC)

(c)
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e M B|RME

25 LEASE LIABILITIES 25 MHESE
The following table shows the remaining contractual TERETIRBERRTESEHEARE
maturities of the Group's lease liabilities at the end of the Fler & HE BB -

reporting period:

30 June 2022 30 June 2021
—E-"H£XH=+H —E-—%XA=+H
Present Present
value of the Total value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments

REHRE REHE REHEE REHEE
NRZBRE RABE RZRE St
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT FET FET
Wiy D T80 808 12289 12883,
After 1 year but within 2 years ~ —F & RMFR 5,458 5,546 6,813 6,980
After 2 years but within 5 years MERBEAFA = = 2,338 2,395
5,458 5,546 9,151 9,375
13,258 13,629 21,434 22,058
Less: total future interest B RRFEFX
expenses ok (371) (624)
Present value of lease liabilities ME&EZHE 13,258 21,434
26 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 26 FE{TERRX
2022 2021
—E_— —E-—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Accounts payable arising from BERERFTFRAMEXEL
securities brokerage and EEZEAERER
margin financing business:
- cash clients -RERP = 29
- margin clients -HFREP = 506
Cerereenenrenensencrmenersonensonsnsonsonensss.. N N ......... eea
Accounts payable arising from HiERELE CERRR
other businesses 24,829 49,662
24,829 50,197
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26 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE (continued) 26 FEAYERFR @)
The settlement terms of accounts payable to cash BHECENHRMEEREEZEMNR
clients arising from the securities brokerage and margin CRFPERGEERRARHAEMK o &
financing business are within two days after the trade NRSEBEFEREFINREERRIZERE
date. Accounts payable to cash clients are repayable BoENAREPERIRERERE - B
on demand subsequent to settlement date. Accounts RAEARREERE ERAEB 2
payable to margin clients are repayable on demand. g HERER DT W EBREINMEE
No ageing analysis is disclosed as in the opinion of the IbE NI 4 55 FR AR R 0 AT ©
directors of the Company, the ageing analysis does
not give additional value in view of the nature of this
business.
Accounts and other payables amounting to approximately RELERETIREERBIEFRARR
HK$125,000 as at 30 June 2022 (2021: HK$785,000) as WE K 5B 2 E 58 MBI IRIT AR
included in account payable arising from other business 5 RIE-__FAA=+HEX£B8L
stated above were payable to clients in respect of the mE AR ABRNERER BHERR
trust and segregated bank balances received and held for H b B IE47125,0008 T (ZF = —
clients in the ordinary course of conducting the regulated  : 785,0008 L) BN TRF o A -
activities. However, the Group does not have a currently REBEWBAMIFRCTEEZSE
enforceable right to offset these payables with the RFIE 2 IR O] R Sl BT THE ©
deposits placed.
As at 30 June 2022 and 2021, the ageing analysis of the RZE - —FR-_T-_—FXA=+
accounts payable arising from other businesses based on B RBERHHEEMEREEIE
invoice date is as follows: RNEERZERRASTHT ¢
2022 2021
—=E-= T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
1 to 90 days 1290H 5,723 37,847
91 days to 180 days 91HZE=180H 494 2,653
Over 180 days 1808 A 18,612 9,162
24,829 49,662
All of the accounts payable arising from other business e E A E TS E AR BN RRIEETR

are expected to be settled or recognised as income
within one year or are repayable on demand.

—FRENSERBRASALREZRE
= o
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27 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED CHARGES 27 HMENFRIERS

Bar X i

2022 2021
—E_— B —4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Amounts due to joint operators &g RIBHFIE 58,825 141,736
Accruals for employee benefits EEFEZMESTER 2,567 4,971
Other accruals and other payables Hfh st &R R EmER
IE 31,045 89,654
92,437 236,361
> =
28 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 28 ERNEEREGHNER
LIABILITIES
(a) Contract assets a) BHEE
As at As at
30 June 30 June
2022 2021
R=2=Z= RN_TB_—%F
AA=1+H ~NA=+8
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Contract assets EHEE
Arising from performance B 57 4% 1 il AR 75
under financial printing BHELA
service 948 423
() Typical payment terms which impact on the amount () HEEHNEEHRSTE KRN
of contract assets recognised are as follows: SIEFT
a Financial printing services a B 4 EN Rl AR 75
The Group's financial printing services 7N & B /9 B A8 ED Rl AR 75 22
include payment schedules which require B-BEINEEEKAF
stage payments over the services period once DA AR AR o P ER A 3R
milestones are reached. BRI R -

EFREEBERAR —T_FFRK
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28 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (Continued)

(b) Contract liabilities b) &REE
As at As at
30 June 30 June
2022 2021
R=2B=Z= RZT_—%F
~B=1+H ~NA=1H
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5T FET FHET
Contract liabilities EHEE
Deposits received for MARB B i(a)
licensing of film right BRMRAED N
from customers K& 491,069 182,287
Receipts in advance of MBABTETE i(b)
artist management WECR B & P
work from customers B 296 333
Receipts in advance of IWE B = P8R i(c)
wholesale customers - 991
Deposits received for EUCRETBRORE i(d)
walk-in customers for EnEFWHE®
optical products 252 252
491,617 183,863
Notes: BaE -

238

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount
of contract liabilities recognised are as follows:

a Licensing of film rights

The Group received a deposit from, customers
before the delivery of the pre-recorded audio
visual products and the materials for video
features. It was recognised as contract
liabilities until the Group performs under the
contract.

b Artist management services

The Group received a deposit from, customers
in respect of the artist entertainment job. It
was recognised as contract liabilities until
the Group completes its artist management
service, which is when the artist completed
the entertainment job.

(i)

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2022
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e M B|RME

pL .~ == *
28 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 28 EHREERGNEE®
LIABILITIES (Continued)
(b) Contract liabilities (continued) b) EREE®
Notes: (Continued) PiEE « (88)
c Wholesale of watches © fEER B
The Group received deposits from its REBRAMBEFHEE
wholesale customer for the sale of watches. EERWERETS - HREE
It was recognised a contract liability until it is ARERARANAE - &
utilised, The amount was utilised when the HETK (BB EHRER
sales is completed, which is when watches - AIEESEEE
are delivered. A e
d Sale of optical products d RIFEMIPE
The Group received deposits from walk-in AEEMEEREFEERM
customer for purchase of optical products. REBHBEPWEE & °
There were recognised as contract liabilities EE@%&@J?@HTTJ@* REHK
until it is utilised. The amount is utilised when BE -ERFMEBREE
the customer picks up the optical products mEREER S IR
and pays the remaining balance for the sale B BlEEesEEE A -

transaction.

Movement in contract liabilities BREEEE
2022 2021
—ZE—_— B —F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
At the beginning of the year NG 183,863 97,397
Decrease in contract liabilities as FABRBWRER 2
a result of being recognised as aHBaERY
revenue during the year (98,259) (92,332)
Increase in contract liabilities as BWRBER 2 E0EE
a result of billing in advance 0 406,013 178,798
At the end of the year RER 491,617 183,863
As at 30 June 2022, approximately HK$491,617,000 RZEBEZZFXA=+H " Bt —
of deposits received are expected to be recognised as FARRBBAZERITSSEY
income within one year (2021: HK$183,863,000). A491,617,0008 (= —F :

183,863,000/ 7T) ©

EFREEBERAR —T_FFRK

239



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

29 (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 29 FRBiA (&), R A

BRBAT (B 1R) R Ao MR GTA)

(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/

(crediting) the following: THFIEESL
2022 2021
—EC-CE g%
Continuing  Discontinued Continuing Discontinued
operations operation Total operations operation Total
#E gL o BRI
BEEy mExy Fh BEEH BEEH it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Ti#n Fi#n A TAL TEL AL
(a)  Staff costs: (a) BIRK:
Salaries, allowances, and other gt ZMRERERN
benefits including directors' (BEEEHE
emoluments (Note 32) (PH3£32)) 51,581 3 51,581 46877 = 46,877
Contributions to defined contribution TR SRR B
retirement plans 2,600 = 2,600 1,732 - 1,732
54,181 - 58 48609 - 48609
(b)  Otheritems: b) EfER:
Auditor's remuneration HEMEHS
- audit service - B 1500 S 1,500 1,566 27 1593
- other service - Bt 260 = 260 290 = 290
1,760 - 1,760 1,856 27 1,883
Amortisation B
- filmrights (Note 9) - BME(3E9) 29,999 s 29,999 197,986 = 197,986
- other intangible assets (Note 8) - EfEmEE (e 149 = 149 147 = 147
Impairment loss of film rights and EYMERBEREY
fims in progress (Note 9) REBBHEH) 27,543 = 21,543 3,000 S 3,000
Impairment loss of (Note 6) HESE ()
~ property, plant and equipment -0%  BEREE 2172 = 21712 120 = 120
- right-of-use assets -FRREEE 6,874 = 6,874 5,954 > 5,954
Depreciation charge (Note 6) REBA(Hik6)
~ property, plant and equipment -N% - BEREE 1,426 = 1,426 1,855 > 1,855
- right-of-use assets -FREAE 9,268 = 9,268 9,990 S 9,990
(Gainlfloss on cancellation of tenancy ARERE 2 W)
agreement /B (421) = (421) 10 = 10
Net foreign exchange losses/lgain| MNEBIE/ (hi) 58 1435 (14) 1421 (9,039) 9) (9,048)
Variable lease payments not included VEHAREREHE,
in the measurement of lease mEREN (ko)
liabilities (Note 6] 234 - 234 299 - 299
Expense relating to short-term leases BERHERELRY
(Note 6) (fizr6) 1512 = 1512 1,666 = 1,666
Expense relating to leases of low REEEAERERRL
value assets (Note 6) R (3t6) 182 = 182 9% = 9%
Cost of inventories (Note 17) FERAMHT) 25,050 - 25,050 48,007 - 48,007
Gross rental income from investment REMERSRAEER
properties less direct outgoings of BIRR281 4845 T
HK$281,484 (2021: HK$296,547) (ZZ=—F 1296547
BT 861 - 861 870 - 870
Written off of property, plant and WENE  BBRREE
equipment (Note 6) (Biz6) 339 = 339 1338 > 1,338
()  Finance costs: () HHREK:
Interest on lease liabiiies HERRERE 515 = 515 528 = 528
Other interest expenses EFISR% = = = 4 S 4
Total interest expense on financial THERBREATEA
liabilities not at fair value through Bremafofs
profit or loss Fx s 515 = 515 532 = 532
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30 CHANGE IN EXPECTED CREDIT LOSS 0 BRUAEEBEZZE
During the year, the following gains/(losses) in relation FRUTEBERESREEZR
to impaired financial assets were recognised in the /(BB REEE2HRERER -
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
2022 2021
—E-CE “EC--E
Continuing  Discontinued Continuing  Discontinued
operations operation Total operations operation Total
57| AL B BRI
Sexy fezy &3t BEZH BEZH @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThT ThR T T T Thn
Net write-back/(change for) of REEEFRERL
expected credit losses alowances ~ EE/(£9) 58
- Accounts receivable - W 187 - 187 (1816) - (1816)
- Loans receivable - BRER 7 = 7 8 e 3
- Other receivables - KR % = % 91 = 91
288 - 288 (1,682) - (1,682)
EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS 31 EERIKEA

31

Defined contribution retirement plan

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the
plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject
to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000.
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme
operated by the government of the PRC. The subsidiaries
are required to contribute a specified percentage of
payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
the retirement benefit scheme is to make the specified
contributions.

TE R FIRIRETE

REEREE LR RTE RS K
PIRERERBHIRETZENE
BRY—ERWEREAE(RER
itEl)) - BESH IR HABUX
ANEENERHFEAREE - RIFGE
T8 BREREEESZBAKEEN
B ARBR A EIHR - =T AE
B A /530,00078 7T © &t &I FRBNE 57

= o

AEERTENHEBAREEHZEA
B BT % S RO B R B R AR IR AR M R
g - REWBARARFENHRERD
EE [8) 3% SR AR A 5T 81 R A ST A8 A o
AEBEZRKENGFENE—BEIR
1R AR E B R

EFREVCEBERLDR —T-_FFH
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32 DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS 32 EEEE
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to Section RIBE B (R BMED) FE383(1 E R (A A
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part (BEEFANZERDROINE—LOHE
2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about MNESMEST :

Benefits of Directors) Regulation is as follows:

For the year ended 30 June 2022 BE-_ZE__FXA=1+HLEE
Salary,
allowances, Retirement
and benefits scheme
Name of Directors Fees inkind contributions Total
R i1 RIK
ESnE ok REWFIEH sTEIM® @it
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TET TET
Chairman and TE#
executive director HITEE
Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil /NS A = 5,850 18 5,868
Executive director HITEE
Mr. Lam Kit Sun WEREE = 1,476 18 1,494
Independent non- BUIHT
executive directors EZ
Mr. Lam Chi Keung WeREsE 130 = = 130
Mr. Choi Wing Koon 28 i 130 = = 130
Mr. Tang Yiu Wing HRR L 130 = = 130
390 7,326 36 1,752
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32 DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (continued) 32 EFMME@®
For the year ended 30 June 2021 HEZZ-_—FA=TAHIFE
Salary,
allowances, Retirement
and benefits scheme
Name of Directors Fees inkind  contributions Total
e 28 HEUN
=N ik RENFI= AR Bar
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THx TR TET
Chairman and FEE
executive director HITEFE
Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil MRS - 5,850 18 5,868
Executive director HITEFE
Mr. Lam Kit Sun MR 4 - 1,482 18 1,500
Independent non- BUIEHT
executive directors EZ
Mr. Lam Chi Keung mERTE 130 - - 130
Mr. Choi Wing Koon 2% Syt 130 = = 130
Mr. Tang Yiu Wing HRgrs 130 = = 130
390 7,332 36 7,758
During the year, no director of the Company has waived ARREFFARBREEMAME - ™
any emoluments and no emoluments were paid or REEE INE R ) E B S E A
payable by the Group to any of the directors as an e ERESEMAREEFIMARE
inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as B EE B E -

compensation for loss of office.
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33 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

33 meHFATL

REANENAEBRAR(CT-_—F 1
H)BREFALTEREME(CTE_—F

The emoluments payable to the five (2021: five)
individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group

(included two Directors) (2021: two) during the year are MB)EEZMEOT :
as follows:

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—f
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Salaries and other emoluments HehEMe 12,837 13,345
Contributions to retirement scheme RIRFTEIHE R 90 90
12,927 13,435

I EFBE TSR

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

The emoluments of the five (2021: five) individuals with RAE(CE-—F: HR)ERSFALZ

the highest emoluments are within the following bands:

FIETIHRER :

2022 2021
—E-= B —F
Number of Number of
Individuals Individuals
A N
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001 2

1,000,000/ 7T 1 1

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 TE
1,500,000/& 7T 2 2

HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 T E
4,000,000 7T 1 1

HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 5,600,001 T2
6,000,000/ 7T 1 1
5 5
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34 OTHER INCOME 34 HAUgA

2022 2021
—E__F B —4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Advertising income S WA = 239
Supermarket coupon sales B AFEE 21 251
Sponsorship income U ON = 72
Rental income AU A 243 55
Gain on settlement of litigation (note a) =FFAM AR UL 25 (Ff3Ea) = 18,549
Rental concession HeE=E 109 167
Screening income A=A 147 44

Dividend income from financial BREEEATEAR

assets at fair value through profit ZEREEIRE

or loss WA 1,621 289
Government subsidy BT EL 1,362 2,696
Others EAh 100 228
3,603 22,590

EFREEBERAR —T_FFRK
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34 OTHER INCOME (continued)

Note:

(a)

On 22 June 2018, the Group issued demand letters to the
vendors (“Vendors”) and guarantors (the “Guarantors”),
parties to an acquisition agreement dated 12 October
2015 in relation to the acquisition of 51% equity interest
in AP Group Investment Holdings Limited (“AP Group”)
("Acquisition Agreement”) demanding the payment of
an amount of HK$20.4 million as the adjustment amount
under the Acquisition Agreement (“Fragrant River's
claim”). As at 30 June 2020, the carrying amount of
contingent consideration receivable in relation to the
Acquisition Agreement was HK$Nil. On 16 July 2018,
Lucky Famous Limited (“Lucky Famous”) commenced a
Court of First Instance Action and claimed against Fragrant
River Entertainment Culture (Holdings) Limited (“Fragrant
River”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
and the Company (“Lucky Famous Action”) for inter alia
the sum of HK$20.4 million as the adjustment to the
consideration (the “Adjustment Amount”) alleged to be
payable under an agreement dated 13 June 2016 (the
“Disposal Agreement”) pursuant to which Lucky Famous
purchased from Fragrant River 51% of the issued share
capital of AP Group. Lucky Famous applied to amend the
writ and filed a statement of claim to join Guarantors as
defendants in the Lucky Famous Actions for certain claims
against them. The Court allowed the application of Lucky
Famous on 24 September 2019. As at 30 June 2020, the
Group recognised a contingent consideration payable of
HK$20.4 million in relation to the Disposal Agreement.

On 1 February 2021 Lucky Famous, Fragrant River,
Company, the Vendors and the Guarantors, without
admission of any liability in relation to the Lucky
Famous Action, entered into a settlement agreement
(the “Settlement Agreement”) to settle all claims and
complaint against each other arising out of the Lucky
Famous Action, the Fragrant River’s Claim and any amount
of any other nature arising out of or in connection with
the Acquisition Agreement and the Disposal Agreement
(collectively the “Dispute Matters”).

Pursuant to the Settlement Agreement, the Group and the
Guarantors shall pay a sum of HK$1,500,000 (“Settlement
Amount”) and HK$4,500,000, respectively, to Lucky
Famous for the settlement of the Dispute Matters.

As a result of entering into the Settlement Agreement,
a gain on settlement of litigation of HK$18,549,000
is recognised in profit or loss which represented the
difference between (i) the fair value of contingent
consideration receivable of HK$20,400,000 and the fair
value of contingent consideration receivable of HK$Nil and
(i) the Settlement Amount of HK$1,500,000 and other
cost incurred.

34

HA U A @@

B

(a)

w
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R-ZTE—NFANA=-+=-H £A£H
MES(ERDRERATERADR
MAE-_T—RAFt+A+=-AFBEKE
EHEBRIZERERAR(EHER])
51 % R4 Hy s B o (TR AR )) 2 BT
)L ERE - BEREEZAAEH
204BBET  EAKERBEETH
ARSBIRIRR]) - RZTZTHF
ANA=Z1TH  BRKRE RSB
RREEEBEAZTATL - R-2T—N
F+A+758 * Lucky Famous Limited
(TLucky Famous) RAIRFAEESR BT
REL(ZER)BRAR(TEI] - &
AEIZENBRR) KA R RREFLD
(TLucky Famous#F#al) » Bsk(E &
BXHEMEBREAGA-ZT—
FRAT=BzHa(HEmHE] - &
Itk + Lucky FamousA & TEEE Hi&
BES1 %D BITRNENREZARS
#2048 8B T (HABEE]  Lucky
FamousE, B 18 2 IF e X & M B RFR
& - LATELucky Famousaf A InAJE
RABHES  MESEELETRE -
EERZTE-—NAFALAZ+THEBH#E
Lucky FamousZ B - RZZE_ZTF
ANA=Z+H -  AEEBEEHRBHELE
HEMENRAREB2048EET -

R-ZT=-_—F—-H—H " Lucky
Famous * &I * "AF] - 7 RER
ANERFEFEER P R Lucky Famousih
AR 2 B0 N a] SL AR fpa ([FAR 175
%) 0 LARSRLucky FamoussRFAF3I
BAEHESHFZRRERHBF - BIL
RENRBEREREEHREMEL
REHEBAMEMEE 2 RS
(mEIFZEEHRAD -

RIBME RS AEERERAESD
Al Lucky Famous 11,500,000 T
(TFgR £ %8]) K4,500,0007%8 7T 2 FUIE
AR EIA -

A TS M7 as - FFeA AR 2 s
18,549,000 LIEBm P IER + BI()fE
W s SRR (B A B 20,400,00058 7T & fE
W AREBAFESATRINVNES
81,500,000/ 7T M AT/ A 2 E A A AR
AR
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e M B|RME

35 OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS — NET 35 Hitb(&18) Wz - FEE
2022 200
—E-CE EF
Continuing  Discontinued Continuing ~ Discontinued
operations operation Total operations operation Total
b7 | BAL it BAIE
HEES HFS @it Bezh Bezh )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TH7x T Thr T T Th
Gainflloss) on disposal of property, LENE  BELRE
plant and equipment W5/ (EB) 30 - 30 (1,338) - (1,338)
Loss on write-0ff of property, fiEns  #ER
plant and equipment FE R (339) - (339) - - -
Gainlloss) on cancellation of tenancy  AUREEHE 2 UE/
agreement (B8 a2 = a2 (10) - (10)
Waiver of other payables HEEMERFE " = 111 S = =
Written back on provision for advance ~ EEZEA S EE
to artiste - - - 15 - 15
Provision for doubtful debt RERME (24) - (24) (66) - (66)
Nt foreign exchange (loss)/gain B (6E)/ Wave (1,435) 14 (1421) 9,039 9 9,048
Sales rebate #Emm - - - 3351 - 3,351
Amortisation of deferred day one STEERIEY
gainin respect of derivative ELERYEEE
financial instruments 2,788 - 2,788 5,531 - 5,531
Gain on disposal of unlisted investment /&3 FTREES
funds bl 163 = 163 = = =
Impairment loss on amounts due from B |24 AR
deconsolidated subsidiaries* WEBLAZEL
HERE (10,649) - (10,649) - - -
Others Af (62) - (62) 368 = 368
(8,996) 14 (8,982) 16,890 9 16,899
L The amount of impairment loss on amounts due * BB KR IESRAEANRKB AR 258

ZRIEE B EEEL)10,649,000/8 T EE,
EZE__FEXNA=ZTHILEEEARAR
IHRA AEHB AR A B (5E39) »

from deconsolidated subsidiaries of approximately
HK$10,649,000 was related to the deconsolidation of
subsidiaries during the year ended 30 June 2022 (Note
39).
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36 FINANCE INCOME

36 REWA

2022 2021
—=E-= T —%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FH&xT FHET
Bank interest income RITHEHA 2,030 1,612
Other interest income H i F B U A 50 679
Finance income included FFAGREE2EREERA
in consolidated statement of 2 I FEA
comprehensive income 2,080 2,291
Loan interest income (included BHREWA GEFA
in total revenue in consolidated RAEEERERAZ
statement of comprehensive )
income) 86 967
Total interest income B A 4858 2,166 3,258

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSES

(a)

Income tax in the consolidated statement of

e M B|RME

31 FREBL(ER), B
(a) HFEEER@EERALZ

comprehensive income PS5
2022 2021
—E-_= —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET
Current tax BVERTH IR
Hong Kong Profits Tax BERNGEM
Charge for the year FREZH - 51675
Over-provision for FANBEREE
the year (3,648) (30)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax P EATISE
Charge for the year FRZH - 2,578
Over-provision for the year FNBRERE (986) -
PRC withholding tax BT
Charge for the year FARZH 1,313 22,373
Over-provision for the year FARBERE (320) (1,569)
Deferred tax EIET IR
Origination and reversal of TR EEEN
temporary differences EERED 6 (182)
Income tax (credit)/expenses s ®) HAX (3,635) 28,745

The provision of Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated
at 16.5% (2021: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable
profits for the year.

The provision of PRC Enterprise Income Tax is
calculated at 25% of the estimated taxable profits
for the year (2021: 25%).

PRC withholding income tax of 10% shall be
levied on the gross income for film distribution and
exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of film rights
derived from the PRC.

No provision for profits tax in Bermuda and the
British Virgin Islands has been made as the Group
has no income or profit assessable for tax in these
jurisdictions for the years ended 30 June 2022 and
2021, respectively.

BEBNNEREBERFAMGBE
PR ANEN16.5%(ZFE - —4F :
16.5%)5F & o

PR RMERBE Y IRF ARG
JERTUE M 25% T E(Z T = —

& :25%) °

TFRERE BT R - R
KR E A 2 IR A B
10% 2 A B TEHIF -

VTEFERENABELRESFE
RIEHEE  REAREEREZE
TECCFRIBEI—FARA=T
AIEFETERZERAERES
JERFH U AT
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37

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSES (continued)

(b)

Reconciliation between tax (credit)/expenses and (b)
accounting (loss)/profit at the applicable tax rates:

31 FIEH(ER),BX@

BIEGER), /7 s B A B R 5t
B2 e (BB, mhz Sk

2022 2021
—=E-= T
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FET
(Loss)/profit before income tax BR TS BERT (B518), 5 A
- from continuing operations -~ REBEEEEK (82,224) 181,509
- from discontinued operation - REERIEGEER
(Note 38) (Bf5E38) (332) (294)
(82,556) 181,215
Tax calculated at domestic tax E&B BBRAEF
rates applicable to profits S EEEAN
or losses in the respective BB ETED
countries I8 (13,567) 29,638
Over provision in respect of BEFEBERE
prior years (4,634) (30)
Income not subject to tax MAARN 2B (4,355) (6,144)
Expenses not deductible for TR 2 B
tax purpose 2,134 895
Tax effect of deductible temporary < FER A 0% & B 14
difference not recognised ERMIETE 1,425 3,372
Utilisation of previously A SR ARER 2 FIE
unrecognised tax losses B8 (11) (4,129
Tax losses not recognised RER 2 TIAEE 14,533 3,378
Tax effect of previously MRS Al R MR IR ET 18
unrecognised tax losses B2
now recognised - (308)
Tax deduction FRIER = (165)
Others HAtb 840 2,238
Income tax (credit)/expenses FISF(ER) HX (3,635) 28,745
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38 DISCONTINUED OPERATION

During the year ended 30 June 2022, the Group ceased
its business in securities brokerage and margin financing.
The analysis of the results of discontinued operation is as

38

e M B|RME

CRIEEEETR

HE_Z-_—_FXA=Z1THILFE X«
EERITEBFSECMITEMEETR -
BRIMHEEER 2 EESITOT ¢

follows:
2022 2021
—E—-— —EFE—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FHET
Revenue Wz - 2
Other net (losses)/income Hith(E&518) W= F 5 (14) 9
Administrative expenses THRAX (318) (305)
Loss before taxation from REERIEEEEE 2
discontinued operation FRELRTEE (332) (294)
Income tax credit FRigHiEe - -
Loss for the year from REDRIEEEET 2
discontinued operation FEEE (332) (294)
Attributable to: AT AT RS -
Owners of the Company PiN/NEIEZZ SN (332) (294)

Net cash flows from discontinued operations are as

follows:

ERIEEERB2RASFREWT ¢

2022 2021
—E=-= T —%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET

Net cash outflows from EEER R
operating activities 2R E T (3,584) (150)
Total net cash outflows FRERHEE (3,584) (150)

=
E=3

FIRET(EBAR AR —T-_FER

25



39 DECONSOLIDATION OF SUBSIDIARIES

Reference to the announcement of the Company dated
on 4 January 2022, the Company announced that after
due and careful consideration, the shareholders of Fine
Ocean Limited (“Fine Ocean”), an indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company resolved that Fine
Ocean could not, by reason of its liabilities, continue its
business, and that it should be wound up.

Fine Ocean was placed into creditors’ voluntary
liquidation because of its insolvency. The Board believes
that the winding-up of Fine Ocean is in the best interests
of the Company and its shareholders as a whole because
the Group may be able to reduce its losses in connection
with Fine Ocean as well as the Group should be able to
reallocate management resources to develop its existing
business.

Accordingly, on 4 January 2022, a special resolution was
duly passed by the shareholders of Fine Ocean to wind
up Fine Ocean by way of creditors’ voluntary liquidation
pursuant to section 228(1)(b) of the Companies (Winding
Up & Miscellaneous Provisions) Ordinance (Cap 32). The
Group deemed to loss of control of Fine Ocean on 31

39

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

Bt X AR LR S ABR

ZRAMANFRBPA-ZTS_—_F—AN
Bz KRRBEM  BHERRA
(g8l ARFMFEEIEZEWNB A
AMRELCBRBAE  BAOFOAE
BEMEBEEERE  WERETER -

BHREHEEMETERABRB
B-ZE2RH ARAKEARLH
RgBmAZNER LA KEEER
EFOEERBES - RUL/BEBRN
EARTBREBRROERRENS -

At - RZZE_—_F—AWNH - BEK
REXNBBEIRAZE  REF3I2E
CRRIOB B REEEIE SO GBI 85228(1)
b EREEABBEREEHEE -
REBBERAR-_ZE-_—F+-_A=+
— Bk ELFHA R HRE -

December 2021.

As at

31 December

2021

R=-B=—F

+=—HA=+—8H

HK$'000

Net liabilities of subsidiaries deconsolidated E&ILGZEARKBARZEERHE FET
Property, plant and equipment ME - A RRE 540
Accounts receivables FE W AR =X 12
Other receivables Ho b e W sk IE 1,224
Cash and bank balances REe RIRITER (28)
Accounts payables FET AR X (5,847)
Other payables* H b T 5RIE* (11,810)
Contract liabilities BHEaE (60)
Lease liabilities HERE (3,736)
(19,705)

Release of non-controlling interests FRbR FEIE IR A 805
Gain on deconsolidation of subsidiaries WA EERIEERE AR S (18,900)

* Included in the other payables, the amount of *
approximately HK$10,649,000 was the amount due to
group companies (Note 35).

HAbFERFIEF 410,649,000 7THY
HEEAEMNER R R FEFIFE35) °
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40 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic

e M B|RME

0 SRER),EF

(a) EAR
Basic (loss)/earnings per ordinary share is calculated BRETBBRERNER)BF TR
by dividing the (loss)/profit attributable to owners of RNARHEE ARG (B18),IHF kR
the Company by the weighted average number of A RE BITEBR 2 METFHE
ordinary shares in issue during the year, calculated ATRFGETE -
as follows:
2022 2021
—E=-= T —%F
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners — ANQ F#E A AFE(L
of the Company (HK$'000) (B518), &M (FET)
- from continuing operations - REFELEEY (76,220) 154,639
- from discontinued - REBRIEEE
operation E (332) (294)
- from continuing and - REHEREKIE
discontinued operations E TS (76,552) 154,345
Weighted average number of BEITE B 2 Nk
ordinary shares in issue T8 906,632,276 906,632,276
Basic (loss)/earnings per ordinary BT REEAN(ER),
share (HK$) BrCET)
- from continuing and - REFEREKRILE
discontinued operations EETE (0.0844) 0.1702
- from continuing operations - REIFELEER (0.0840) 0.1706
~ from discontinued - REBRIEEE
operation EY (0.0004) (0.0004)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

BB I B(EX)

(Basic)
2022 2021
—E_— -
Issued ordinary shares at RtA—BESNA=+H
1 July and 30 June BETEBR 906,632,276 906,632,276

EFREEBERAR —T_FFRK
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e M BHRHE

40 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)
(b) Diluted

The diluted (loss)/earnings per share is the same
as the basic (loss)/earnings per share for the year
ended 30 June 2022 (2021: same) as there is no
potential dilutive share issued during the year.

41 DIVIDENDS

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 30 June 2022 (2021: Nil).

40

41

SR (EBR) B @

(b) #5%
BE-_ZE-_—_#XA=THIHF
B EREE(ER), BIEER
EX(BB)/ BAER(ZE=—
F AR DEFRIEDET
BIEBERG

RE

BESTEEREHE_T__F A
—tRLEEEZRERB (- —F
) o
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42 OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(a)

generated from operations:

(Loss)/profit before taxation for the
year

From continuing operations

From discontinued operation

(Note 38)
Adjustments for:

— Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment (Note 6)

— Amortisation of film rights
(Note 9)

— Amortisation of other intangible
assets (Note 8)

— Amortisation of deferred day
one gain in respect of derivative
financial instruments

= Gain on disposal of unlisted
investment funds

— Gain on settlement of litigation

= Fair value change of other
financial assets

= Fair value change of trading
securities

— Impairment losses of property,
plant and equipment (including
right-of-use assets) (Note 6)

= Loss on write-off of property,
plant and equipment (Note 6)

= (Gain)/loss on cancellation of
tenancy agreement

= Impairment losses of film rights
and films in progress (Note 9)

= Change in expected credit loss
(Note 30)

= Write-down of inventories
(Note 17)

= (Gain)/loss on disposal of

property, plant and equipment
(Note 35)

Reconciliation of (loss)/profit before taxation to cash

4 HMBEEREER
(a) BFAI(EE),EFRSEEEY
Be 28R
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FH T FHEIT
FRAZBFAEER),
bl
REIFELEET (82,224) 181,509
REABKRIHEEETR
(Bf5E38) (332) (294)
BT SBEEHAE
- MBRRREZ
& (H5E6) 10,694 11,845
- BRhRE 2 B
CiEL) 29,999 197,986
-HibmEE 2 #H
(BF5ES) 149 147
“RITESMIT A R
TE B WS
(2,788) (5,531)
-HEFRITREES
o g (163) -
- BREATNAR 2 Wz = (18,549)
-Hive@EENFE
# = (761)
- R GBAENTEED
7,916 12,460
- - HMBERERE
(BEFERREE)Z
FEE B (M 5E6) 9,046 6,074
- WE - HEEE AR B
42 B8 (M =te) 339 -
- BUHME S 15 &
(M), /BB (421) 10
- EYREREIERE
&2 RIEEE
(B$7E9) 27,543 3,000
-JEHEEEEEE
(BF5E30) (288) 1,682
- FEZMR(HE17)
- 1,693
-HEWE - MBS R
2z (%), B8
(Bf$3£35) (30) 1,338

EFREVCEBERLDR —T-_FFH
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42 OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) 42 EHtBE S REER @

(a)  Reconciliation of (loss)/profit before taxation to cash (a) BBATUER), S ELEEEY
generated from operations: (Continued) Re 2R - (B)
2022 2021
—E__ —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
- Reversal of write-down of - FEMRER
inventories (Note 17) (F5E17) (145) (2,067)
- Write off of current account with — MSH B & R RIE R ER
associate - 29
- Finance income (Note 36) - U A (HF5E36) (2,080) (2,291)
- Finance costs (Note 29(c)) - B RS A (Bt 3E29(c)) 515 532
— Waiver of other payables — B A R IR
(Note 35) (B¥3E35) (111) -
- Net foreign exchange gain - PR FRE (407) (3,348)
~ Written back on provision for - BOE ABFEE
advance to artists (Note 35) (Bt3£35) = (15)
- Impairment loss on amounts = FEWE”LH*/\)\EE
due from deconsolidated (SEPNEIE =
subsidiaries (Note 35) @Eﬁﬂﬁ(ﬂﬁ}%) 10,649 =
- Gain on deconsolidation of -HBA Ti“Jt?v?{:\l
subsidiaries (Note 39) ARz (MH5E39) (18,900) =
Change in working capital: BESE
- Inventories -FE 3,221 1,494
- Accounts receivable - JEURBR X 86,392 (37,576)
— Amount due to an associate - B —fEBEE QR
=] - 24
- Loans receivable - EWER 260 (484)
- Deposits paid, prepayments and - 25 & - ERRIE
other receivables R E b i W 5K T8 (21) 537
- Accounts payable - IR (19,521) 30,896
- Other payables and accrued - H b T RIE R AT
charges i (142,652) 84,728
- Deposits received -BlET& 9,354 (1,157)
- Contract assets -AHEE (525) (423)
- Contract liabilities -EHNEaE 307,814 86,466
- Financial assets at fair value - FEREBREAFEA
through profit or loss ReemEE 61,416 (86,035)
- Bank balances and cash trust - RITEBR MRS 5T
accounts BRP 660 (5)
Cash generated from operations EEEA RS 295,359 463,914
Tax paid B8 IE (22,509) (3,945)
Net cash generated from operating & EEBELS 7 FIRE
activities 272,850 459,969
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42 OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) 42

(a)

Reconciliation of (loss)/profit before taxation to cash (a)
generated from operations: (Continued)

Rez¥k: (B

HitREREER @

BRBLAT (B518), E MR EEEL L

2022 2021
—EC-CE &
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FET
Disposal of property, plant and HEME - BERRE
equipment
Carrying amount (Note 6) FRE{E (F5E6) = 1,338
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of HEME  BERBEL
property, plant and equipment s,/ (B518) %58
(Note 35) (Pl %35) 30 (1,338)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BB RREZ
plant and equipment FT{3508 30 =
Lease liabilities HEEE
At the end of the year RER 13,258 21,434
Add: Exchange difference mERES 1,088 (246)
Modification of lease contract HEAHNER = (334)
Increase in prepayment of BAREMAETE
lease rentals paid RIEE = 353
Cancellation of tenancy HUBHEEH =
agreement 2,500 1,678
Deconsolidation of MB AR IEEA
subsidiaries N 3,736 =
Less: Increase in lease liabilities A FNEIEE
from entering into new HEBELM
leases during the year (8,478) (18,829)
Less: At the beginning of the year o READ (21,434) (15,475)
Capital element of lease rentals paid BENEERECELRES (9,330) (11,419)

FRREE

%ﬂlﬂ}

XIEEBBERAR —TZZFFH
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42 OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) 42 HtBHEESAREER @)

258

(b)  Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) mEEBEELZEMEHE:
activities:
Lease
liabilities Total
HESE st
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T FHET
JAtdlduly2020 REEZEFEATE 19475 ........ 19,475
Capital element of lease rentals BENHEERE 2EARE S
paid (11,419) (11,419)
Interest element of lease rentals BENHEERE 2R EHS
paid (528) (528)
Total changes from financing cash BIEIR&RE 2 B E)4E%E
flows (11,947) (11,947)
Other changes: Hab s
Increase in lease liabilities from FRFTUFHEECHE
entering into new leases during A&
the year 18,829 18,829
Increase in lease modification HEEE M 334 334
Increase in prepayment of lease ENHERSENRIA
rentals paid N (353) (353)
Cancellation of tenancy agreement EUBT E (1,678) (1,678)
Interest expenses MERZ 528 528
Exchange difference PE N =58 246 246
Total other changes HEmEB) e 17,906 17,906
At 30 June 2021 and 1 July 2021 HRZZEZ—FXA=+H
—ZE-_—%+HA—H 21,434 21,434
Capital element of lease rentals BENHEERE 2EARET S
paid (9,330) (9,330)
Interest element of lease rentals BENHEERE 2R EEHD
paid (515) (515)
Total changes from financing cash B EIR&R= 2 BB 4858
flows (9,845) (9,845)
Other changes: HimE s -
Increase in lease liabilities from FRFTUHEEZHE
entering into new leases during B EE N
the year 8,478 8,478
Decrease due to deconsolidation of EMI B R a4 F4RE A
subsidiaries iR (3,736) (3,736)
Cancellation of tenancy agreement EUHT E % (2,500) (2,500)
Interest expenses FERX 515 515
Exchange difference PEN ZR (1,088) (1,088)
At 30 June 2022 RZEZZFA=+H 13,258 13,258

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2022



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B|RME

(c)

42 OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) 42 EBEEREER @
Total cash outflow for leases: (c) MERSMHELE :
Amounts included in the cash flow statement for FARERERZHESEBIEN
leases comprise the following: T&IE :
2022 2021
—E-F T —%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Within operating cash flows LEREREN 1,928 2,061
Within financing cash flows MERESREN 9,330 11,947
11,258 14,008
These amounts relate to the following: ZECREANTRIERH :
2022 2021
—Eo—F T —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Lease rentals paid BEHERS 11,258 14,008
BFIREVYLEBBRAR —T__FFRHK
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43 PENDING LITIGATIONS

(a)

A court action was commenced in the Court of First
Instance of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region on 17 April 2002 by The Star Overseas
Limited (“Star"”), an independent third party, against
Universe Entertainment Limited (“UEL"), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Under the above action, Star alleged that a sum
of US$935,872 (equivalent to HK$7,299,799) was
payable by UEL to Star as its share of the revenue
of the movie entitled “Shaolin Soccer” (the
“Movie").

Pursuant to an Order (the “Order”) made by the
High Court on 21 February 2003, UEL was ordered
and had paid to Star a sum of HK$5,495,700, being
part of the license fee of the Movie received by
UEL from Miramax Films (being the licensee of the
Movie) and which was also part of the sum claimed
by Star. Pursuant to the Order, UEL is also liable
to pay Star interest in the sum of HK$350,905 and
some of the costs of the application leading to the
making of the Order, all of which have been settled.
As the Order has not disposed of all the claims of
US$935,872 (equivalent to HK$7,299,799) by Star,
UEL is entitled to continue to defend the claim by
Star for recovering the remaining balance in the
sum of approximately HK$1,804,099 (HK$7,299,799
less HK$5,495,700).

On 30 April 2002, UEL claimed against Star for the
latter's wrongful exploitation of certain rights in the
Movie co-owned by both parties. UEL claimed to
recover all losses and damages suffered by UEL as
a result of the wrongful exploitation.

43 RIREFEA

(a)
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EFREFFSRERERB I
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HZESHEIER FHER
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iR 2 ¥ B8 935,872 T (HE R
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7t (BN7,299,7997% LI 5,495,700
HBIT) ©

RZZZ_FMA=+H EFKR
LAEBRERE  BRETEH
ERABNESTHREE 2 ZEF

ZETERN - S FREBITEZT
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43 PENDING LITIGATIONS (continued)

(a)

(Continued)

On 9 September 2002, Universe Laser & Video
Co. Limited (“ULV"), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, claimed against Star for
the latter’'s infringement of the licensed rights in
the Movie held by ULV. ULV claimed to recover all
losses and damages suffered by ULV as a result of
the said infringement.

In the opinion of legal counsel, it is premature to
predict the outcome of the claim against UEL. The
Board is of the opinion that the outcome of the
said claim made against UEL will have no material
financial impact to the Group for the year ended 30
June 2022.

On 1 September 2008, Koninklijke Philips
Electronics N.V. ("KPE") claimed against among
other persons, the Company, ULV and Mr. Lam
Shiu Ming, Daneil (one of the Directors), being three
of the defendants named therein, in respect of
damages arising from alleged infringement of the
patents regarding Video Compact Disc owned by
KPE.

In the opinion of legal counsel, it is premature to
predict the outcome of the said claim made against
the Company, ULV and Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil.
The Board is of the opinion that the outflow of
economic benefits cannot be reliably estimated and
accordingly no provision for any liability that may
result has been made in the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 30 June 2022.

e M B|RME

43 FRIRFFFA @

(a)

(&)

RZZFZ-FNAANE  ARFIZ
—HRZR2EMB R AR THES
FARRR(ETESDEELE
RILETEG A BRI
BRmARERERE - RFESE
AR RETAMSERE 2 —
DBRANEBE -

RIFZEERZER - BREERER
HEFTREN TRREEREBR
FBF  EEZSRRUBETREN
PRREZERTERBEE_FT
“HERA=ZTRIEFESAEERE
REARMGEE -

RZZEZN\FNA—AH ' Koninklijke
Philips Electronics N.V.([KPEJ) A
(BB ARaE - EFEH RN
NREE(ER—RES) (FEm o
FHEP =W E)REEARER
RILKPEFTIF BRAR & ENFF)
BEMELZIBRZERE -

RIpZEERZER - BREERER
HARRA] - BFES M NREE
MEAREERDBRFBE - &

S RAE RE BRI R EE
At MU BEEEZ T
“ERA=ZTRLEFESFAMBR
KATLAREELE T B EFH &
o

EFREVCEBERLDR —T-_FFH

261



262

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

43 PENDING LITIGATIONS (continued)

(c)

On 8 January 2010, KPE claimed against among
other persons, the Company, ULV and Mr. Lam Shiu
Ming, Daneil (one of the directors of the Company),
being three of the defendants named therein,
in respect of damages arising from the alleged
infringement of the patents regarding Digital Video
Disc owned by KPE.

On 6 June 2012, the action was discontinued
against the Company and Mr. Lam Shiu Ming,
Daneil. The claim made against ULV has been
agreed with KPE and settled by ULV and appropriate
legal costs provision was recognised accordingly in
the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2012.

No additional provision has been made in the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
30 June 2022. Based on the consultation with legal
counsel, no further material outflow of economic
benefits will be incurred for ULV.

Universe Artiste Management Limited (“UAM"), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
(the “Plaintiff”), commenced Court of First
Instance Action against Kwong Ling and Oriental
Prosperous Int'l Entertainments Limited (collectively
the “Defendants”) on 30 June 2014 claiming,
inter alia, a declaration that UAM was entitled to
extend/renew the term of the Artist Management
Contract of the Defendants with UAM (the “Artist
Management Contract”) for 5 years as from 3 May
2014 to 2 May 2019 (the "Extension Option”).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

43 PENDING LITIGATIONS (continued)

(d)

(Continued)

The Defendants filed their defence and
counterclaimed on 29 September 2014. By such
counterclaim, the Defendants claimed against
UAM inter alia for a declaration that the Artist
Management Contract was void and unenforceable,
the Artist Management Contract to be rescinded,
damages for breach of the Artist Management
Contract and for breach of fiduciary duties, a
declaration that UAM was liable to account to the
Defendants and an order for payment of all sums
found to be due by UAM to the Defendants.

On 18 February 2022, the Court of First Instance of
the High Court of Hong Kong ordered, among other
things (i) except for the certain clauses therein,
the Artist Management Contract is a valid and
enforceable agreement; (ii) the Extension Option
is not enforceable; and (iii) the damages as a result
of the breach of Artist Management Contract and
whether there should be repayment from one party
to another party would be investigated/assessed in
the next part of these proceedings.

As a result of breach of artist management
contract, Plaintiff claimed against the Defendants
for repayment in sum of approximately HK$1.7
million or alternatively, a repayment in sum of
approximately HK$1.1 million giving credit for
incomes and earnings of Defendants that Plaintiff
has been continuously receiving since May 2014.
Defendants made a counterclaim for approximately
HK$0.6 million against the Plaintiff as a result of
breach of artist management contract.

A hearing of direction is fixed on 7 December 2022.
The Company is seeking legal advice in respect
of the above order. Given the complexities of
the factual and legal issues to be resolved, in the
opinion of legal counsel, it is premature to assess
the likely outcome of this case.

e M B|RME

43 FRIRFFFA @

=T

(d)

(&)

BER-_FT-OFALA=TNBKE
HMFMREERAR - BBEH
RER WHERBETEATRREL
(EHhBREBEAETESUBENKL
N R] 58 AT E@ﬁ?ﬁ/\%ﬁﬁ/*\
# ?dtLJiﬁ}\Eﬁ/\Zﬁ&x =&
ERMERRHERE  TRETEA
EEEHREAR I%#\J%%*
BATEXMEMNRENTER
g .

RZZBE-_—F=-A+N\H " FES
EFERRAEREDS (EBEIE )
BREFETERIN  BABEEGH
BBEMEATAITIE ¢ ()EARE
%T\Ef%ﬂﬁ P RGNEEZEREANE
FEXMEACEERER—FAR
BERAS—HERBENZEFA
N HETHEE R -

HREREBAETEAY  REMAK
LREFESXMNM TEES T

KR RREE T — @ii‘iﬂﬁ_
BRSO BARBFE
BAREOI1BEETL - %ﬁib/{k
RBAEBAHBHARSRER
EE Z’]O6§%/ETE°

BERABAFTINR T _F+=
AtH - ARRER Liler S F=K
FREEBR c ERNFRZFERERE
M2 A XEBERRA - &
CEEL0RIN: E?%%Z%Eﬂ‘ji °

FREXCEBERRIR —T-_FFH

263



264

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

43 PENDING LITIGATIONS (continued)

(e)

On 11 March 2020, China Jianxin Credit Services
Limited (“China Jianxin”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company commenced the Court
of First Instance Action of the High Court of Hong
Kong against China Wah Yan Healthcare Limited
(“China Wah Yan") for, among other things, (a)
the outstanding balance of HK$16,175,304.11,
being the outstanding principal and the interest
accrued up to 11 March 2020 thereon under a loan
agreement entered into between China Jianxin and
China Wah Yan on 30 April 2019; (b) interest on the
said outstanding principal of HK$15,800,000.00 at
the rate of 8.5% per annum from 12 March 2020
until full payment; (c) costs of the Action; and (d)
further and other reliefs (the “Original Action”).

China Wah Yan filed their defence and counterclaim
on 15 September 2020. According to such defence
and counterclaim, China Wah Yan and Sky Clear
Bright Group Limited (“Sky Bright”), the wholly-
owned subsidiary of China Wah Yan, counterclaimed
against China Jianxin, Precise Reach Group Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and
Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil, one of the directors of
the Company for damages to be assessed, interest,
costs and further or other reliefs in relation to the
alleged misrepresentation and the alleged set-off
by China Wah Yan and Sky Bright in extinction or in
diminution of the claim of the Original Action.

The argument hearing of the above applications
will be held on 2 November 2022. The Company is
seeking legal advice in respect of the above order.
In the opinion of legal advisor, it is not practicable to
assess the likely outcome of this Action.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

43 PENDING LITIGATIONS (continued)

(f)  On 21 July 2021 a civil claim (the “Claim”) lodged by
Chengdu Global Bona Culture Media Co., Ltd.* (BB
IREKIE RN LB E AR A F]) (the “Chengdu Global
Bona”) against Universe Entertainment Limited (&
FIRLABR A A]), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company and other six defendants, has been
accepted by the Beijing Intellectual Property Court*
bR ABEREERT).

Under the Claim, Chengdu Global Bona alleged
that a film called “White Strom 2 — Drug Lords" (&
F2R M ER) released by the Group in 2019
infringed the script copyright of a film called
“Perfect Lover"* (52315 A) (“Alleged Copyright
Infringement”) and claimed against all the
defendants jointly and severally for a damage of
approximately RMB99,990,000 (approximately
HK$120 million) arising from the Alleged Copyright
Infringement. Chengdu Global Bona also requested
all the defendants to (i) stop the Alleged Copyright
Infringement; (ii) make apology for the Alleged
Copyright Infringement; and (iii) bear the cost of
RMB600,000 (approximately HK$720,000) and all
other legal cost in relation to the Claim to Chengdu
Global Bona. The other six defendants of the Claims
are third parties independent of the Company and
its connected persons (as defined in the Listing
Rules).

The Group is seeking legal advice in respect of the
Claim and will deny the allegations of the Claim.
Based on the information currently available, in
the opinion of legal counsel, it is not probable that
the Group will be liable to the Claim and the Board
believes that the above litigation has no material
impact on the business and operation of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2022, no other
litigation or claim of material importance is known to the
Directors to be pending against either the Company or
any of its subsidiaries.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

44 COMMITMENTS 44 TRIE
(a) Other commitments (a) EAhFEE
As at 30 June 2022, the Group had commitments RZZE-—FXA=+H &~&EE
contracted but not provided for in these BRTHAERNEGE R ERREHE 2
consolidated financial statements as follows: AYEMT
2022 2021
—s—-= T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
Purchase of film rights and BEETREREY
production of films (Note i) 2U4E (B FED 77,454 117,815
Note i: Included in the commitment for the purchase of WeEi: RZZEZZFNA=Z+HFA
film rights and production of films, an amount of BB B B R R E
approximately HK$10,050,000 is related to the H) £ %E#910,050,0008 (=
joint operation arrangements of film production T —%F : 47,971,000% 1)
as at 30 June 2022 (2021: approximately HEEBRT B ERHEBR -
HK$7,971,000).
45 FUTURE OPERATING LEASE 15 RREEHERH

ARRANGEMENTS

As at 30 June 2022, the Group had future aggregate MR-ZZTE-—FXA=1+80 AEERE
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable TR 2 BT E MR R R ELR 2
operating leases as follows: RIEMEFRBLENT -
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHT
Not later than one year A —F 980 971
Later than one year and not later than iR —F R AHBBARF
five years 210 908
1,190 1,879
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e M B|RME

46 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 46 BAEALTZRES
Tenancy Agreements (a) MHEWZH
The following transactions related to the tenancy INTRGEARARNB —REELEHR
agreement with Universe Property Investment EZEFYERBEBERARZEE
Limited which is wholly-owned by a director of the A (Mi5ta)
Company (Note a)
2022 2021
—E=-= T
HK$'000 HK$'000
F&ET T
i) Repayment of lease liabilities 1) (EEHE&E 2,743 2,335
i) Interest on lease liabilities i) MHEBEMNE 184 82
Note a:  Universe Digital Entertainment Limited (“UDE"), fitfa: ARQRAMEBEZENBARTE
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the FHHREERAR(EF
Company, entered into a tenancy agreement HIFREE ) WA QA ITE
with Universe Property Investment Limited EMNBREERB 2 RARER
(“UP1"), a company owned by Mr. Lam Shiu FUERBEERAR(ETF
Ming, Daneil, the executive director of the MERENHRB_T=_—F
Company, for renting (1) an industrial unit and “A-t+HRBE-_ZT_-_NF
(2) 5 carparking spaces in an industrial building “A-t+WHBIEUKARAS
for warehouse, ancillary office and carparking 244,000 THEAMN—ET
uses in Kwai Chung from 25 February 2021 EBEMURQ)PLEREE—
to 24 February 2024, at a monthly rental of RAEEE  BBENAE
HK$244,000 (the “Tenancy Agreement”) which FHEIGHIEKRNEZ5EE
was arrived at following arm’s length negotiation B AERZ((HER
between the Group and UPI with reference to #) > ZmEEAEEAR
the rental valuation performed by Ravia Global FYEREEDEB LY
Appraisal Advisory Limited, an independent HEMLEREFTEERNE
property valuer, as at 22 January 2018 which RARIRZZTE—N\F—A=
reflected the then market rent. Under HKFRS16, TZHEEERESEE (R
the Group recognized depreciation of right-of-use ERMESHS)BAFTER
assets and interest expenses of HK$2,798,000 EBE - BERBMEHRESE
(2021: HK$2,830,000) and HK$184,000 (2021: Al 1658 - REENFANE
HK$82,000) respectively instead of rental REAEENERFNER
expenses during the year. ¥ 952,798,000 L (==
——% : 2,830,000/ 7T) &
184,000 T(ZFE - —4 :
82,0008 7T) - M3EMHSH
20
BEFREVEBERAR —T_FFH
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46 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Details of key management compensation

Key management personnel are those management
members with responsibility for planning, directing
and controlling the activities of the Group.

46

BE AT XS wm
b) FEEIRERMN 2 EIE

TBERABRBERS  BTRR
THIAKRE RS EEE -

2022 2021
—=E-= B —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET

Salaries and other short-term FehEMEHES
employee benefits & F 7,326 7,722
Post-employment benefits BB RIKEF 36 36
7,362 7,758

Transactions with an associate

During the year ended 30 June 2022, the Group
did not have transactions with Hong Kong Optical
Company Limited (“HK Optical”). During the
year ended 30 June 2021, the Group purchased
optical products from HK Optical for approximately
HK$1,490,000, sold optical products to HK Optical
for approximately HK$658,000, and paid licence and
management fee to HK Optical for approximately
HK$41,000. The Group also received income for
recharge expenses of motor vehicle from HK
Optical of approximately HK$17,000.

Transactions with related companies

During the year ended 30 June 2022, the Group did
not have transactions with Hops Optical Holding
Limited. During the year ended 30 June 2021, the
Group purchased optical products from Hops Optical
Holding Limited for approximately HK$819,000,
and sold optical products to Hops Optical Holding
Limited for approximately HK$819,000.

Save as disclosed above and elsewhere in these
consolidated financial statements, no other material
related party transactions have been entered into by
the Group. The transactions were carried out after
negotiations between the Group and the related parties in
the ordinary course of business.

(c)

(d)
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RIBZTFAI REREEA41,0008
JC o ANEBETX SRIFWE T E
& AU AKI17,000/8 7T °
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T AK&EBEEHops Optical
Holding Limitedif #&32 5 « B ZE =
E-—FRNAZTHLEFE A&
B A Hops Optical Holding Limited
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47 COMPANY — LEVEL STATEMENT OF 47 A E)EE Y BMRR T
FINANCIAL POSITION
2022 2021
—E-C —E-—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets RBEE
Investments in subsidiaries BB A B E 72,096 72,096
Other financial asset HhemEE 770 770
ettt tee e ettt trtrerteetaereteemeerennerennerannernaneenes. NN 728686 ... 72,866
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JEUBH B A R ZRIB 261,414 283,418
Deposits paid =N HES 212 248
. Ceshand cash equivalents RERBESEN B 783 .
TR TTUUTTTTRDTOTIOTOUIUTOROTURIRN 262,580 ... 284,449
Total assets BEE 335,446 357,315
EQUITY ER
Equity attributable to the RARBERAEGESR
owners of the Company
Share capital [ 9,066 9,066
Share premium R E 35,013 35,013
Other reserves Hib 597,789 597,789
Accumulated losses 2EEE (329,655) (309,160)
Total equity . . MEESS o 312,213 332,708
LIABILITIES =L
Current liabilities REAE
Amounts due to subsidiaries AL ENGEeE 21,013 21,713
Accrued charges R 2,220 2,894
ettt tee e ettt trtrerteetaereteemeerennerennerannernaneenes. NN 23233 ... 24,607
. Total liabilities BRE 23233 . 24,607
Total equity and liabilities HERREE 335,446 357,315
Net current assets REEEFE 239,347 259,842
Total assets less current BEERARBEE
liabilities 312,213 332,708
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e M BHRHE

47 COMPANY — LEVEL STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 29 September 2022.

Lam Kit Sun
Director

Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil
Director

48 |IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING
PARTY

At 30 June 2022, the directors consider the immediate
holding company and ultimate controlling party of the
Group to be Pioneer Entertainment Group Limited
and Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil respectively. Pioneer
Entertainment Group Limited, which is incorporated in
BVI, does not produce financial statements available for
public use.

49 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Group had no significant event from the end of the
reporting period up to the report date of this report.

50 APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Directors on 29 September
2022.

47

48

49

50

N7 B E B AR OR 3k @

BER-_E-_—_FNANA-t+hBEEE=ES
e R AR T3 o

W-ZE-—FXA=+H BFRAEK
SENEEERA R RELIERT 55
A Pioneer Entertainment Group Limited
KR/ NB S & © Pioneer Entertainment
Group Limitedi 2% 8 55 2 Bt & sE i Ak
o WERANHABRATERHY S
Wk o
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Principal Properties Held for Investment Purposes

KFEREMBRZEEYE

HONG KONG BB
Location Lot number Type Lease term
i Bh b E] EE HEFH
Woodland House 1-5, Lot numbers 1510 remaining Residential 2047
Woodlands Villa, part, 1511, 15616, 1518, 1519,
121 Tong Fuk Village, 1522 and 1523 in Demarcation
Tong Fuk, Lantau Island, District 328
New Territories, Hong Kong
AR RE L L EHEI28H R F= ZEF
ERERN1215% 151058805 - 16115% -
MR Bl 8 MR R 1 55 15165% * 1518%% + 151957 -
1522%% 52 15235%
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Five Year Financial Summary

LFEUBERE

RESULTS ¥EE
Year ended 30 June
BEAAZTHLEE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
“B--f CZT--F CZZTZTF ZT-NF ZT-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tz FET FET TEL TET
Revenue from continuing REHECEERY
operations g 127,638 602,600 226,767 61,669 86,673
Profit/(Loss) before income tax ~ RERELLEK Y
from continuing operations BRETGRATES
o)) (82,224) 181,509 (28,506) (118,600) (79,700)
Income tax credit/(expense) REFELEER L
from continuing operations FiERKE,/
(A%) 3,635 (28,745) 141 123 3,586
Profit/(Loss) attributable to AREEERFBA
the equity holders of BRI/ (B1R)
the Company (including (BEERILEEER)
discontinued operations) (76,552) 154,345 (27,063) (121,200) (135,284)
Special dividend KRR E = = = 407,985 =
Proposed final dividend BRAREARE - - - - -
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
As at 30 June
RAA=+A
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
“B--f CZT--F CZTZTF ZT-NF ZT-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET FET TET FAT
Total assets BEE 1,072,987 1,051,772 683,788 724,694 1,081,443
Total liabilities oY= (645,759) (546,305) (328,896) (343,760) (164,470)
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